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HEADAUARTERS EIGHTH ARMY - -
United States Army i ' o
Office of the Staff Judge Advocate

Yokohama, Japan
1 July 1948

UNITED STATES OF SMERICA VS EITARO UCHIYA’&A"

UNITED STATES CF AMWRICA VS KIVOTOMI OTAHARA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA VS NORIO YAMANAKA - ,

UNITED STATES OF AMFERICA VS BUICHI ONO =~ ... ol

. UNITED STAT®S OF AMERICA VS HIDEO MATSUMORI — A

- . UNITED ST.TSS CF AMERICA VS YORIO OGIYA — -k 1\4& 02 11
1 "' UNITED STATES CF AMERICA VS KANJI NAKAYICHI ~ . OIL/U

UNITED STATIS CF AMERICA VS MICHIO KUNITAKL‘ b ‘

Rev19w of the Stafi‘ Judge Ldvocat.e

l The attached record of trlal by commén trial of Eitaro Uchlyama, Kiyotomi
Otahara, Norio Yamenaka, Buichi Ono, Hideo Matsumori, Yorio Ogiya, Kanji Nakam:.chi_
and Michio Kunitake, at Yokohama, Japan, from 18 July 1947 to 28 August 1947, by

a Military Commission appointed by paragraph 1, Special Orders: No. 157, Head- ,

quarters’ Eight.h Army, United Stetes /rmy, dated 8 July 1947, as amended by para-'.

graph 14; Special Orders No. 162; same Headquarters; dated li July 1947; amnd para-

graph 30, Special Orders No. 165, same Headquarters, dated 17. July 1947, having -

been referred to the Staff Judge ,"dvocete, this review is .submitted to the Coxmnanc

ing Generel.
Personal Data Concerning Accused 7

NAME: Eitaro Uchiyama . ' DATE OF CONFINSMENT: 29 June 1946
AGE: 59 - . © DATE OF /RRAIGNMENT: 18 July 1947

. RESIDENCE: 170-2 Chome, Herajuku-Machi, PLACE OF TRIAL: Yokohama, Japan |

Shibuya~Ku, Tokyo Prefecture PERIOD OF TRIAL: 18 July to 28 August

MARITAL ST’TUS: Single- 1947 A
REL/TIVES: Two sisters, brother DATE OF SENTENCE: 28 August 1947
EDUCATION: Grammar School, 6 years; SENTENCE: CHL for thirty (30) years

Military Cadet School, 5 years; Mili- CLEMENCY RECOM7INDED BY COMMISSION: N
tary Officers School; 1% ‘years; Artillery
and Engineers School, 1 year; Army Staff -
School, 3 years--graduated }909.
VOCA TION- Army Officer :
MITIT/RY C/REER: GFEntered \rmy as 2nd Lt. 5
1909; re],.ea-sed‘as Lt. Gen., 15 Jun 1945.

N/ME: - Kiyotomi Otahara ATE OF CONFINEMENT: 29 March 1946 -
AGE: 65 = , DATE CF /ARRAIGNMENT: 18 July 1947
RESIDENCE: 910 Ichiby Mimmi Shoma Murd PLACE OF TRIAL: Yokohama, Japan.
Tkoma : PERIOD OF TRI ’L' 18 July to 28 August
M'RITAL STATUS: Merried 1947 . ’
RELATIVES: Sister- DATE CF SENTENCE: 28 August 1947
EDUCATION: IL. B., Tokyo Imperial SENTENCE: Hanging o
University CLEVENCY RECOM'/ENDED BY COMMISSION: N

VOCATION: - Lawyer
YILIT/RY CAREER: - Judicidl Offlcer 19143
‘Maj. Gen., Judicial Dept., released

12 July 1945
NME: Norio Yamsnaka ATE-OF CONFINEMENT: 30 March 1946
MGE: 33 capiille .DATE OF ‘RRAIGNMENT: 18 July 1947
RESIDENCE:, 733 Osza Heya Heys Mura PL'CE OF TRIAL: Yokohama, Japan
Shimot-Suga Gum Tochigo Prefscture PFRIOD OF TRIAL: 18 July to 28 ‘ugust

M'RITAL STATUS: Married 1947
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RELATIVES:

Father, mother, two brothera 3

sister

EDUC .TION: 18 yesrs ’ Exasiaud \ihlitary
Academy - ' :

VOC “TION: - Student or 'u'my Offa.cer

MITITARY C/REFR: - Japenese Army 1. Apr:.l
1931 discharged as Major, '30 November
l9l+5 it

DATE OF SPNT“NC“ 28 August 1947
SENTENCE: . CHL for twenty-five (25} year;
CLEMENCY RECOM: "F‘N_DED BY COMMISSION: No -

N*MEs Buichi Ono
GEs 42 et Sl PR
RESIDENCE: - 2468 Oaza Nagas Nagao Cho
Lsaguche Gum Okayama Prefecture
MARITAL STATUS: Married :
R?L*TIVWS-' ‘None "' e
EDUCATION: - Gradusted 1aw course Kansal
- University, 17 years
VOCATION: Government Offlc:.el e’o
Office

’

Pos tv

- SENTENCE:

D.TE OF CONFINEMENT: 29 March 1946
DATE OF ARRAIGNMENT: 18 July 1947
PLACE OF TRIAL: Yokohama, Japan '
PERIOD OF TRIAL: 18 July to 28 August
1947 ;
DATE. OF SENTFNCE’

28 /ugust 1947
. CHL. for thirty. (30) years
CLEMENCY PT‘COM.’G‘N'D“.D BY COMMIDSION

No

MITIT*RY C’REER: Entered nrmy 16 December

19403 dlscharged as Capt,
19454

—— - et

25 October

NAME : H:Ldeo Matsumorl e b 4 i

AGE: 407 X 1

RESIDENF“- 520 Shirokane—cho = Shiba—ku,
Tokyo"

MARITAL ST"TUS' ‘Merried i PSR g pd

RELATIVES: ” ‘Wife, three chlldren, two
brothers, three sisters

EDUCATION: Graduate Ecénomical. College
of Kyoto. Imperial Univer31ty, total
_years, 17 : : _

VOCATION: Civil’ Offlcer Cap il ‘

MILIT:RY C'REER: Drafted 28 1\vicrch 191;3,
2nd Lt, March-1935, discharged October
1945 as 1lst Lt. :

"/ DMTE OF CONFINEMENT:
DATE OF /RRATGNMENT:

8 September 1946
18 July 1947
Yokohams, Japan

18 July to 28 August -

PLACE OF TRIAL:

PFRIOD OF TRIAL:
L7 .

DATE OF SENTENCE: 28 August 1947

SENTENCE: - CHL for ten (10) years

CLEMENCY RECOMENDED BY COMMISSION: No

1 Yorlo Oglya , : ‘,
';’-..G'E: 27 E s
PESIDENC“" l+8 Osubo-Machi,” Takaoka City,

Toyama Prefecture
M/RITAL 'STATUS: Marrled i
RELATIVES: . Daughter father, mother s
'EDUC'\TION' Graduate Middle School end
"Chuo College Lew Department
VOC/TION: Probationary Attorney’
MIIIT'RY C/REFR: -Drafted as pvt. -
1 Nevember 1943, discharged as capt,
1 December 1945,

-PERIOD OF TRI '.L. :

-SENTENCE: .
CLEMENCY RECOWENDED BV COMMISSION:

DATE OF CONFINEMENT: 29 Merch 1946
DATE OF ARRAIGNMENT: .18 July 1947
PLACE -OF, TRIAL: Yokohama, Japan

18 July ‘to’ 28 August
1947 .

DATE OF SENTENCE' 28 .’\ugust 1947

CHL for three (3) years
No

et

/ME: Kanji Nakemichi
AGR: 51 2 i
RESIDENCE:- Teisho Cho,- Tekada, eche, .

Yaro Gun, Gifa Prefecture
M'RIT!L ST/TUS: Married
REL'TIVES: Two brothers /
EDUCATION: Gradaate Ichinose C-re'nmar
School in 1916, 8 yesars
VOCATION: Court clerk, prison-werden
"MILIT'RY.C'REFR: Drafted 1916, released

CLEVENCY RECO'~ENDED BY COMMISSION:

DATE OF CONFINEMENT: 29 Merch 1946
DATE OF ‘RRAIGNMENT: 18 July 1947
PL/CE OF TRI‘L: Yokohame, Japan
PERIOD OF TRIZL: 18 July to 28 fugust

3947 -
D.TE OF SENTENCE: 28 August 1947
SENTENCE: “CHL for three (3) years

Nc

s W. O. 1925; atteched to Legal Section -

3rd Div. 1926; in June 1945 wes Capt,
in charge of Militery Prison (not PW)
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fisidadi o

wam:- Michio Kunit.ake : e " DATE OF CONFINEMENT: 29 June 1946 ' . |
Cmr 5L ‘.; ... DATE OF ARRAIGNMENT: 18 July 1947% .-
RESITW‘NCE Meckoga Okayana Mura Ysane " PL/CE OF TRI‘L: Yokohoma, Japan
Gum, Fukuoka Prefecture'/ . '~ . “'' . - PWRIOD OF TRIAL: 18 July to 28 August
bl "RIT'&L ST’TUS: Married Shiae. oTE 1947

RELATIVES: - Two sonsy ‘two. daughters, three :DATE OF SEY\TI“*"NCL,- 28 lugust 1947
brothers, sister, father . . .: . SENTENCE: - CHL for three (3) years

EDUC TION: Treining School: 3 yeers Fea CLIMENCY RECO"MF‘NDFD BY COMMISSION: No .
Miditary . Central School 2" years, Mili- /

tory Cadet School 14 yesrs,: . Army .o
Artillery ‘and Engineers’School 2 years 5
Militery Aeademy 3 yesrs..

VOCATION: - Army Officer

‘ELIT"RV CAREAR « Entered ‘Army: as 2nd:.
%Z’bl‘)lE, released -ns Lt Gen. 15 June

< aicar i 4 -
AT

2, Synépsis ofdharges, Pless, Findings, Legal Sufficiency and Sentence:

Sk LRI R ; : Legall:
Charges ond Specificatidns: Plecs - .Findings Sustain
UCHTYAYA ' -5
Charge', Aceused, at the times and - NG : : G . No
pleces Set.forth-in the specificestions, : =
and during a time of war-between the
United States of:America, its Alldes . ;
and Dependencies, ‘and Jepan, did-: violate =5
‘the L'\ws and Customs of Ver, - ,

Sp 1: Between 15 May 1945 and- 19 July NG ' NG e

1945, ot or near Osaka, Honshu, Japan,
accused, then Commending Generel of the
J'\penese Fifteenth Area Army, through
~his commend funct-lons, by his own ‘acts’
and the acts of Wis subordinates, ; did
_willfully and unlawfully permit, author-" :

ize, direct ‘end constitute illegsl, . ' 3
unfair false and null proceedings -

,agalnst 2nd Lts Robert Watson- Nelson

‘and Sgt. J.gy Stanley ‘Augunas; American

P, before’ a Japariese Militery Tribunal
.end did thereby contribute to the: u.nlaw-

ful ldlling of the ssid Pu.

Sp. 2t 0nor about. 18 July 1945, 'at or NG Guilty, No
neer Osake, Honshu, Japan,. accused, then except the words "and
Commanding General of the Japanese’ Fif-. . unlawfully?, villegal"
_teenth Area Army, through his commard and "false and null®,-
- functions,’ , by his own acts and: the acts of the excepted words,
- of his. subordlnates dfd willfully-and - not guilty..
" unlawfully approve illegal unfair, false "x T

and: null proceedings ond sentence of death

against It. Robert Watson Nelson end Sgt.

Algy Stanley Augunss, Americen PW, by a

‘Japanese Hilitvry Trlbunel oand did .there-

by contribute to the unlawful killing of

the se:h P“?.

_Sp. 3: Q; or about 18 July 1945, at or NG " Guilty, No
‘nesr Osake, Honshu, Japan, sccused,. then except the words "and

Commanding Genersl of the Jepanese Fif- unlawfully", "illegel"
. teenth Aree Army, . through' his commend and "false and null",
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functions, by his own scts and the zcts
of his subordinates, did willfully and
unlawfally order executed an {llegel,’
unfair, felse and null sentence of death’
imposed upon 2nd Lt, Robert ‘"at.acn Nelson'
'md ‘Sgt. Algy Stanley Augunes, American

, by a Japanese Military Tribunal and
did thereby contribute to the unle wful
killing of t.ha seid P‘l‘I. :

sp bt Between 15 My 1945 and-19 $iig: - N

. 1945, at or near Oszka, Honshu, Japan,

accused, then Commanding General of the
Japanese Fifteenth Area Army, and then
being the convening and reviewing euthority
for proceedings by Jepanese Military
Tribunals on cherges against captured
enemy airmen within. the Jurisdiction of’
said Army, did willfully and unlawfully
fail and neglect to take reasonable
measures to afford a legal, fair and im-

‘partial trial of certain charges against

2nd.Lt, Robert Wotson Nelson and Sgt. -
Mgy Stenley Augunas, American PW, and
did further m.llfully fnd unlz’wi‘ully Tail
and neglect.to tske reasonable measures
to afford a legal, fair, Ampartisl and

" adequete review of the proceedlngs against
. said PY, and‘of the findings and sentence

eg'\inst them, and did thereby contribute
to the unlewful kllling of the said PW,

OTAHARA

Charge: 'AccuSed, at the times and places NG

‘'set forth.in the Speclficetlons hereto

attached, erid during a time of war be-
tween the” United States and’ -Jépany- did.
vz.olet.e the Laws and Customs ‘of . "s’ar.

»
Sp l‘ Betwaen 15 May 19!:,5 “and 19 July’ NG
1945, the atcused, then Chief of ~the
Judicialy Denertment of the Japanese:
Fifteenth frea Army with-Headquarters
st ot~near Osaka, Honshu, Japan, by his
official acts did willfully and unlaw--
fully incite, inspire, recommend, approve .
and cause to be initiated and commenced
before o Japsnese Militsry Tribunal at
Osaka, Jepan, illegel, unfair, felse and
null proceedings '\g«mst -2nd 1t, Rgbert
“atgon Nelson end Sgt. Algy Stanley
Augunas, fmerican PW, end‘did.thereby
contribute t.o the unlawful killing :of

_ the said PW.

Sp 2' Bet.ween 15 May 19!;5 and 19 J uly NG
1945, accused, then Acting Chief of the
Judicial Department of the Japanese -

- Second General Lrmy with HeadquartersA at |

or near Hiroshima, Honshu, Japan, by hig

“official ects did willfully and unlawfully .

inclte, inspire, recommend, spprove and
cause to be initiated end commenced before .

_a Jepanese Military Tribunel at Osaka,

Japan, illegal, unfeir, false end nmull

W/

of the excepted words,

not guilty. -
NG e
\
i
o
G No
Guilty, No

except the words "and
unlawfully", "illegal"
and "false end null",’
of the excepted words,
not guilty. .

NG

(p 4, Uchiyama et 7, Case 4123)
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prroceedings against 2nd Lt. Robert Watson
Nelson and Sgt. Algy Stanley Augunas,
American PW, and did thereby contribute
to the unlawful killing of the said PH.

Sp.3:. In July 19&5, at or‘near Osaka,
Honshu, ‘Japan, the accused, then Chief
of the Judicial Department of the Japanese
Fifteenth Arez Army, did willfully and -
unla,wfully 1ncit.e, inapire, cause, direct
and command members of a Japanese Military
Tribunal to sentence to death 2nd It.
Robert Watson Nelson- and Sgt.f Algy Stanley
fugunas, ﬂme:ican PW, the accused at the

time knowing that the evidence and charges 3

against them were false and fraudulent
and ‘that a i'air and, lawful . trlal ‘would
not be affcrded them and did thereby
contribute to the unlawful ldlling of
the said PW,.
-Sp h. Betw" 1..'5 May l9h5 and 19 July
1945, at or. :
-accused, then Chief of the Jud:Lcial
Department of . the Japanese Fifteenth

~ Area’ Army. and aving’ responeibility for
the éupervision, direction and. OOntrol
_of’said Judicial Department in. th' L
investigation and. determlnetion o;‘
cherges ageinst:captured enemy 2irmen
within the. jurisdiction of said’ Army,

did willfully end unlewfully fail and - -

neglect’ to take: reasonable measures to
afford a legal, feir and impartial trial
of -certain. chc.rges against 2nd Lt. Robert
Watson Nelson and Sgt.. Mgy Stanley.
Augunas,Amer:Lcan PW, and did thereby
contribute to.the: unlawful kllling of .
SE[ld PW.

YAMANA KA

:Charge'-' Accused at the tmes and
places: :set: ;‘orth ‘in’ the. specifications,
cand during.a time of war. between the
~United States and.Japany.did violate
rthe Laws .and ‘Customs of : Wer, -

:Sp l° *On or: about 18 July 1945, at or’
‘niear: Osaka, Honshu, Jape.n, ‘the accused,
‘membér of the -Japanese Fifteenth Area
firmy, as presiding member of a Japanese
SMilitary Tribunal: duriné the course .of
411egal, unfair, false and null o~
ceedings before said tribpnal did will-
fully and. unlawfully edjudge and determine
certain false and fraudulent cherges
end evidence against 2nd Lt. Robert
‘Hetson Nelson and Sgte Mgy Stanley
“Augunas, ‘hmerican: PW, without affording
- them a falr and. lawful triel. end did,
¢ thereby contribute to the unlawful
killing of - the seid PW.

-

2o s

NG e Gu:llt.

e except the wfords Mand
. unlawfully",- ndirect ;
and command", "that the
evidence and charges
against them were false.
and fraudulent!, and
- "and lawful", of the
e;:cepted words » not

NG : Gullty
except the“words "and
unlawfully" and "legal"
of the excepted words,
not guilty. :

NG G

-

NG Guilty,
except the words "illegal"
nfalse and null®, "and un- .
“lewfully", nfalse and - fraud-
ulent™ and Yand lawful',.
of the’ excepted vords, not

guilty. - '

(p 5, Uchiyama et 7, Case #123)
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Sp 2: On or about 18 July 1914-5, at or . NG
near Osaka, Honshu, Japanh, &ccused,
member of the Japanese Fifteenth Area
Army, as presiding member of & Japanese
Military Tribundl during:the course of
i1legal, unfairy false and null, proceed-
ings did willfully znd unlewfully sentence
to. death ‘2nd: Lt. Robert Watson Nelson and
Sgt. Algy Stanley Augunas, Americen PW,
without ‘affording them a fair ‘and lawful
trial and did thereby contribute. to, the
unlawful ld.lling of the said PW,

Sp 32 In or about. the-month of July NG
1945, at or’nesr. Oscka, Honshu, Japan, _
the accused, member‘of the Japanese
Fifteenth Area Army, a3 presiding member-
of a Japenese Military Tribunal did
willfully and unlawfully fail to-perform
his duty as a. tribunal member end did
neglect to provide a legal, fair and
proper  trisl to 2nd Lt. Robert. Watson
Nelson eand 3gt. Algy Stanley Augunes,
American FW, and did thereby contribute
to the unlawful killing of the said PY.

- ono

Charge: * Accused, at the times and  ° NG~

. places set forth -in the specifications,
and. during -a:-time- of war between . the
United States and Japan, . did violabe
the Laws’ and. Customs of Wer,

' Sp’ l' On or. about. 18- July l9l+5, at or NG
neer. Osaka, Honshu,. Japan, as. law member
“of. a Japenese Militery Tribunal during
‘the course of illegal, unfeir, felse and
null.proceedings before sa:Ld tribunal

did willfully and tmlawfully edjudge

end det.epnine certain false and’ fraudu~-
Yent charges-and . evidence ageinst. ‘ond

Lt Robert Watson Nelson snd: Sgt. Mgy
_ Stanle as, American PW, without
afford{ng them a fair and lawful trial
and.did thereby contribute to the unlawful
k:l.lling of the seid PW,

Sp. 2:. On or about-18 July 19h5, at or

ﬁaa:@/

Guilty, - No~
except the mrds "111egal" ¢
"false end null", “and un- -
lawfully", end "end lewfuln,

of the excepted words s not
guilty.

= : 52227
Guilty, ~ No

except the words “and un-

lavfully" znd Mlegal', of

the excepted words ’ not

14 4

Gullty No
except the words’ "illeg'\l"
"false <and null", "and un-
lawfullyr, "false and fraud-
ulent" and “and lawful", of
the excepted words, not

guilty.

-

NG - Guilty, © No
near Osakz, Honshu, Jopan, accused, : gméxcept, the words "illegal",

member of the. Japenese. Fifteenth Area
Army, as lsw member of a Japanese Mili-
tery Tribunal. durmg ‘the course of illegel,
unfair, felse’ end null proceedings did
willfully and unlawfully *sentence to
death 2nd Lt. Robert Watson Nelson end-
Sgt,.. Algy Stanley Augunas, . ‘Mmerican PV, .
without affording them & fair and l'twful
trial end did thereby contribute.to the
urﬂ.awful killing of _the said D s SN

Sp 3'4 In or about the- month of July - NG '

1945, at or nesr Osaka, Honshu, Japan,
accused,. member of the Japsnese Fifteenth
Aréa Army, as law member of a Japanese

*

o

i

"false and null", "and un-
lawfully" end "and lawful",
of the excepted words, not
guilty,

Gui.'l;ty-, 3 No
except the words 'end unlow-
fully" and "legal®, of the
excepted words, not guilty.

(.i) 6, Uchiyama et 7, Crse #123)




¥ilitary Tribunsl -qid willfully and
unlawfu'l.ly f2il ‘to perform his. duty -as-

2 tribunal ‘member: and: did: neglect $or o
provide e legal, feir .and. ‘proper:trial. |
+t0:2nd - Lt Rnbert t8on; Nelson and. Sgt..
ﬁlgy Stanley.-Augun 'tmerican PW ‘and -
did ‘thereby: contrlbute ‘to: the unlawful
killing of the said PW.,

M.&TSUHDRI o o A :
Chorge: .ccuaed, at the times and places
set forth in the specificatmna, and:
‘during a time of wer between the. United

' States ' and Japan, did violate the. Laws

~ and Customs of “Is-r.

Spil: on or : abo,ut 18 July 1945, at ar .
near Osakc S Honshu, Jopan; -accused, %
member of the ;Fifteenth Area. Japanese
Army,. a8 ‘member. of & Japanese Military
Tribunal during:the, course.of.illegal, . -
unfeir, false and null . Iroceedings be-“
fore said tribunal™ dJ.d willfully end .
unlawfully adjudge and -determine certain
false and fraudulent charges and evidence
agalnst 2nd: Lt.. Robert Watson Nelson -and

‘trisl ond did- thereby oont.rlbute t.o the
unl"wful killmg of the sa:Ld P"’. S

Sp 2' On or: about. 18 Ju.ly 191;5, at or
near Oseke, Honshu, Japen, accused,:
member . of the Fiﬂteeptﬁ Area Japanese
Army, ss member of. a Japanese Military
- Tribunal during the course. of . A1legal,
unfair, false and null proceedings did
willfully and unlawfully sentence to
death 2nd It. Robert Watson Nelson and”
Sgt. Algy St.anlgy \ugunas, /‘merican PY,
without’ affording them 2 fair and lawful
trial end did thereby contribute to the
'~wfu1 ling of the said PW.

Sp 3¢  In or about the month of J uly
191;5, at or.nesr Osnkz, Honshu, Jepan,
accused, ‘member of the Fifteenth Area
Japa.nese Army, as member of a Japancse
Militery Tribunal did’ willfully end
unlawfully fail to perfom his duty as
a_tribunal menber and did neglect -to
provide a legal, fair and proper trisl
to 2nd Lt, Robert Wetson Nélson and Sgt.
Algy Stanley Augunas, Americen PW, and
did thereby contribute to the unlawful
killing of the said PW,

OGIYA r

Gharge. /‘ccused at’ the’ times and 2
places set. forth in the Specifications 5
end during a time of wer between.the -
United States and Japan, did v:.olat.e the
Lews and Customs of War. &

-

NG

NG

NG

- NG

»

G No

Gullt.y, i No
except the words- “illegel"
tfalse and' null", "and un-
lawfully" "felse and fraud-
ulent" end Yand lawful®,
the excepted words, not _

gu:’llt-y.

Guilty,. No
except the words- "illegal"
"false and null", "end un- -
lavfully", and "and Yawful,

- of the excepted words, not
guilty,

»

NG

Yes

(p 7, Uchiyama'et 7, Case #123)
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Sp 1: On or ebout<18 July 1945, at or NG
near Osaka, Honshu, Japdn, accused, :
member of the;Jﬂpanese:_‘ ift,eenth 'Area S5

said t.ribunal against. ’2nd ‘It . Robert-Watson
Nelson and Sgt. Algy Stanley Augunes, -
Ameéricen PV, did willfully snd unlewfully
present false. and fraudulent charges end
evidénce. aga:mst ~end did thereby.
contribute 4o the
the Suld Hw,

-

Sp 2: On or Pbout 18 July 1945, at or NG
near ‘Osaka, Honshu, Japén, accused,
 membér of the Japanese Fifteenth Area
Army, as prosecutor of a Japanese Military
Tribunsl during the course of illegel,
unfair, false and null:proceedings before
said tribunal against 2nd Lt, Robert:Watson
Nelson and Sgt. Algy Stanley Augunas,
Americen P, did willfully and unlawfully
request and obtain their sentence to .
desth and did thereby contribute to the
unlcwful killmg oi' the said P“I

Sp 3 50 or. about 18 July l9h5, 2t or NG
near Oseka, Honshu, Jr.pan, accuse,d, 5"
member of 'thé Japanese Fifteenth.Area.
Afmy; as prosecut.or of a Japanese Mili-
tery Tribunel did. willfully and unlaw-
fully request- .and .obtein from the Chief
of Staff of said Army his confirmation
and -\pproval of illegal, unfair, false
‘#nd null - proceéedings and sentence of .
desdth imposed upon 2nd. Lt Robert Watson
Nelson ind: Sgt. fl-y Stanley Augunas s
lmericen P, by 2 Jepanese Military
Tribunal and did . thereby. contribute to -
‘the- unlawful killing of the S“ld M,

Sp hes On' or qbout 18 July 1945, at or -+ NG
neer Yokoyama Firing Range, Senboku-gun,’
Osaka Prefecture, Honshu, Japan, accused,

as prosecutor of a Japanese Militery

Tribunal did willfully epd unlawfully
supervise and direct the illegal killing

of 2nd Lt. Robert ™atson 'Nelson and Sgt,

igy Stanley ’ugunas, American PV,

N!‘KA}L'[CHI _

Charge' ccused at the t.lmes arxi ‘ NG
places set forth in the speo:.ficet:.on,

and during 2 time of wer between the

‘United 'States and Jspan, did violate

the Laws snd Customs of Wor,

Sp Y.
nesr- tha Yokoyama Firlng:Range, Senboku-
gun,0saka Prafecture,- Honshu, Jepen, |

the zccused did willfully:and. unlawﬂully
order his subordinates; to idll.end thiough
‘their acts did unlawfully kill 2nd Lt,
Robert Watson-Nelson and-Sgt.:Algy
Stanley Augunas, tmerican P“’ Mk

* 6 8, Uchlyama ot 7, Case #123)

%

nlewful killlng ot -

On or about 18 July. 19h5, at or NG

Sl

-Guilty, No
except the words "1llegal"
"false and nullh, "willfully
and unlawfully"- end nfelse -
and fraudulent!, of the ex<
cepted words, not guilty.

: Guilty, ** No
except the words- "1llegal"
"false and null", end Mwill-
fully and unlawfully" of -
the excepted- words , not
guilty.

© 4
NG . ——
' : Guilty, Yes
except the words "w:.llfully
end unlewfully" and "and
direct",’
G Yes
~
Guilty, Yes

except the words "will-~
fully and unlawfully”, of
the excepted mrds, not
guilty..
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Charge: . Accused, at: the t.‘lmes and. places NG ; ; ‘G
set forth in the: specifications, and . ' laral T
during a. time of- war bBetween the United . - o ;e Nl
States and Japan, did violate the Laws : - :
“and. Customa of War. ‘

Sp AR Bet.ween 15 May 19h5 and 19 July C NG : NU
1945; at’ornear Osaka, Honshu;' Japan, e R Pk

' the accused; then Chief of ‘Staff of the -

Jépanese’ Fifteenth Area ‘Army, by his own -

acts-and the ‘acts of ‘his. subordinates

did willfolly and unlawfully permit

suthorize, direct and constitute illegal :
unfair, false:and null: proceedirigs agalnst <.

2nd Lt. Robert Watson Nelson end Sgt. : : 5

’\lgy Stanley Migunas, American PW, before ; :

a Japanese Military Tribunel end. did i X

thereby: contribute:to the unlawfnl kilhng :

of the said PW.. ;AN ¥r

Sp. 2: On or- about 18 July 19&-5, ab or - NG ' NG
“‘near- Osaka, -Harishu,* Japan, -accused; -then ! i '
Chief of Staff of the Japenese Fifteenth

Ared Army, by-his own acts: and. .the - acts

- of his- subordinates did willfully and

unlawfully spprove illegal, unfair, false

.end null proceedings and. sentence of

~death #gainst 2nd Lt. Robert Watson °

"Nelson and 'Sgtiv - Algy Stenley Augunas 3

American’PW, by a Japanese Military = .

Tribunal, ‘snd: did-thereby contribute to ; g
the unlawful kKilling:of the sa:ld M, - ' X

Fl

Sp. 31 On. or about 18- July 19h5, at or- NG . CGuilty,
“near Osake, Honshu, Japan, accused, except the words "will-
‘then Chief of Staffrof the. Japanese . - ; fully. and unlawfully",
Fifteenth Area Army, by his own acts 1{]legal? and "false and
and the acts of his subordinates’did - . nullv; of the extepted
willfully -end unlawfully order ‘executed words, not guilty.

‘an i1légal; unfair; false and null .

-senitence.of death imposed upon 2nd Lt, . IR R

Robert Watson Nelson® and Sgt. Algy Stanley

,'\ugunas, American ‘PW, by a Japanese Mili- : '

‘tary Tribunal and did thereby contribute , o
t,Q the unlawful killing of the. said PW.

'Sp h On dr about 18 July l9b,5, et or . NG, ' NG
‘hear- Osaka, - Honshu, Japan, accused, then

Chief of Staff of the Japanese Fifteenth

Area Army and then heving been- delegated

.by the Commanding General of seid Army

with the duty and responsibility to ° i v
review and approve or disepprove the. ‘

g proceedinga, findings and sentence by a
“Japanese: Militery Tribunal on certain - v

cherges against 2nd Lt, Robert Watson \

Nelson and Sgt. Algy Stanley Auguras, '
- -pmerican PW, did willfully and unlawfully

il end neglect to’take réasmable -

-measures .to afford a legel, fair, im- ~°

partial and sdequete review of the.pro-

ceedings against:said persqnhel and the

findings and sentence ‘against them and

the accused did- t.hereby eontribute to

the unlawful killing of the said PW.

(p 9, Uchiyama et 7’, Case 4123)
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3+ -Summary of the Evidence: - _ ; S

a, For tha~Prosechti6n:

‘_Tpé;Pro§eCutiqﬁffiLgd‘a.ﬁill of ‘Particulars in complisnce with an
o;d:ﬁ,of-t@eanmmlss1on¢é?This.Bill'of Particulars can be found in back of page 18
ol therecérds - . ...~ | Ly : ' '

oA t_he"'él':ét:i.figations‘;of. each of the accused are o interrelated
that 1t'1sgn§qgssary,ilniorder"to-give:proper continuity, to state the facts as
if ‘they ceme under one specification. The names of the accused in the instant
case.are underlined, . S0 ' Sl '

- Capture and’ Confinement :

. Second-Lieutenant Robert Watson Nelson and Sergeant /lgy Stanley
fugunes, members of the: United States Army rir Forces assigned. as navigator and
radid’operatbr‘bf.a United States Army bomber,  surrendered to the Kobe Police . -
after being shot down‘on ar about the 17th of March 1945-while on =. combat mission
over “the City.of Kobe,.Japan (Ex..13; 143 37, p 1; 28, Part I, . pl). The next ‘
day they were brought: to' the Osaka Kempei Tai headquarters vhere they were con-
fined in the 22nd ‘Army Unit Guerdhouse,. a component of the 15th Army (Ex. 28,

Part IV, p 1) for about two months and then in the middle of May were transferred
to the Osaka Military Prison.at Ishikiri (Ex. 6, p 2). Both Nelson snd Augunes
were kept 'in-separate cells and not teken out except for interrogation or air
raids (Ex.-28;:Part IV, p 6). At'the‘timg of cepture one of Augunas! legs wes
severely injured (Ex. 25, p3; Ex. 28, Part I, p 13 7xi'14). - ‘

- . -Y . ) - .
Prelimigary.Examination by the Kempei Tai:.

PP L The accused Yemenaka, the staff military end intelligence officer,
first interviewed Nelson on March 18 or 19, 1945 and at the same ‘time Augunas
was interviewed by Takeo Mori; the chief interpreter. Very little information
was obtained (Ex, 28; Part IV, p-l; Ex.. 6, pp 1, 2; Ex. 36, pp 5, 6). Shortly
thereafter on-orders of Yamanoka, they were reinvestigated (Ex. 6, pp 1, 2). ’
_Lt. Gen., Uchlyams ordered .an .investigation and report from the Kempei Tai (Ex. 6,
'p 1; Ex, 28, Part IV; p 1). Mori, -as ordered, went to the Legal Section of the
15th Army in April ‘1945 and obtained from Captéin‘ggg, the senior . staff officer
and next in commend to the:Chief of the Section, informstion to be obtained in
the further:interrogation of the flyers, Ono told Mori that the Legal Section
could not commence the prosecution of the flyers-until = report, together with
recomnendations of: the senior Kempei Tai.officer, had been received. Mori was-
instructeds by Captain Ono to. include In the report the name, age,.renk, brench,
family record, -civil record, army- career, decorations of each of the flyers;
their position in the plene and their duties in respect to bombing; their
conduct in respect to past bombing missions; the number of individusls in the
crew of -the plane, the number of missions and their tergets; and a detailed
account’of the bombing of Osaka ‘end Kobe from the stert of the mission to capture
(rx, 28, Part IV, p1). - =K

Detailed Interrogation by Kempei Tai:

Foe A few deys after receiving instructions from Captain Ono, Mori with
Saseki, members of the Kempei Tai; interrogated the: two flyers. After ob?alnlng
personal end militery history of each of the flyers, information wes obtained
that the duty of Nelson as nevigator wes to guide the plane by redar to the
terget; thet the duty of ‘Augunezs os radio operator was to contact the base and
other planes; that each had been on ten bombing missions of Japan; that both
had been together on the night incendiary raids of Tokyo on 10 March,- Osake on
1L March -and Kobe on”16 Merch 1945; ond that esch hed participated in the bo?blng
of ‘Yokohama, Hemsmatsu:end Nagoya during Jenuary and Febrasry of 1945. Meps :
were used in the interrogation of Nelson, end he gave, for each of the raids,
the place of deperture, the coursé and altitude of the plane, Informetion wes
obtained- that high explosive bombs had been used in December, January and
February 1945 on specific tergets such 'as the Nakajima *Mrcraft Factory; thgt

2 .
3 5

(p 10, Uchiyama et 7, Case #123)
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since February 1945 Gen.'L. May had announced that ‘incendiary bombs would.be used,
that’the targets- in-March 1945 were the horthern center.of the City of Tokyo and
for. Pseka and Kobe the center of the cify; that néither of the fliers had enything
to do with the dropping of the bombs or knew whether the targets were militar
installetions or private property.  Both were .told that numerous- civilians ha

been killed and much private property had been destroyed; and that under military
regulations all. .captured fliers-could be tried. Boeth fliers replied that they had
no knowledge where the bombs were dropped. or what. wes demaged, - They stated they
were not guilty of -any crime ahd that ‘they should be sent to a prisoner of wer
camp. Nothing was said;that if they were found guilty under’the military regula-
tions.that they mjight be sentenced to desth (Ex. 28, Part IV, pp 1-6; Ex. 25;

Bx. 27, p 2). - The 'next two days were spent in preparing documents and on the
third day the-interrogations were translated to Nelson end‘Augunds and’each signed’
with his name, ‘'rgnk and thumb print (Ex. 28, Part IV, :pp\2, 7; Ex. 27, p 25 R.'61),

‘Documents prepered and forwarded by Kempei-Tai:
- "The ‘final ‘documents prepared by the Kempéi Taji consisted of: - .-
(1) Interrogstion Report.of Lt.Nelson and Sgt. Augunas,.(2) List of "Articles
and Papers;;(3) Dispstch Record, (4) Index of Papers,: The Interrogetion Record
consisted of the: signed Interrogstion Report as heretofare sét out. The Dispatch
Record containéd a summary of -the facts contaired in’ the:Interrogation Record, a
recital of the facts’thet on pach of ‘these :air raids, Tokyo, Osaka, Kobe,

Hemamatsu ond.Nagoya, - there were no definite military targets, and as a result
of - these' air raids,numerous civilians had been killed: end much private property
had been: destroyed. It copcluded by steting that under.the Enemy Airmen's Act’
the fliers-were guilty of indiscriminate bombing (Ex., 27, pp 1, 2; Ex. 28, .
Part IV, p 7; see also Ex. 16). These records,  except the maps, were: sent to
the Intelligence Department of the Army (Ex. 27, p 1; ©x. 28, Part IV, p ¥
Upon: receipt of these reports warrants of arrest were issued, by order of General

Otahara; as » result of which Nelson and Augunas were moved from the 22nd irmy

.

Unit to the Osaka Military Prison in May of 1945-(Bx,:27, p L)y = |

Interrogat-ioﬁ_ and Investigation by Gener:’al Otahara--:

. ' On -of about the 20th of May 1945, .on orders of ithe Fifteenth .irea-
Army Heedquarters, Nelson and ‘ugunas were: interrogated by Maj. Gen. Otahara,
then.head of - the Judicial Section of the Fiftesnth ‘rea ‘rmy, with' the assistance-
of -Shimamura, clerk,of - the Fiftéenth Area Army Judicial Department, "nd Matsumoto,
‘an interpreter (Ex, 36, p;6; Ex, 10), First:was conducted the Detention Interro-
gation:of Nelson pertaining to:the name, ege, rank, etc, of the aceused. .t the
bottan of the Detention Form wes’a question, '"Have you anything to add to these
facts?" and Shimammra, the cletk; added, "At this point the prosecutar read to
the accused the findings of fact from the Dispatch Reports prepared by the
‘Kempéi Tai.” Also wos edded ‘the words, "The facts are true as stated." The
dispetch reports at this time were not read or. translated -to the Americans., The
Detention”Interrogation lasted about twenty minutes and at the -conclusion
Motsumoto, the interpreter, read to Nelson the contents of the witten forn,.
“and Nelson signed -his name and affixed his thumbprint. Nelson was then taken )
from the room and Augurias was brought in, and the procedurg used in his interro-
gation was essentially the same (Ex. 27, p 3). /fter the Detention Interrogation,
‘e pre~trial examination was conducted for each of the Americans (EX._27, PP 35 4)e
Otahera advised them that he would begin by questioning them about. violations of
militery law (Shimamura, Ex. 27, pp 3, L) and told both that.they must be accused
" of borbing civilizns and private property with impunity. Eac.:h'replied that such
. ‘bombings were not-intentional; that they.did not kmow that c:.v:l_'L.fLan houses were -
targets-or what wes damaged by thé air raids; and that neither did any bgmbtng
(EX. 269 pp 3, -b, 6:5 Ex, 27, pp 3, 43 R. 67;78)7?: '82)0 Th? crimm}l actes,
within the Dispateh Report of the Kempei Tai, consisting of five or six paggi -
were read znd explained to the “mericans (R. 82). Otahera questioned both fliers
" about the bombing of Nagoya énd’ Hamamatsu (3x. 27, P %). Generally the same
questions were asked and answers were received as heretofore set out, 1nvthe2)
interrogation of the Kempei Tai (Ex.-26, pp 3<6; Exi 27, gp 3-5; EX.t_lO, 1; )
Matsumoto, the interpreter, testified (Ebc.~-2§,_,pp L, %, 6 J that he 2t no tim
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read to the accused or approved the correctness of the notes .taken by the clerk
during the interrogation. Shimamura in his affidavit (Ex, 27, p 5) testified
that.a few days ‘after-the interrogation Qtahana from his and Shimamura's notes
dictated what purported to be the statements of Nelson and Augunas in narrative
form in the first person and attached, on Qtshara!s order, to the final recodrds -
of. interrogation two shéets of paper.of-the .same size on which only. the signatiires
and. thumbprints of -Nelson and Augunas appeared, with:the following words-added,
¥The above has been-read to the-defendants and has beén verified, -signed, -and ..
thumbprinted by theme" These reports were never shown to Nelson and Augunas nor -
were they ever read or interpreted to them;, nor were they 'signed by Nelson ‘and: -
hugunas (Ex. 27,:p 5),. In cross-examination Shimamura. testified ‘that the record-~
ed statement of Lt. Nelson was read to-him by the dnterpreter and Lt, Nelson 'and .
the: interpreter.both: :sighed  the dogument.. Furtheér, he testified thet nothing-in:
the contents. of General Obshara's report was, fzlse in any detail (R, 79).- .
Metsumoto: (Ex. B) end Shimamura (R. 77, 79) both testified that no force was
used in obtaining the statement and that General Otahara was ‘sincere in.his’ine
vestigation end wented to leern ‘the. true facts (Sée also Ex. 10, p 2). Twgnty =~
days ofter the final report of interrogation Oishara dictated to Shimamura and
he prepared a written opinion consisting of four or five pages.  After reciting
the personal mattérs pertaining to Nelson and Augunas, the document stated: the-
number of places' they had bambed: including 'Tokyo,: Oséka, Kobe, :Hamamatsu, and.
Nagoya. - In- separate .paragraphs it gave detailed accounts of the bambings of -
Tokyo, Kobe, and 0sazka and concluded that the fliers had bombed these cities
without aiming at. any definite militery terget, with the result-that numerous
civilien cesualtiés were inflicted and much.private property had been destroyed
(7x,.27, p'5)s In this opinion Otzhara concluded that Articles 2-and. 3 of the
Enemy Airman's fet (Ex. 16, p 8) had-been violated and that the extreme penalty
" should be imposed (R. 79). Japanese interrogation procedure wes substantially .
complied with by Japenese interrogators (Ex, 39, pp 18, 19, 20). - :

Approval of Otahera Oninion by Uchivama and. Kunitake's

: About ‘the ‘middle of June 1945 General Otahsra submitted: his written
opinion at a conference to Lt, General Uchiyams, the commander of the Fifteenth
Army: irea, end his Chief of Steff, Lt, Genoral Kunitake (Tx. 36, p 7). This
opinion is required to be submitted to the commander if it discléses that the
fliers! -zcts warrent major consideration, If the facts are not sufficient the
commender can direct that the flier be sent to the prisoner of war cemp end the
case be closed, If the commander's opinion is that the death penalty is justified,
it is necessary to obtain the approval of the War Ministry, before submitting the
case to a Militery Tribunal, No approval is necessery from the War Ministry if
it is the commander!s opinion that the sentence be less than death (%x. 5, p 2).

= Tt is customary for the commanding general and chief of staff to listen orally
to the probecutorts opinion (R. 137), - Otahara conferred with General Kunitake
who put his seal of approval on the opinion (Bx. 36, p 8), On the seme day
another conferencé was held at which Generals Otshara, Kunitake, and Uchiyama
were present, Otshara orally advised them of the information as heretofore set
out in the interrogetion reports. After a discussion in respect to the duties
‘of Nelson and Augunas and as to vhether a life sentence should 'be.recommerxled,
it wds determined that all crew members were a team and their purpose wes -the
‘seme end that a life sentence need not be considered in view of.the fact that
permission to deménd 2 death sentence had to be obtained from h:.Lgher headquarters
(Tx. 36, pp 9-11). - After Otahsra left, Uchiyams end Kunitake discussed whether
“thev would have to again submit & request to the War Ministry if the prosecutor's -
view was overthrown, a ntw view was given by the defense, and the defendants were
sentenced to death; Kuniteke and Uchiyems both relied on the statements glven
to them by Otahara, - Uchiysma read the record after the conference and thren put
his seal of approval on the report (Ex, 36, pp 9,. 12). : .

‘Approval bx.Hi@ef Headquarters: .

o . Otehara was instructed to take the opinion to General Hota, commander
of the Second General Army at Hiroshima, end the ar Ministry for approval (Ex; 3¢
p 12). Shimsmura accompanied Qtshara to the Wer Ministry.- ;Shinamra in his
affidavit stetes that Ono accompenged Otshara to Hiroshima,’but on cross=
examinstion testified there wére seversl occasions when Ono gccqmpanied QOtahara .
and he may have been confused. Onor about the 15th of June, the documma;gi}v:ish
approvals were forwerded to General Uchiysmg #ndt he signed his name end e

‘ 12, Uchiyzma et '?, Case #123) ot
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his seal to an order institutlng prosecutlon before a mlltary tribunal,. '\r;;glgn-
ment was prepared, signed with the official seal of General . Oﬁahara, and ‘sent to
_the mlitary tribunal (Ex. 27, p 55 Re 803 Ex. 39, pp 20, 217,

.Appomtment of Court a_r_xd Prosecut.ors-:

Eerly in July 1945 Gen. Uchlx appointed a milltqry tribunal con- -
s:.stlng of the accused Yamanaka as ‘presiding” Judge,. the accused Ono. as law ﬂembef 3
and the accused Matsumori as associate judge,  Otahara recommended Capt, Ono as '
the law mermber. Kunitake reco-mended Major Yamanaka and Lt, Matsumori, Yémanaka
was recommended - because he was an 1ntell:1geme officer and was Well adapted “to
know ‘conditions in. respect to air raids. Otehara’ recelved orders on the 12th of
July 1945 transferrlng him tothe Second ‘General . Army.( "He recommended on July 14 .
¢r: 15, 1945 that the- accused 0 Ogiya be appointed: prosecutor, Yamanaka, as: presiding
gudge set the dete of 'the trial on ‘or about the tenth of July “for the 18th: of July,
1945 (Exs 8, p 15 Ex. 36, pp 14-16). The written opinion of .Otshara was delivered
to the above members 'of the military tribunal shortly after they were appointed,
but nothing was given to Lt, Nelson and Sgte Augunas (Ex. 27, p 6). It i custom—
ELI'J for the judges to receive documentery evidence prior to the trlal 8o that they
gould study it (Ex. 36, pp .8, 155 Ex. 39, p 22) Japanese procedure provides = -
t,h'vt defendénts are: 1nformed of the date of the trial, it are- not. permtt.ed to '
i;'\_lk to w1tnesses or have defense counsel (Ex. 39, P 22). - :

3., Status of Otahar'a efter Jul;g 12, l9h5:

, Offlclally,,(}eneral Yamag Otahara's Successor, ‘was. chief ‘of the
Legc_l Section after 12 July 1945, and* apt. .Orio, his:next in command; ected as
chief of the Ilegal Sectlon vhen the chief of the Leg'tl Section was not ‘there
(mx, 36, Pp lk,-15; Bx. 39, pp 2,.3). After 12°July Kunitake complained to.Capt,
Ono" shout’ the delay in the trial (Ex, 36, pp 75 8y 157, "Although Otahara may not
ave been in Osaka during the whole period from 12; ;duly to 15 July. 191»—-(R. 29,
fhe.evidence is cléar as hereinafter set out that he perticipated in the:'case of
tt, Nelson and Sgt,. .Augunas after 12 July 1945, .Ogiye, a member of the Legal
Sectlon, testlfied that he still considered Otahara as the ‘chief of the Legal
Sect;on diiring the period after the 12th of July 191;5 ; that when he was appointed
' prosecutor on the'lhth or 15th of July 1945 he was told and instructed by Qtahara
that no further- mvestlgation was necessery; that.as the approval had been ob~ -
},ained from General Hata and the War Ministry to ‘execute these fliers he’ should
;ustr read the. indictment. and demand the death penalty, and that execution would
be by .beheading ot the Yokoyams flring range, In respect to the execution, Oglxa
further testified that Otahara said; "Chop their heads off }" end although he®
prot.ested he again confirmed: Ehls instruction. "No further protest was made by
Ogiya because Otahara was not-the’ bype of mah to 1lsten to protests by subordlnate‘

of e lower rank i 38, PP by 5). SRy

Preper t:x.on for Executlon prlor to Triel'

. on'er about the 15th of July 1945, Otahara ordered Shlmamura, the
clerk; t,o obtain detailed 1nstructlons from Capt. nno , to find a secret, desert,ed
place 2t the Yokoyama flrlng range for-the execution. Ono told Shlnl&xlura ‘hé had
elreedy secured permission to use this ‘place and- instructed him to see CGapt.
Nakamichi to obtain a person to accompany ‘him, ‘Chief guerd Ogawahara was ordered»
to - with him. These: {nstructions were carried out on the- 16th and 17th of
July 1945, and ‘three places for the execution were -selected, listed as to their
desirability. Shimamure on 17th of July 1945 reported to. Obahg;_g, left with him
-the. map. indicating the places selected, and reported to Ono that Otahara'was:given
the detailed report (Bx. 27, p 6).. Otahara s}e{lect;,g th;iﬁace O:fah ;-cr:c::iggobee ’
‘cause he had more. power and . mthority than Nakamic er :
gelected the dete gnd hour of the executlon (Bx. 38, ?p h). The prfson cornmander, .
et times,’ submits to the prosecutor. for approval the ta.me, place arnd dat,e of -
execut:.on. - The Cdrmneniing General or h1s subord:.nates can make this det.ermin'\ or
(Ex. 39, p 23) On_the.afternoon of the 17th of July 1945 Nakemichi as pnsor;n
com'rxpnder told’ Ogawahara, -one.of the chief ja:lers that two prisoners’ were g;:li g,
to be executed ‘and ordered ‘him to,go with Matsui and Sando, early on the mor ng
of the. 18th of July, to the Yokoyama fa.ring ground and dig two holes apd have

i
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them ready by 1300 hours. A1l three left the 'qilitery prlson ‘at 0600 the day. ok
the trial and proceeded. 0, ‘the place of execution where they dug two graves end
awaited the arrival of “the: execublon party, - Maisu:x and ‘Sando served as two of
the executioners,’ Nekmchi on , the ‘seme morning selecte& Inoue, ‘2 .condermed ~
thief then: incarcerated in the’ m;,fiitary Irison, to perform’ religious services
at-thé execution; - ‘and’ selected “Matsuda as' & third execubioner. Nakam:tchl _
further, on ‘the: morning ‘of 18 Juiyil9h5, ered Tnoue and Matsuda to wait in
t;he ‘anteroomat the- plaee of tr s for a t.ruck to. be parked- outside
ghe ‘courtroom during ‘the trial for, the

purpose of - tremper’cln‘g‘t‘he' vietimg and
the executdon détail: to the: place of - 'execution (Exi 30; Pert I, p 3i . 3L, pas’
Bxe 32, .p 2; Ex, 33, p/25 Bx. 34, p-1l). Mateuda testified that ‘he heard Nakemichi
gay before going to- court that Otahara told him that the . ‘execution would be by
Beheading if. the fliers were sentenced.to death, (Ex. 31, p 2).’ Meri, the inter- .
preter; testlfled that “there‘was & rumor that’ Otahara went to.Tokyo to. obtain
ipécial permiss:Lon to decap:.’c't’ce ‘the i‘liers, and “thern was suddenly t,ransferred
é& 96). Yamagam. testified that he heard at- ‘Sugamg Pfison from Nekamichi' and
ghief guard Sugita ‘that beheadlng hzd -been. decided upon-before exXecution and =~
Qtahara gave the order to-behead (Ex, 39, p 10), ‘0h the day of the trial, General
Bchiyama was not in Osaka, haw.ng left about four days? ‘previous on’ & tour of. -
inspection and he ‘did not ) w until 1700 on 18 ‘July: 1945, Uchiyama prior ... "
to leaving, had- mstructed {unltake to’ approve the executlon order, ollow no
dppeal, if the fliers were iound guilty of the offenses charged, and if no new
i‘acts were developed at the trzal. ,Uchixama further instructed (unn.teke that
the execution should be carried-out: immediately as it was against bushido® to
allow the defendents to live ﬂi‘ter being sentenced to death (Ex. 36, ‘pp 18, 23)

Tr:l.al' ! ;_
The “trial of- Nelscn and Augunas was held in.a courtroom at’ Os"kﬂ:‘
Gestle and ‘bégan about 1000, and was concluded about 1130;or. 1200 on 18 July
Y945 (Ex. 27, p 73 Ex, 8).  Pérsons present, in addition-to the judges, were
I:c. Ogiya,’ prosgcutor; Sgt. Mori, interpreter; Shimamura, a civilian clerk; =
L,t Nelson, . Sgt.'Augunas, trid two guards whose names are not known, Shirmnura, '
s ordered by Ono’or a, brought to the trial. blank executlon forms (Ex. 27,
oo 6, 7, 935 R.“_E 87)s ALl records pertaining.to’ the trial were. destroyed after.
the war by orders of the War Ministry (R. 80), and. the detells set out” herem are
mainly taken from the testimony of Shimamura (Ex, 27, pp 7, 8, 9) and Mori .
(Bx. 28, Part II, pp 1-6). _Pregiding Judge’ Yamanaka opened: the trisl and esked’
each defendﬁnt hlS name, oge; unit, address, birthplace, and occupation before ..
tering the service (Ex. 27, p. 7; Ex, 28, Part II, p 15 Shmamura testified
agct after the interrogetion; of Yamanska thet Opiya zsked the military tribunal
to examine the sccused, and Capt. Ono, the law member, first stated to the de--
fendants that they were accused of participating in the boimbing raids on Tokyo 0
Osaka, and Wobe which résulted in the desths of many civilians end destruction
of rmuch oroperty, and deménded a yes or no answer as to vhether or not they
part1c1pated in- the'raids. Both defendants answered yes (E:x. 27, p. 7). _Mori,
the interpreter, testified ‘that the charges against Nelson =nd Augunas were ‘
steted by Ogiya in his opening statement (Ex, 28, Part II, p 1) and-such state~
ment wes translated- (R. 91). Ono, after the. prose.cutor's statenent, 1nterrogeted
Nelson about thirty minutes and fugunas about. ten minutes, During the 1nter;_;oga-
tion he looked at the documents previously prepared by various units of the °
Fifteenth Area Army. Mord téstified that no parts of the docurients’ were trans-—
lated; by him into Engllsh but Ono showed both Nelson and Augunas their signatures
and asked them if their’ stetement.s were true; and they answered yes. He further
testified that all’ questions and answers of the judges weré translated (=x. 28,
Part: II, pp 3-53 R, 92), Shimamura testified that the  defendants were not shown
their signatures and the documents were not translated, but that the substance
of - the Kempei Tai interrogation reports and pre-trial examinatlon reports aere
stated by.Ono to the accused, -Oné. then asked each of the accused if they had
emybhing to say and gave them a chance to explain. Each replied that it was true
end that they had nothing further to say about th:hrelzorti (&Ex. 27, gwg; 1;; 80).
The followi testimony .of--Nelson and Augunag at the trisl was in an
questions o;'lgCapt. Ono "(Ex. 27, pp 7, 8; Ex. 28, Part II, pp 1-6). Both testified
as .to their family background,, personsl-history: amd military history, and thot
each had been on; f,en,air* rmds of Japan, Nelson 'steted-es. rlavlgator he used
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radar equlpment navagation maps, and led &he planes stralght to the. bOﬁblng-target
. ﬁugunas stated, as a radio operator, he communicated with the base and gave first °
aid to crew menbers.‘ Nelson testified in 'the air raids .on ‘Japan from December - .
194L until February 1945 high: explosive bombs were used:ard- targets. were, specific,
such.as aireraft factories; arsenals, ‘eteq’ (R. 92 reftects that the: Speelflc,:
factorles stated. in Ex; 28, Part II, p 2-wers “bombed:" prior to March:of- 1945) ..

elson further testified as to the dates, tlme, Place of departure; course, alti-
tude, time of arrival, direction of- approach in-the Tokyo, Osaka, and Kobe air"
reids of March 1945 (Seée also/Ex: 7, p 25 Ex. 8. pp 1, 25 and Bx, 64.p 3). +Nelson
elso testified that incendiary rather than high: exp1051ve ‘bombs were used in the.
air raids-on theése thrée cities; Ono. asked’ in connection with the air raid: on e
each city, "What was’ the'tqrget°" -and ‘Nélson réplied that all he was told ot the
briefing was the cenber of the éity. VAth regsrd:-to-each*raid’ Ono “informed Nelson
that many ‘eiviliens’ “had ‘been. killed. and ‘much ‘private.property hed- been' danaged
He thén asked him uhat he'had. to say ‘sbout, it, ‘and Nelson replied that since He
had no knowledge as. to vhat ‘wes boribed “or: what the results-had been there wis
nothlng he could say, Nelson dlso admitted bl ing: Hamamatsu, Nagoya, énd other:
cities,, ‘ugunas' interrogetlon was .much shorter and: his ‘angwers were- substantldlly
the same as-those glven by Nelson on the same questions .(Ex; 27;:pp 7, 8; Ex, 28, -
Part II, _pp 1-6). Ogi ya (Exi 7, p 2) testlfled that . at the:trial Nelson.stated A
25 2 defense, that When he bombed Japan he ‘was .obeying the orders of his superior: .
officers, The follow1ng documentqry ev1dence was introduced and considered . by
the court in deternmining 1ts sentence, - - 3

: ' N B " ‘Kempei Tai-Documents: (l) Inberrogatlon Reports of Nelson
and ﬂugunes (2) Dispatch Report,.(3) List of Artlcles and Pepers ef NelSen and
Augunas, (45 Index to Papers. ) . ; :

b = - b. -Fifteenth Army'Tribunal Documents- (l) Wﬂrrants of ﬁrrest
for NeISDn and Augunas, (2) Report of Detention Interrogation of:Nelson and,
Augunes, (3) Warrants for Detention of Nelson and Augunas, (L) Pre-trial Interroga-
tion Reporb of Nelson end Augunas, (5) Written Gplnlon of Otahara, '(6) Letter of-
'inqulry (Atteched were Approvels of Sgcond Genmeral rmy.and War Ministry), (7)-
Letter transmitting 211 Documents to Gommander of Fifteenth Area Army (All docu-
fents above: enumerated were attached), (8) Fifteenth Area Army. ComrwrﬂEr'q Order
Instltutlng Prosecutlon, (9) irreignment Order of Otahara. _

' e - Nelson and ﬁugunes‘were not pernltted defense counsel, whlch from
the ev1dence, 13 1n eccordence with Jcpﬂnese law, Further, it appears that the .-
and che on March’ 15 and 16 1945, Matsumori,- the. 955001ate Judge, asked no
questions (Ex, ‘28, Pert II,- p 6). Ogiyd mede a short 01051ng statement (Ex. 28,
Part II, p 65 Ex. 27, p 8) in #hich he deminded the death penalty. The request
-for theideath penalty was never ‘translnted: during the proceedings (R. 93, 97).
The" court recessed at 11° otclock d' in 10°or 15 minutes returned with the verdict
‘and sentence (Ex. 27, p'8; Ex.-28; Part II, p.7). .Shimamura further testified
‘that the trial vas fair in comparison with a Japenese.trisl, ‘that it was customary
‘to try’ cases. from pepers: and reports and’ without ‘Wktnésses or defense counsel

(R, 81, 85, 86), , Yamagemi (7x, 39, pp 23, 24; 25, 28, 29) sets out the procedure
for trial and it enpears ‘that this proceduré was. substqntlally complied with at
“the trial of Nelson and hugunas.- On pege 29 and 30°he states thet .the .triel was
—unfair in that the graves wére dug before the -trial, the bodies were buried at - A
the ‘secluded place with no merkers, He further testlfled (R¢ 139) that under
- ‘Japanese ‘military law thet this military tribunal had authorlty to toke judicial
‘notlce thpt Kobe and Oswke hcd been’ bombed extenslvely.‘ ) z .

Sentence' 28 ? _; i . i o

At the conference of the menbers: of the military tribunal in deter--
mining the verdict and sentence, the legal officer flrst explains whether ‘the
“verdict: should beroullgy or not guilty and gives his reasons, If he considers .
.the verdict guilty he expresses hls opinion as to what the penalty should be.,
Next, the associate judge, and; Last, the presiding judge express orally their
1ndependent opinions. . Usually: the latter two refer .to.the opinlon of the legal
officer and rely on-his opinion,: Judges have 2 Tright :to :exercise an 1ndependent
judgment in determlnlng the verdict and sentence, -but’ in pctual practice they
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‘follow the opinion of the central authorities, "Kuniteke testified that he didn't .
know. if the members of the court would be censured for not following the recommend-
ation of the centrel emthorities because that problem. had never been presented ;
(Exe: 39, pp-2k, 295 Ex,.36, p 475 R. 137). - At the conference of the judges in -
the Nelson &nd Augunds case each woted for the death penalty (Ex. 11). This.
conference or recess-lested sbout ten or fifteen minutes and the judges réturned

to the courtroom at about 11:30, : Yamaneka announced-to the deferidants that they

~ had been found guilty of ‘all ¢riminal facts and that they were sentenced to death,
Ono explained that they were found guilty under military lawof ‘the Tokyo, Osaka, -
and Kobe: air raids:in Merch 1945, .and-as a result many civilians were killed -end -
mch private property destroyed.. He. further stated that they would be executed.
according to militery regulations (Ex. 6; Ex. 8; Ex. 27, p 8; BEx. 28, Part 1T, p 7)
This—statement was translated .and Nelson vigorously protested that their acts were:
ot in violation of International Lew or military law, but were according to orders
from their superior officers. and ‘they had:no official responsibility in regard to
the ‘bombing policy of the United States (Ex. 27, pp 8, 93 Ex. 28; Part II, p 8). -
Mori (R. 94; Bx. 28, Part II, p ) testified that the fliers were found not guilty:
by the :eourt of the air-“raids from December 1944 to February 1945 and theé ei ;
raids on Tokyo, the first charge, but were found guilty of the second end third
cherges, the bombing of Osaka and Kobe, respactively. Throughout the proceedings.
of the military tribunal Qtaliara was present in the building in which the trial’
was held (Ex..27; pp 12, 13), Tumediately efter the trisl Ogiya reported the
outeome to QOtahara (%Ex. 38, p '5)s At'noon that,dey a farewell party was given in
honor of Otshara (Re. 29; Ex. 38, p'5)e .= .= . Zaly o BT

Approvél of the péﬁﬁbié;ntéﬁcef e

_ ‘Inmediately after the proceedings Ono ordered Lt. Miniemi to be -
present at the execution as medical officer. Yemaneka reported to-Kunitske that-
no new evidence had been presented and that the defendants accepted the prosecu-
tion's cherges against them (Ex. 29, Part II, p1l; Ex, 36, pp 17, 18, 19). 4t
dbout 12230 Ogiya. delivered to. Kunitake an execution order, which had ‘been drafted
during the noon hour by Shimamura, and after reading the ‘transcript and conferring
with Ogiya, Kuniteke placed his seal on a duplicate copy and had Uchiyama's ad-
jutant put Uchiyama's seal on the originel. The execution order stated the date
of the execution-but not that the method was by beheading becaunse that would be
unlawful (Ex, 27, pp 95 10;.Ex. 36, pp 20-25; Ex. 38, pp 6, 13, 14). The command-
" ing general is required, under regulations; to examine the records before order-
ing an execution but under Jcpanese custom, if the evidence is the same as had
been previously submitted, the execution may be ordered without a complete examin-
ations The comending general “can reduce the sentence but not order a re-trial,
Since’ the commanding general hes already approved the death sentence prior to
trial, it is not customary’that h¢ reduces the senténce after trial to life im=-
prisonmeny or less (®x. 39, pp 26, 27; R. 137, 142), '

Execubtion:

- At ebout 1300 on 18 July 1945, Nakamichi received the execution order
from Ogiya and the execution detail assembled and departed by truck from Oseka _
Castle to the Yokoyama firing ground and arrived there about 1430. Just prior--.
to thé departure, according to statements made by Nakamichi to Yamagami (Bx. 39,

p 10), Otahara told Nakamichi to "Do it splendidly" and "Do it with courage" end
Otehara declared that if he had not been transferred he would have shown then
how perfeetly it could be done. Shimamura (Ex. 27, p 10) and Metsudo (R. 108,
-109) did not remember apy statement made by Otahara at the truek prior to its
departure, Under the supervision of Ogiya as prosecutor, Naksmichi ordered the’
‘guards to. decapitate Lt. Nelson and Sgt, Augunas with swords, Guard Sando struck
the neck of Lt. Nelson with a sword twice but failed to sever his head -complete~
1y, vhereupon Nakemichi ordered guerd Matsuda to shoot Lt, Nelson. In cozpliance .
with this ordery Mstsuda shot Lt, Nelson twice through his heads Guard Matsul
struck Sgt. “ugunas once with 2 sword but failed to sever his heed completely,
whereupon Nakamichi ordered Matsuda tc shdot Sgt. Augunas., In compli?nceuwith
this order, Matsuda shot Sgt. Augunas once through the head. The bodies were
buried in en unmarked grave 2t the plece of gxecution., A1 pgrsonnel present

were instructed by Ogiya and Nakemichi to msintain absolute secrecy ebout the
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incident (Ex, 7, P 3; Ex."9, p 23 Ex. 27, p 10; Ex. 28, Part IT, 'pp 9-1k4; Ex,~29,"
Part ITI, pp 1, 2; Fx, 30, Parts I and II; Ex. 31; Ex. 32; Ex, 33; BEx, 3k; Ex, 35,
Part II), ,The place of execution was in a secluded spot (Ex. 30; Part I, p 4).
Ogiya -testified that the second sword cut of Nelson was high on the back of the”
head and was about two sun long and’one-half sun deep. (Ong sun equals 1,19 in.).
The first cut was lower on'his neck, ' Augunas was cut below-
‘sun long and not very deep. He further testified that after
ported to Otahara that:the beheading had not been a complete success and Otahara
replied that was not. good (Ex. 38, p.7). At 1900 on the night of the l8th of - ~
July, Kunitake went to the residence of Uchiyama and reported to him among other -
things the facts concerning the trisl, execution and burial of thé fliers (Ex. 36,
pp 253.26). On the morning of July 19, 1945 Mrami reported to Ono that the -
execution had been carried out by beheading and then by shooting and ‘was told to
record the cause of death on the death certificate as "execution by shooting
(%%, 29, Part III, p 1). Minami on cross-examination (R. 100) testified- that the
two fliers died as a resylt of the shooting. On the 19th of July 1945, Yemagami
arrived in Osaka to-assume the position of chief of the Legal Section and was
told: by Otahara that. the matter.of Lt. Nelson:and Sgt. Augunas was completed

(8x, 39, p k). A few days after the trial the clerk, Shimamura, prepered the
record of thé proceedings of the tribunal.and the report of the execution and -
secured the necessary signatures (Zx., 27, 'p 11}, Uchiyama ordered Yamagami on '
or about the 23rd of August 1945 to exhume, cremate,; and rebury the remains of
Lt. Nelson end Sgt. Augunas, Pursuant *o this order, under the direction of
Ogiya, their bodies were cremated at_the place of execution and were buried in
two wooden boxes at en unmerked spot on the edge of Sanadayama military cemetery,
Shimamura; Matsui, Matsuda, Senda, and a few other guards, assisted Ogiya in

this sttion (Ex. 7, pp 3, 43 Bx. 27, p 12; Ex, 38, p.7; Ex. 39, pp 7, 8)¢ Ogiye
was: later questioned by Ono and Otshara as to whether any sword marks remained
on the bones-of the. fliers ofter cremation (Ex. 38, pp 7, 8): ’

Concealment: - .
LI ' After the terminction o'f.‘"é‘z:e‘"wer, Kunitake read the Potsdam Declara-
tion, snd according:to his. testimony, in order to protect Uchiyama, he called 4
. conference ‘where it wes decided to conceal the facts and report that Nelson and
. Augunas had died in a bombing raid, FKunitcke ordered Yamsgami to notify all
" persons ‘connécted with the case to so state if they were questioned. Uchiyama
was 'not: told of this plan of. conceilment until the first part of December 1945
(mx. 36;-pp 28, 29, 305 Ex. 39, p 9). Kunitake (Ex. 36,'p 28) oand Yamagami -
(Exi- 39, p 7) both indicated that this conference wes held before Uchivama gaveé
the order to exhume’znd cremzte the bodies: Pursuant to that order faise written
statements were ‘given by Kunitske; Otaharty” Yamanaka, Ogiya, Nakemichi, Mori, -
Shimamuray Matsui,-Sanda, Matsuda, Minaniy and Taniguchi (Ex: 1, 2, 4, 5, 53 7,
7, 28, 29; 30, 31, 32, 36, 37): Some of these statements were introduced in’
evidence, but in most instances’ a later and.correct statement ‘wes ‘introduced,
About  the tenth of December, Uchiyesma attended a conference of former rPerp§ers g
of ‘the staff ond Kunitake advised that it weos:the opinioh of the Dempb}l;za.bion.
Ministry that the concealment plan was unwise, and instructions were given by -
the Centrel District Demobilization Heslouarters to report the facts. | g'c_:.i._llx:ﬁm, )
who- Was present . et,this meeting, agrocd bhat the concealment plan wes unwise, -
and gave instructions that the ‘plan for concealment be cancelled andftngt all
individuals tell the truth (Ex. 37, p 13).. Uchiyams in his statement.given on
. the 17th of December 1945 (Ex. 5) gives the facts in the case accurately except
that: he testified that the execution was by shooting and does not mention the
beheadings, . Mori testified that in Sugamo during March 1947 that Uchiyems was -
surprised the fliers were beheaded (Ex,. 28, :Pert III, p 2; Rs 92). Uchiyama

‘also asked Yemagami in Sugemo what.he khew about the beheading and stated that

“““he had not.heard anything about the beheading.officially (®x.: 39, p 14).

Fxhibit 16, Fnemy Airmen's Act: '

~

(Tt should be noted that the page humbers’ hereinafter Set out refer
to pages-of. the Exhibit). Various orders, regulstions, proclamations end mili-
tary léw, pertaining to. the trisl of enemy airmen alleged to have violated :m-d .
ternational law and applying to verious.commands at d:._ﬁ“erenb-c.iates » ere inclade
within this Exhibit, - Secret Order 2190 {p 2) and the Army Military Law (p &),
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vhich-was attached tot the "Communication of the Handllng of .Captured Enemy Airfen
(p 3), as an exemple, appears to be the foundation and anthority of subsequent -
orders, regulations and proclamations.” A regulation, ‘dated 11 February 1945.

(p 18, 19, 20):'gives the Fifteenth Area Army, the commard involved. herein, the '
authorlty to establish a Military Discipline Tribunal which .shall enforce militdry
kegulatzons pertalnlng ‘tothe punlshment ‘of “enemy airmen as- ‘p801f18d4_1:the
feneral Commander of the Deferse. - This. latter regulation appears on page 8 and -
is ‘sabstantially the same as the "Army: Milltery Law" (p 4). - Certain regulatlons,
p 13, 15, of the First General: Lrmy, are-included within the exhibit. It has been
noted from the CertlfiCﬁte, p:12, that the-regulations: pertaining to the same.
gubject matter of the Second General Army, .the higher. command of ‘the Fifteenth"
Area\érmJ, were destroyed and ‘its. reguletlons were: the -sameé as the First General
Army. :The regulations appearing on p 137is substentially the same as the "Military
Law" (p 4)..- The second regulatlon, p:15,. gives the ‘rea Army Military Tribunal
jurisdlctlon éver enemy eirmen -eaptured by the irea Army. It should further be
noted that the Second Arniy!s Military Tribunal regulations were distributed in
July 1945 (p 12). ‘In the instent case the alleged zcts of indiscriminate bombing ;
pccurred in March 1945 and the trial for said offenses was held on the 18th of -
July 1945. It therefore appears that the. reguletlons of .11 February 1945 (p 16,
l9, 20) end -the "Milltery Law Concerning "Air Rajds" established by the -Ggneral -
Commander of - the Defense_ere applicable regulatlons. _Appliceble, herein, are:

also the "Proclamation-of the Commendér. in Chief, General’ Defense Command,! P, 6,
end Army Secret..Order No. 1289 (p 1l). The/Milltery Law (p-8) provided ﬂmﬂt it
would apply to.ell.enemy airmen:who raid Japanese territory apd that’ punlshnent
would be meted out to all- enemy sirmeén who cerried out bembing; strafing a and’ other
pcts which' inflict casualties on civilians and demage fo prlvbte property which
has .no military. 51gn1ficnnce, except -for unav01dﬂble cases, bombing end styrafing
pon-military ebjectives; any atrocious, brutal acts which disregard humanity.
Peath, by.firing squed, was provided es the ounlshment, but this, according to
01roumstances,'could be changed to imprisonment for life or for not less than

10 years, ~The. regulatlons under this law, (p-18, 19, 20) provided for @ & Wlitary
Trlbunel of three judges nominated hy the Commander of the Fifteenth Xreu Army;
that .the judges will be two .combatant officers and one légal -officer, and thet -
the Chief of the Tribunal or Commender of the Fifteenth Area Army may withhold

the execution of military punishment. Tt is further provided (p 2) that the
reguletions on special court-martials of the ‘rmy Court-Martial Law will apply.

. _ Other Exhibits Inbroduced:

Exhlbits 3L and B' Photographs of tbe names of Nelson
and fugunes scratched on the plester at the police statloh i
of Kobe, dJapan.

Exhibits 3C to Gt Photographs of the nlace of burlal
and charred remalns of Nelson and .; ugunas.

) Exhlblt 13: Serv1ce Records of 1t. Nelson ﬂnd Sgt. ’ugunaS.

Bxhibits 17 to 2L, inclusive: Personzl and military
histories of each of the accused, :

‘Rebutbal IR L et

Jemes ,B. Lynd Ccpt., WP, GHG Chlef Oskr ke Brench SC:P Legal
Sectlon, testlfied that”he had Japanese euthorltles meke . survey in connection.
with the damsge done during the air reid on. ‘Osaka and Kobe. The witness could
not, testify what was damaged except from his ‘information eources. This informa-.
tion was obtained from memory.snd from questioning people. »itness requested the
informstion on ‘iugust 15, 1947, and. it was produced iugust 15, 16, and 17, 1947
(R. 257-260 and stztements-on %Tx, 30 to 43, 1nclusive) Based upon 1nformatlon.
obtained from talking. to people and+observation,: this’ witness testified thet
industries in Osaka and Kobe were in every ward and ku and in each section of |
the city;. that fifty percent.of the: homes destroyed were combined home-and—factory
and that'he was not told vhether. the. home - factories- mede commodlty goods or war
materials.. Witness identifled seyeral maps reflecting the damage to Osaka and
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Kobe in the eir raids of March 13 and 14, 1945 (R. 251, 260, 261). Txhibit=40 is
a map of Osaka showing military installations bombed, A statement on the exhibit
reflects that wards wherein military installations were installed were not severe-
iy damaged, FExhibit 41 is a map of Oszka indicating the location of the largest
industries doing work for the army and navy on March 13, 1945, Exhibit 42 is a
map- of OSaka indicating sixty of the'largest’industries.in Osaka, Exhibit 43 is’
2 1list showing 32 out. of 207 factories destroyed or partially damaged in-the air
raid of March 13 and 1k, 1945.. (See also R. 255, 256). = - |

b, - For the Defense:

- " The -defense .introduced into evidence affidavits from residents of -
Osaka (C 1-48) &and Kobe (D 1-16) for the purpose of showing:that -these.cities

were bombed-indiscriminately, From these affidavits it appears that in the raids
of March 13, 14, 16 end 17, 1945 many shrines, hospitels and private property

were destroyed and thet a large number of people, non-combatants, .were killed.

The affiants in some of these affidavits testified that many of the areas bombed
vere commercial and residential sections of the ity .end that there were no factor-
ies or military targets. One affidavity {C-13) the affiant testified that approxi-
metely 100 out of 1000 homes destroyed were family factories in the area in which
he lived, Other affients testified that some factories were' destroyed in the area
in which they lived but these in number were small in comparison to the loss of
othor private property. o

: Tadao Fukukeri, a withess for the defensz, identified Exhibit E, an
official record of June 1945 which lists in the city of Osaka the following prop-
erty destroyed in the eir reid of March 13, 14, 1945, 2

Hospitals 21 totally destroyed; 7 partiéily deamaged
Doctors! offices - 416 totally destroyed; 9 pertially dameged
Dentists! offices 297 totally destroyed, 4 partially damaged

The witness further testified that in certain sections of the city, no factories
were destroyed: &and in other sections factories were destroyed (R, 163-167).

' Ryiuchi Ozaki, a witness for the defense, idéntified Exhibit F,
information teken from official records, which lists by sections of the city
that 111 schools were demaged or destroyed in the air reid on Osaka on Merch 13,
1, 1945, - o oy ) .

‘ : Nebutsuga Shindo, a-witness for the defense, ie;tified from a survey
that 36 shrines, 268 temples and 261 churches,. a total of 567, were totelly or
partially ‘destroyed in Osaka in the aif raid of Merch 13, 1h, 1945 (R. 170-173).

. " Akira Harukidenij a witiiess for the defense, identified his affidavit,
Exhibit’G; which states that he assisted in the interrogation of Nelson and
Kfugunas, twice at the Osaka Kempei-tai headquerters, on or .cbout 18 and 19 Merch
1955; . On the first ocersion Major Ysmanake questioned them in reference to mili~
tery operations and ‘the’ fliers did not- give satisfactory answers, The following
day the interrogators were the witness, Shimizu and Masamoto. Nelson stated in
the briefing they were told to bomb Oszke and the Kobe sectors in respect to the
pir raids on Osake and Kobe respectively. In the briefing for each of these
missisns no military target.wes mentioned. Nelson traced-the route- and course
for each air raid on meps. . Augunas stbted to the witness thet after Generel Le
Yoy had.been transferred to the Pacific theater he heard a rumor that the bombing
of Japan would become more and more fierce (R. 173-175).

o Exhibit H, a telegram from the War Department to CINCFE, was intro-
duced in evidence by the defense, This exhibit, taken from officiel recor@s,
states -that on the air raids on Osaka on 13, 14 Merch 1945 and Kobe on 16 énd 17
March 1945 the terget wes the urban area for each city: The exhibit further .
states: that incendiary bombs were used in each of the air raids.

, Tﬁe defeénse objected and the prosecution concedes that there is an
honest difference of opinion (R. 156, 236, 237) to a pbrtion-of the translation

.

(p 19, Uchiyama et 7, Cése #023)

.Ig._ E‘ {:IEEZE




of Army SeQ(ep;Order 1289,'Exhibit,lé;'p.ll, issued by the Vice uinist4£ of W&y
end the Sub-Chief of the General Staff, dap§Q 21vE?bruary 1944, . which States:

"Therefore, it'is difected that the central suthorities
-be contacted thoroughly beforehand in‘such cases, end
_also that the execution of ¢capitel:punishment-in such
cases be withheld until-instrictions are received from:.
the central authorities,n S VR s

v

2

The defénse introduced’in eévidence, Exhibit I, a translation of Secret Order 1289

which statés, in respect to thet portion in dispute, the following: . '
nIt is desired thet the central mithorities be adequately:
“informed in advance, and thet furthermore, in case capital
punishment is ‘cohtemplated, instructions be awaited from

the central authorities" (Underscoring supplied). -

Without conceding-the mcefiracy of Exhibit I, as distinguished from the ohe here-
tofore introduced, the prosecution did mot object to. the introduction of Exhibit
I. 'The prosecution stated at :the time it was introduced-that the translation” &
previously submitted had.been prepared by ATIS.and that they would submit at a
proper time a' translation of Secret Order 1289 prepsred by the language expert’
pf the War Ministry trials (Ry. 237). This translation was never introduced in
evidence ] & : : '
i . - . SIS T e e ALY
. Junicki Banno, & former Lt, Col, af the.Judicial Section of the
Japenese "Army-at the War Ministry, testified for the defense. The gist-of his
pertinent testimony, in respect to Japanese lew applicable for the-trial of
ceptured enemy airmen, is a2s follows: '

g : - Enemy Airmen!s /ct: Under the Enemy Airmen's Act, enemy airmen

- are tried by a military discipline tribunal, The procedure used before this
military tribunel is the same as the special courtemertial mrocedure as set
but in the Japsnese Court-Mprtial Menual (Ex, 16,.p 2). General and special
courts-mertial procedure is esteblished by legislation enacted by the Diet and.
the Military Discipline Conference is estzblished by-Executive Order under the
- Emperor's command’ authority (R. 183). ~The President, under the special court-
martial procedure; is the same os the Americen appointing authority and ?he
Chief Judge is the same as the President of an American-Military Commission °
(R, 176). The provisions of the Military Tribunal Regulstions for Captured
Enemy ‘irmen, Pros, BEx, 16, originated with Vice Minister of War, Lt. Gen.

Hyotoro Kimura (R,‘l77)e

: = The tentral suthorities, who must give directions before proceeding
in the case, refer to 'the Wer Minister and Chief of Staff., A request for approvel
to proceed must be submitteéd to the Wer Minister before trial end not after trial.
kpproval of the central authority is,nop?negessary'after the -verdict has® been
rronounced and the-defendant has been sentenced’ (R. 177, 178; see EX. 16, p ll),
It is not required, in cese of a death sentence, that 2 firing squad be ,used but
one man’ shooting the defendant is-sufficient (Ry 179, 188, 192; see Ex, 16, p 8,
frt. 4). . Under Article 3 the commerding generel cean reduce’ the sentence and.
under /rticle 5 he can suspend the sentence (R. 1933 Tx. 16, p 8). The Emperdr
is the only individual that can commute the sentence (R, 182). :

Rules of Special Court-Martial Procedure applicable to Military
Discipline Tribunals: A Jepanese officer would be tried under»spe01§lAcourt-
martisl procedure in the same mdnner as a captured American. Frov131ons of the
Jepanese Court~Martial Manual applicable to -special court-mertials ere Article
118, providing that a judgment may be revised (R, 184,-189); irticle 473, pro-
viding thet retrial may be.claimed-for the:benefit of anyone sentenced to the
penalty (R. 186, 189); Article 387, providing thét the presiding judge shall ]
‘show the -evidence to the deferidant (R. 186, 189); Article 105, providing that
‘déefendent can, if-heé requests, obtain a copy of. the trial proceedings (R. 187,
189); Article 505, providing that the execution will be performed®by the Prison

-

(p 20, Uchiyema’

( - 2 s
» ' c

' Y . . Jilg

et 7, Case #123)




!.
1

Comnander in the presence of-the Prosecutor and Clerk (R. 187, 189); Article 508,
prbviding:that. the President, or Commander of the Army, will-act in place of.the
War. Minister in.executing or suspending the sentence (R. 187; 189); and Article
93, providing that no defense counsel is permitted. in- special ‘courts-martial

(R. 189).. There is .nothing in the rules to prevent the use of witnesses and it
:(lf{ c;;zgmary for the court toigive its: reasons for :its . sentence to 'the defendarit

D e

Articles in Court-Martial Manual fpplicable to General Courts-Martial
end not Special Courts-Martial:  Articles 424 and-439 are applicable to .general
and ‘not special -court-martials.: firticle 424 provides-that grounds for revision
exist if a disqualified :judge takes part in the trial, if the ‘evidence is not "
examined ‘in- open;court and if the prosecutor at the trial .does not explain the
offenses,  Article 439 provides that it is.the-duty of the prison commander to
write the request:-for revision if the accused cannot write.(R. 184, 185, 189),

Commanding General and Chief.of Staff: Regulations do not require
that the opinion of the Public Procurator go through the Chief of Staff but it
is customary that said opinions will clear tHrough him before being présented

v to the: Commanding General. - The Chief of Staff does not havé suthority to send =
the opinion back to. the Prosecutor for correction (R. 176).

, !Selection of Judges: The Judicial Officer prepares.z roster of
officers available for: court-mertial ‘duty and the Commending General approves it,
Mémbers of the court are nominated by-the Commanding Genmeral from the .roster. It
is customary for the Judicisl Department to select one of its members to be put

on the court (R, 191). 5 . , , '

= Disquelification of Judges: A member of the court is disqualified
if he has previously thoroughly interrogeted the défendant (R, 191) but not if
the information obtained in the. interrogation was limited (R. 192).. Interrogation
by &n ‘intelligence officer to .obtain military secrets would not disqualify the
officer (R, 192), : -

Trizl: In-most cases prepared documents esre the only evidence intro-
duced 2t :the trial although in other cases witnesses are used (R.'l-89,.190)4.‘ The
accused is always questioned and in case he’ cannot speak Japanese, an interpreter
informs him of- the charge and interprets & summary of all the evidence.(R: 190).
The Prosecutor is redquired to follow the opinion of his superior, but it is not
customary for him to reé=d-the approval of the Commanding Gener’a]: in demandlng )
the death penalty (R. 192, 193), Witness never heard of 'a case where the grave
was dug 3bei;ore: the - trial‘end accused executed within six hours after the dentence
(R. 192). ™ ~ (T C

.

Sentence ‘of ‘the Court: Each individusl member of the court cen:
render an individual opinion =nd not be governed by the opinion of the Chief of
the Legal Section. Based upon his own experience the witness tgstlfie.d that he
could not’ state that the court ususlly followed the recommendation of the Chief
of the Légal Section (Ri 193). - .- - :

P ‘Review: It is not customary; under special court rules, for the
Commoniding General to review & cezse before execution (R. 176, 178). It is
customery for him to check and see if there is eny mistezke in the general pro-
cedure (R, '182)." e = ' '

. Accused, Eif.'aro'Uchiyémé‘hé.ﬁng been warned of his rights, elected
. to be sworn as o witness and testified in substance es follows: :

: - He took commend’ of the Fiftcenth irea frmy as a Lieutenant Ger.xeral
on April 17, 1944, ot Osaka (R. 197). Commended the southern helf of the island
of Honshu and the island of Shikoku (R. 197, 241): At first 5-divisions were
under his commnnd and later 10 divisions (R. 197). He spent half of his bi_r;e
inspecting defenses as he expected an invasion in early fell of 1945 (R. 191:{ i
mgf ‘He assumed responsibility for decisiors of subordinate dmzefs but reli

P ,
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on Chief of Legal Section (accused Otahara) in respect to legal matters, as his™
experience in llaw was little or none (R. 198). Military discipline wes a speciel
duty'gssigngdftO’the’Chieﬂ:df Staff ‘Kunitaoke and not a-regular one (R. 202). He
first heerd of the American fliers, Nelson. and: Augunas, when reports were received
from antral'Kempei'Tai'and-drdefedJthatgthis;matter be handed over to the Mili-
tary Discipline Conference (R. 199). . He ordered General Otahera to’ investigdte
Nelson and fugunas personally because he believed that this was- the first occasion
in Japan proper. thet enémy fliers would be tried and .thet as a-precedent might be
established, he wented an experienced man to handle it (R. 199, 206). =~

~ Conference Approving Otaharals Recommendations for trial and desth
sentence: Oteshara, in person, submitted his report of the investigation, a docu-
ment of 200 pages; sbout the middle of June 1945 (Rs 199, 200). A conference,
with Kunitake and Otehara, lasted about 40 minutes (R. 206). Otshera read to
Uchiyama certain:important metters in the investigetion-and the eéntire report was
read by him (R. 199), .Otéhara said that Nelson and Augunas had offended inter- -
netional law and would have to be brought before a Military Discipline Conference,
that proof ‘was insufficient.to charge them with the bombing of Nagoya -and Hamematsu
but sufficient to charge them with indiscriminate bombing-of Tokyo in March, Osaka
on March 13, 14, Kobe on March 16, 17, 1945 (R..199). Uchiyama remembered from -
the report’thet the defendants participated in these bombings. and that prior to
March 1945, high: explosive bombs were used on military targets; that thereafter
Japanese cities were bombed with incendiary bombs (R. 199, 2083;4;0tahara'said
superior'orders were not a defense or could be.used in mitigation when such orders
are against international 1z end inhuman to-a man of common sense (R. 200).
A life sentence would be too light a sentence for the violations of the Military
‘Discipline Regulstions, Fx. 16, when American flyers, with radar and superior:
bomb sights, failed to demage ‘the OsakaCastle, the hesdquarters. of the Fifteenth
Area Army, the largest arsenal in Jepan, the billets of the 22d and 234 Infantry,
the harbor installations and the civilisn factories nearby, but instead in success-
‘ive. bombings over = wide area caused the death of many civilians.and the destruc-
tion of homes end public properties. Such action showed thet the target was not
militery installations, even though a few factories were demaged and destroyed,
(R. 199, 200, 208, 239). Uchiyams defined military installations as those direct-
1y conmected whth the army ond factories meking militery articles and munitions
(R. 206). Otahera further said to Uchiyama that the duties of the. defendants
would meke no difference as it was necessary for all members of the crew to
cooperate to hit the target and all were guilty under Japanese law (R. 207).
The witness did nhot ask Otahara about other casses involving: American airmen al-
though he” knew ‘about ‘Doolittle incident and that a part of the crew, perhaps
navigator, radio operator, and bombardier, had their sentences commuted to a
life sentence (R. 215). At the time.of - the Doolittle incident Uchiyama was in
Chine but repd sbout it (R, 215), Uchiyama approved the report by placing his
seal on it (R, 206) and directed Otahara to take the full report of 200 pages to
War Ministry for approval because the War Minister might want to question him as
it was an important case (R. 204, 216).  The witness does not believe that Otahara
intentionally held back facts but after hearing all facts does not believe Otahara
.reported all the details (R. 242), T A

o inion Approved. and Instructions of War Ministry: Opinion of .
Otahara was approved by General Hata and the War Ministry (R. 201, 216). .‘pproval
by or Ministry were instructions-to the Commanding General that the prosecutor
. may brihg cherges sgeinst the accused, that if the opinion requested a death

-penalty, thet if no new majter was brought out in the trial and:that if the de-
fendants were found guilty as charged, then the execution may be-cerried out
(R.201). This statement is in conformance with Defense Exhibit I, a correction

. in the trenslation of Exhibit 16, p 11 (R. 236, 237).

. Appointment of Court and Procurator: Otshara was originally
appointed Procurator on the orders and after he received his orders of trensfer
- on-July 12, 1945, the accused Ogiyd was appointed; not important that Otzhara
_be there as.cese had been fully investigated snd it weas-customary to cerry out
triels with spéed after they were prepared (R. 201, 219, 220, 240). Appointed
court. fron roster of 10 officers and depended on Otchara es to eligibility of
judges (R. 201, 238). Otehara reconmended Cepts Ono as Jjudicial officer and
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Ogiya as Prosecutor (R. 216, 237, 238) and General Kunitake recommended YamanaKa
and Matsumori (R. 217). Witness did not know that Yamanaka and Ono had participa-
ted in: any mannerin the case before-trial although he did know that Yamanaka was
an intelligence officer (R, 217, 218, 219, 238, 239). ™itness 'made no inquiry

as to wiethér dny of the judges had any of their families killed or property
destroyed in air raids on Osaka, Kobe or Tokya (R. 239). ' Yamanhskd fixed the date
of the trial on July 18, 1945 (R, 219). Judgés aere free to state their opinions
e(md are)“ir{ no way to be hindered in their findings and sentencing the accused

Re 201). % N

Instructions to Kunitake on Departure from Osaka: ~Uchiyama left -
Osaka on an inspection trip on July 14, 1945 and returned the evening.of July 18,
1945 (R. 201, 220): At the time he left he knew the trial of the défendants had
been tentatively set on July 18, 1945 '(R. 219),  Instructed Kunitake to use his
name 'in‘approving death sentence if: no new evidence or stateménts (favorable to
the accused were introduced gRL_ZOl); If héw évidence was introduced, Kunitake . .
was to await further orders (R. 201). Told Kunitake if there yas no ground for
appeal or mitigation and if the death senteénce was given, the American flyers -
would be executed-immediatély in order to prevent them from bYeing tortured mental-
1y (R. 201, 220, 221, 241)-f .‘ 5 2 S A . = n

. Report of Kunitake, Yamanaka and. Qgiya on Uchiyama's return to Osaka:
Kunitake on the evening of July 18, 1945 and Yamaneska and Ogiya on the 19th and
20th of July 1945 reported thet no new evidence or statements in favor of the
accused had been introduced in evidence and the tribunel sentencéd them to
death (R, 202, 203). Yamenzks-further stated that the accused.were found not
guilty of the bombing of Tokyo, the first cherge, becsuse of insufficient evidence
and that they had hed 2n opportunity to defend themselves (R, 202, 203, 223, 236).
Nothing  was said about the beheading or about Nelson's protesting his' innocence
(R. 223, 224).' Uchiyama heard about beheading for the first time in Sugamo
during March 1947 from Mori (R, 203, 224) and that Otahara gave the order for the
beheading (R.. 230). Kunitzke did not tell him the location of the execution or
that the graves were unmarked (R, 223). ' il i ' .

Oseka o Proper Target: Osazka, the second largest city in Japan,
wos an important industrial end commercial city (R. 209, 210). Munition factories
“were just outside the city as well "as-in the city (R. 210). Anti-aircraft em-
placements were just outside the'city; and both Kobe and Osaka had anti-aircraft
guns to repel air atteck (R. 210, 211, 240), Militery objects in Osaka were not
the targets of .the raid of Merch 13, 1k, 1945 considering the number of planes
used, the type of bombs and the way the raid was carried out which resulted in
meny civilians being killed and property destroyed (R. 212). Therrhe arrived -
in April, Kunitake reported that the Central Army Hesdquarters, Ordnance Depot,
Supply Depot, Munitions Fectory (all grouped together in Higashiku just.outside
the city), the railway center, the piérs, docks, warshouses end harbor installa-
tions were not destroyed (R. 245, 246). ' ‘

‘Cremation of the Bodiest Gen. Yamayami was told to cremate the
bodies because it was not only a Japanese custom but also the remeins would be
eagiér to handle for reburial (R. 227, 228). The bodies were not cremated. in
crematorium because the spot was isolated and the remains were in a decomposed
eondition (R. 231). = :

; Concealment;: Uchiyzma's subordinetes did not tell him aebout conceal-
ment plans as it was not an official metter (R. 228). He first learned ebout |
it ot a conference at the Oei Schoolhouse on the 12th of June 1945 and told the
others to tell the truth becouse the concealment-plen was unwise, In this respect
he concurred with the Tokyo headquarters (R. 203, 233-235). Uchiyama contacted
Lt, Gray and made a truthful statement to him and told him in detail what he -
considc)sr,ed important and answered sll questions (R. 203, 204, statement Ex. 5,
herein), i ' Sy A S yiz, .

' Corrections in Statement (Ex. 5: The word "firing squad" (Page 2
of Exhibit) is corrected to read shot to death by rifleman (R, 243). The state-
ment that Prison Command sets the date, time snd place of execution and reports

-
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that it has been cerried out (Pege 2 of Exhibit) is incorrect (R. 243). The .
statement (bottom of Page 2) in respect to Commanding General approving a sentence
is corrected ‘to-read that in'Japsan thée Comm#nding Geéneral:carnnpt. approve or: dis-

Approve‘a: sentente’impased by’ court-nartiali ‘In'case of a déath sentence he tan

suspend it (R.-243; 244)%

; - Final Statement: Dufing the time of the Nelson znd Augunas matter
Uchiyema was concerned primerily with military problems, It is  just as difficult
for him to understand Americen milltary court procedure as it is difficult for
Americans to understand Jeapanese ‘procedure, However, whatever the procedures may
- be, the final objective is to punish the gullty and set free the innocent:(R. 247),

' " Copelusion: ' Sl =R (e TS TS Sl e oo
) At the conclusion of the accused Uchiyema's:testimony,-the Defense
offered to put'on the withess stand any ‘of ‘the accused: for questioning by the
Commission without cross or direct examination. The Commission properly ruled
that it was up to the Defense to decide if any of the other accused took the
stand and if they'did-‘thdy would be subject to full cross-exdmination by the
Proseéution; ~ None of the other esccused took the stand, - "= v .

F e o : 14

Tt should be noted that Deferise Bxlibit A, ‘A-l, ond A2, & brief, .
wes introduced in evidence by the defense (R. 22) in support of a motion of
finding of rot guilty that none of ‘the ‘accused committed 2 ‘war crime as charged .
_ in the specifications and Bill of Particulers. It is:further ‘noted that Defense

Exhibit B wos introduced ‘in evidence (R. 66) in lieu of cross-examination of  the
prosecution witness, Kikutaro Matsumoto, : ' :

L. Opinion:
" Uchiydma

 ‘1ieutenant Ceneral. Uchiyams,” through his cprmmand functions; by his own
acts anhd the acts of his subordinates, was charged 'in substance that he did: -
Specification 1; willfully and unlawfully permit, authorize, direct, and con-
stitute illegal, unfeir, false end null proceedings ageinst Second Lieutenant
Robert Watson Nelson and Sérgeant Algy Stanley Augunas; Specification 2, willfully
end unlawfully approve illegel, unfair; false and null proceedings end:sentence
of .death’ by a.Japeonese militery tribunal against Nelson and Augunas; Specification
3, willfully end unlawfully order executed én illegsl, unfair, felse and null
senténce of death imposed upon Nelson and’ Augunas; Specification L, and as con-
vening and reviewing authority he'did willfully and unlawfully fail and neglect
to take ressonsble measures to afford a legel, fair and impertial trial of certain
charges against Nelson and Auginos end willfully and uniewfully fail and neglect
to take regsoheble measures to afford a legel, feir, impartiel and adequate
review of the proceeding against Nelson and Augunas; end, (applying to all speci~
fications), did thereby contribute to unlawful killing of Nelson. and Augunes. -
Uchiyama was found not guilty of Specificetions 1 -and 4, underlined,.and the words
"and ynlswfully" preceding the verbs "approve" and "order" end "illegal" and
"false and null® preceding the nouns "proceedings" and "sentence" in Spec:.fa.cg-
tions 2 and 3. - It appeers that an anomaly exists in the findings of the Commission
It should be noted that in related specifications of the other accused that the
Commission’ found them not guilty of. the same words quoted herein. . 'The following
corments in cohnection with the legal effect of the finding of -not guilty of the
Coamissior of the words "unlawfully", "illegal" and "fzlse and null" are also
applicable -to the other gécused’ in this esse with the exception of Specification
I3 Dglyn Ang RIBAI ), 057 50 TG W s ot e

4 . In constriiing a verdict the object is ‘to errive at’ the intention of the
military commission, and when this can be ascerteined, if it is consistent with
legel principles, such effect should be given to their findings as will conforn
to- their ‘intént,” ‘In ‘srriving at the intent of the Commission, ‘the verdict should
réceive s liberalirather then strict construction.. The findings and sentence are
not ‘to be-corstrued as strictly as & pleading, but are to have reasonable intend-
ment and ‘constiifetion, ' It’“should be construed with reference to the charge and
specifications; the evidénce, the proceedings nt the trial, and the entire record,

- ] . n, p dall H . )
and if when ‘86 cohstrued, it is definite and clearly expresses the intention of
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the military tribunael and if otherw1se legal, technical objectlons -or mere in~ .-
accuracies of expression will not render it void. The reviewing authority is
vested with sound legal” dlscretion to see that substantial justice may be done
and no sentence need be’ disapproved 'solely because a specification, as affected
by the’ Commission's findings, is ‘defective if the facts alleged therein and
reasonably implied ‘therefrom constitute a‘criminal of fense, . The reviewing author-
ity is ‘not at’ 1iberty 4o indulge in’ conjecture respecting the grounds: of the find-
- ings and sentence and to add to'its’ térms by inference or: reference  to extrinsic
. - facts (See ;23 CJS, Pp 1107, 1108" and WA Manual for Courts—Martlal, US Army,
11928, p 7 ")

- Imv determlnlng the 1ntent of the Comm1381on, upon the pr1n91ples hereto-
fore stated, it is the duty of the’rev1ew1ng authority to apply a liberal con-
struction to the findings and sentence and to uphold it if consistent with legal
_principlés, It appears that the Commission thought :it was finding all of the
accused gullty of 2 crime under the laws and customs of war or international law
or they would not have found them guilty 6f ‘the charge’ "nd ‘sentenced -them from
death to three years, By finding ‘the accused guilty of -the words in the charge
ndid v1olat€ the Laws and Customs of ™er® the Comm1551on thought the acts as
set out in its findings were a’ 'bireach of international law and- thus unlawful. In
‘view of the fact the Commission found the accused not guilty of ‘the words "unlaw-
fully", "1llega1" “M"false and- null" the question arises as to whether the flndlngs
. aré responsive to, and: cover the crime charged, "whether -the- acts of which the
Commission found the accused guilty, constitute a crime, or whether the flndlngs
vend sentence are so uncertﬂln and unlntelllglble as to be void, . -

In view of ‘the confllct of, ev1dence as to mhether Otzhara obtained the
31gnetures and thumbprlnts of Nelson and Auguhas to the interrogatlons reports
fraudulently an& ag”to whethér or not the evﬁdence set out.in the various reports
prepared by hlm ‘were true, it is clear why the €ommission found the accused not
guilty of the mord "fraud?,.: It is not  ds clear, however, what the Commission's
legal intent was in finding the accused not guilty of the excepted words and
finding them guilty of the remaining words in the specification.and of the charge,
.In view of the theory of the defense that the order, sentence and proceedings were
lawful, legal =nd valid under Japanese law and thus legal under internationel lew
the Comm1331on may have intended by finding the accused not guilty of the excepted
words that the order, approval, proceeding end sentence were lawful, legal and
valid only under Japanese law,  In reviewing the entire record it eppears that
the accused herein did substantizlly comply with Japanese law. If this was the
Commission'!s intent, it erred for the reesson thet the excepted words are governed
by the charge, and the acts complained of in the specifications are violstions
of the laws 2nd custors of war or international law and not the law of any one
nztion. The charge merely indicates that the accused is alleged to have violated
the laws and customs of wer and the specific facts and circumstances relied upon
as constltutlng the 'violation of international law sre set forth in- the specific-
ations. (See "A Manuel for Courts=Martial, US Army, 1928, p 16"). Thus the
assgciation between the charge and specdifications is such that the Comnission
hes in effect. found the accused hérein not guilty of the‘me;ds tunlawfully',
i1l egal", "felse snd null® under the laws and customs of war. In addition it
mey be steted that 4f all “the Speclfications under ‘the charge are fatally defectlve
the charoe elso- will fﬂll.

Further, the Commlssion may heve intended th(t its fimdings of not
'gullty of the words- "unl"wfully" illegal® end "null" did not imply the affirma-
‘tive such as lawful, legal and’ valid or that they were mere surplusage, and that
_the remainlng words were sufficient to import ¢ crime or equlvalent in meaning
but 31gnified & different or lesser’ degree of guilt.

- Disregording the excepted words the Commis51on found that’ Uchlyama
(Specifications 2 end 3) "did violete the laws and customs of war", under the
chérge, by his own scts and the acts of his subordlnetes,(in that (Speclflcatlon
2) he did.willfully approve an unfrir proceeding snd sentence of death against
Iieutenant Nelson and Sergeant Augunas, Americen flyers, by a Jzpenese tribunalj
that (Specification 3) he did willfully order executed an unfeir sentence of
death imposed upon Lieutensnt Nelson and Sergeant Augunes; and (Specifications 2
-and 3) did thereby centri-bute to the unlawful killing of t.he said Americen flyers.
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The acts of Uchiyama in approving the proceedings and sentence of death
of the Japanese’ tribunil ‘and ordering executed the.séntence of death are.not in
themselves mala per se.".To hold otherwise would mean that General MacArthur!'s
acts in approving a proceeding: and sentence of death of an American military .
commission and ordering 'an execution in these war crimes- trials would involve
evil -purpose and criminal intent, The question to be determined is whether the
additional descriptive words in the specification; as affected by the Cunmission's
findings, are sufficient to make the acts of the accused acriminal offense, .

_ . In discussing the criteris for determining the collective guilt in the
Nurnberg trisls, Mr. Justice Jackson, the American Chief Prosecutor, in his. .
opening statement said the scts of the accused were similar to those that would
test the legality of a combination of conspiracy.” The acts of the accused would
contemplate illegal methods and illegal ends -and’ the: crime would be to combine .
with others and to participate in thé unlswful commoh effort, however innocent

the personil acts of the participant, when considered by themselves (The" Nurnberg
Casé‘as presented by Robert H. Jockson, pp 108-109).. In Ex perte Ouirin, 317,

US 1, 36, 46, the petitioner charged that the trial before the American Military
‘Commission was unlawful, but -the Supreme Court stated that Specification 1 was .
sufficient to charge all the petitioneérs with the of fense of unlawful belligerency
under the laws end-customs of wer; Further the Supreme Court in the case of .
Yamashita v, Styer, :66 S, Ct. 340, 344 said 'we consider here only ‘the lawful
power of the Commission to try the petitioner for the offense cherged."

_ In-similar casés involving the trial of Japanese, before American Military
Commigsions, whio partiéipated in the trial and sentence of death of American flyers
before a Japanese tritunal, the Commission found the accused guilty of .words in-
volving criminality., Thus in the case of General Sawada et al, (the-Doolittle -
case), the Commission found the commending genersl guilty of having American
flyers tried on false and fraudulent evidence and excepted the words "knowingly"
and Pwillfully". The members of the Japanese Military Tribunal, with no exception
made, vere found guilty of "unlewfully", "willfully", trying and prosecuting,
without a fair trial, certain American flyers and sentencing them to deeth. In
the case of General Isayamaya et al, the accused were found guilty of participating
in en "illegal" and "false" trial-end "unlawful" killing of - certain American flyers;
"end in the third trial, General Tanaka et al, the Commission found the accused
guilty of "willfully", "unlawfully" and "wrongfully" committing. cruel, inhuhan
end brutal atrocities against Mejor Hauck by participating in and permitting an
1illegal", "unfairh, "false ond null" proceeding and sentence of death.” In the
case of US v, Ito et al, Case No., 251, not yet reviewed by this commend, a pro~
secutor and three members of » Japanese tribunal were found. guilty of practically
identical charges snd specifications as originally submitted in the case herein.
The Commission, however; found the accused guilty rather than not guilty of the
excépted words herein. - Although not-similar in respect ‘to the facts, the Com-
mission in the cose of US v, Iwasaki; Case No. 391, not yet reviewed by this com-
mond, denied a specisl plea of the defense that Specification 2 did not constitute
2 criminal offerise becruse the word "unlawful" wes not contained within the spec-
ification, .Notwithstonding the ruling of the Commission, the prosecutor-after
consulting.with the individuesls in his office who p~ss on specifications, re-
quested snd received permission of the Commission to amend Specificeation 2 by-
adding the word "unIawful®,' R 19. Apperently the members of the prosecution
staff in'the sbove ceses and in the instsnt case deemed that the acts of the
- various accused were not per se an offense and that it was necessery to-include

in the ‘specification words of criminality such es "unlewful®, "illegal", etc. to
make: the sct of esch accused a criminal offense. - o

- Vhere the act cherged is not per se an offense, words such as "assaultt,
"wrongful", "unlawful" or the like must be used in the specification or remain
in ‘findings to make the act s criminal -offense and the failure to use such words
is a fatal defect. 35 SR 329, 3393 15 BR 105; 111; 12 BR 61; 64; 34 ER 367, 380;
LO ER 349, 350; CM 113535 and 130811; Dig Ops JAG, 1912-191k, Sec 451 (8); 1 Bull
JAG 18; 2 Bull JAG 17; 6 Bull J!G 177. See also 31 CJ, pp 701, 702, 1In, the cit-
ations underscoréd the cherge wes the "violetion of the 95th Article of Wer" and
the Mviolation of the 63d Article of War" ‘respectively and the only specifications
under ench of these charges wes deemed fetally defective because of the failure
to allege words of criminslity. The Board of: Review by holding the findings of
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guilty could not be sustnined under the charge and spec:ni‘ic t:n_ons in effect ruled
that the words in the charge did not cure the defect in the specification, Clear~
1y the words in“the cherge in this cese "did ‘violate the laws and customs of war"
do not supply the necessary: words®of* criminality for the -specifications esnd- these
words in the ch'\rge are in fact dependent upon ’ghe facts end c:.rcwnstﬂnces relied

.(. q

Assuming t.hﬂt the SpelelC"thtlS or:Lglnally only 1ncluded the words that
the Commission found" the ‘accused guilty, ahd disregarding the legel intent of the
Commission in finding’ ‘the accused not’ ghllty of the ‘excepted words, the question
arises whether the remaimng deseriptive words "willfully" end "unfair® imply the
words  unlawful or wrongful and thus bé sufficient to make the acts:-of the accused
a.criminal offense. . The word "willfully" is employed as descriptive of the of-
fense (31 CJ p 698) and its’ meening should be ‘separately ascertained by the con-
téxt in which it is used (U. S.- V. Murdock 290, US,- 389, 395, 54 S; Ct 223, 78
L. Ed, 381), It is an abstract term and has been def:.ned in vé rn.ous ways as set
out in its deflnltion in 68 CJ, p 290, to mt' : v

“"Vhen used in criminal or pensl statutes or- the cr:um.nal
* law, and'sometimes in pleadings in tort actions, vhen
used ‘to describe acts which éhall be punished. criminally,
.or with reference to violations of the criminal law, it
has been ‘said that the word !mllfullyr ‘has-.an understood
and accepted 2 restr:.cted or well defined, neaning; that
it is a strong ‘word, and J.S “to be given some force, and is
most frequently understood, not in a mlld sense, but as
conveying the idea of 1eg'»l malice in & gredter or le'ss
dégree, being ordinarily used in a bad sense, denotlng
evil 1ntent10n, end being -sometimes used to mean perverse,
deliberste design ‘and malice, “It has: been said that the
vord implies ability to do the act prescribed, ‘a conscious
wrong, e. eriminal intent, a deliberate intention or set
purpose to omit to perform a required duty, a deliberate
purpose to ecccmpllsh something forbidden, or deliberate
intention to.injure, a deterrination to execute one's own
will in ‘spite. and defience of the’law, 2877 purpose ‘to do
wrong, an evil design snd purpose, 2n evil intent or legal
n'rlice, an evil intent without justifisble excuse, an evil
or improper motive, intent or feeling, a tort or wrong;
" knowl edge znd a purpose to do the wrongful act, malice,
wicked ‘purpose or perverse disposition, or the idea:of
- malice of a mild kind; thet it includes the idea-of an -
3 sct 1ntentlonally done with 2 bad, or a wrongful, purpose,
or with ‘& design to injure’ axother, with Knowledge it is
unlewful,b?2 or one committed out of mere warntonness or
‘Yawlessness; ond hence more then knowingly, intentionally,
purposely, or negllgently, of volunterily. In the parti-
‘culer Gonnection in which the word is used "willfully"
may be cons’orued es vneam.ng ceuselessly; contrary to dutys
corruptly, for 'no ceuse or reason; in =n obstinate manner;
-"in bad faith; 1ni'lexibly, ‘intentionally and tortiously, or
unnecesserily; in violation of law’® knowingly and vith with
evil intent, or stubborn purpose ; knowing one has no rlght'
obshinetely, perversely} purposely and delibérately, or 68
with an evil intention; selfishly; stubbornly;- unlawfully;
wantonly; with & bad, ‘evil, or guilty, purpose, or a or a de-
liberate intent to do a wrongful act Wwithout justification,
o malevolent purpose or- 'notive, an inftent to do” some act 78A
I violatlon of the-lew, 79 or criminal, (0 evil, 77 unlewful,
wicked, or wrongful, intent, or legel melice, espec:.ally ,
“if the forbidden ect is wrong in itself, or involves moral
turpitude; with deliberate intention for which there is ho
réasonable ex¢use, or wrongfullys without grounds justifying
the att, just cause or excuse, or justifieble, lewful, or
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reasonable, excuse, oF lawful, ‘or legs l, just:.ficﬂtiorx, or
reesonable ground for believing the act to be lawful, or .
regard for the r:u.ghts of others; without regard to, or with-
out yielding to, reaeon;‘vrongi‘ully “ Yhen an’ act is done
feloniously, maliciously," uplawfully,99 or wantonly it-is

~ done willfully," (Numbers noted ‘2Hove refer to cases/cited
on the stotement set. out :m the defin:.tion. Empha31s supplied)

In addltlon t follow:mg cases.ﬁ hold that "willfu]_ly" means "unlawful"

‘1illegal"t -Bowles ¥, Jung;* 57 F. Stpp.:701, 709§ Elmore v. State, 73 S.T.

, 107, 108; 128° Tex., Cry’'R 509, People Ve Raider, 292 .Y, Ml-7, ‘State v, Cook,
176 S:E, 757, 207 NC 261., ‘Tt has also been held cutting with & dangerous weapon
with intent to kill' ina- verdict 'is: suff:.cient to' sipply the‘words. "Willfully"
"unlawfully" and "felom.ou,sly" ("‘t"'-te Ve, unto:v.ne, 180 So h65, 189 La 619)

It should be noted that in 'any of these ceses hhe holdlng is thet
"unlawfully" will supply the word ril1fullyn sach 26 Howenstine v UsS., 263
F 1, Griffin v. Fancher, 127 Conn, 686, 20 A (2%):95, 134 AIR' 701 and. cases found
in not.e 93 of 31 CJ, p 698, The theory is that if the act 15 unlawful the will-

ful intent is presumed.

Other authorlty holds that the term: 'Lw::.llfnl" is not suppl:.ed by the
vord "anlawfully",’ State v. Mpssey, 2-S,E. 445, 446, 97 NiCs: 4,655 Messenger v,
OtHers, 189 Il1 fpp. 48; People v, Farber- (CalS 77 P (24), s 921, 9233 .that
"w:llfully" is not synonymous with "anlawfully", > ‘26 & man'may do many things
"willfully" which ‘are not "unlawful" 5 end he may do ‘many: things- tunlawfully"
which are not #willfdlly" done; State v. Hussey, 60 Me, 410, 4113 State v,
Townsell, 50 Temn, 6, 7; Jones v, State, 9 Tex.,. App. 178, 179 ‘and- that "will-
fully" end "unlawfully" are not synonymous because: "willi‘ully" means intention=-
8lly and designedly; and "unlawfully" mesns without legal justification; State
v. Vanderveer, 196 P, 650, 115 Wesh. 1843 In re Hege, 172 SE 345, 347, 205 NC
625; State v, Hollda,j, 182 S (24)- 553, /5543 Ui Se Vo Edwards, 43 Fv 673 Grand
Trunk Ry. Co. v, U,S., 29 F. 116 ll9, U S. v. Murdock 290 US 389, 394, 5, S.
Ct 223, 78 L. Ed. 381. '

* The word "willfully"' in offenses involv:mg turpitude means with evil
purpose, criminal intent, or the like, but it is ofteri used without such. lmpll-
cation in denounaing acts not in themselves wrong, and denotes that which is
intentional, knowing or voluntary, as distinguished from accidental-and that
it is employed to cheracterize conduct marked by cereless disregsrd whether or -
not-one hes the right so to act (U.S: v, Il1, Cent, Ry. Co.,, 303 U.S., 239, 242,
243,58 St, Ct. 333,782 L. Bd. 773). Thus it appears that "willfully" means
with crimingl intent, or inténtionally doing an "illegel® or M"unlawful acth
when the act 1nVolves turpitude or is rels per se and otherwise if the act in
itself is not wrong,” This basic difference 1is-best expressed in Townsend V.~
U.S., 95 F. () 352, 357, cert denied 303 U.S. 664, 58 S. Ct. 830, 82 L. Ed. 1121,
where the court after “settirig out the various way "willfully" had. been deflned
in United Stmtes v. Murdock, suprc, 5¢ _'Ld' -

7 "It will thus be scen that the court hes ascribed three
€ . general ‘meanings to the word !willfully! end hes recognized
‘two ‘other “neanings, Appellant contends thet under the
Jstetute here involved the first meaning menticned by. the
court namgly, 'done with a bad purposet!, is controlling.
The cases 01ted by the court support that-meaning and
‘sinilar holdings are fourid in other cases, but, even though
- it applied -that meaning to the peculiar facts of that case,
it 18 clear thot the court did not intend to limit the
.applicetion of the word 'willful! in ell -cases to 1acts
“‘done with a bad purpose!., The meaning of the word depends
_'in lerge measure upon the nature of the criminal act and
"the -facts of the particulﬂr case,’ It is only in very few
criminsl chses thet 'willful? means 'done with a bad purpose'.
Generally, it means 'no more than that the person charged.
“*with the duty knows vhat he is doing It does not mean
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that, in addition, he must suppose that he is breaking
the law,! - fmeriéan Surety COw: Ve Sull:.van, 26.8ire,

7. F, 2d 605, 6064, In United States.v. Bdwerds, C.Cs, -’
L3 F, 67 (c:.t,ed byappell nt )i the: court saids I fpllye
means’ W:Lth design, : llberatz.on. In
Grand Trunk Ry. Co , 229 F, 116
119, the court saic : ly', ‘28 -used in
the aety hss a numbe engaged the attentlon of
the: courts, znd has quite uniformly been held. ' ot to re-
quire ‘an evil intent; nly:that the def endant should
‘have’ pu'r'posely or’ 1nt,e tlonally failed to obey the statut.e,
_h'\v1ng knomledge of th fffacts.'" Ml iy

The acts herein approv1ng a proceeding ‘and sentence of denth erid order—i
ing executed a ‘Sentence of desdth cles rly: are not ones 1nvolv1ng turpitude or are
mala per se, - As; used An flndlng herein willfully means intentionally or that °
General Uchiyera “Knew: what‘he was d01ng. :‘The Prosecutlon in its brief, page 5 x
conburs in this définition of ‘the word myiddfullyn, and thus intended. tha’c it
meant, in the speclflc tlons, th b the accused act was intentional, thet he knew
whct he was’ d01ng., =

The re'nalnlng '*djectlfre Af the specificetion is the word "unfanr" which
modifles the nouns, px'ocecdlncs and~ sentence.' The -eriteria of.a fair . trial for:
POW". DpesT in Part 3, Art. 60 to 67, of: the Geneva-Convention.’ ‘The Supreme Court
in the cese of Yamashita v, Styer; 66 Sup.” Ct.. 340, 351 holds that these articles
do not apply ~to’ precapture offenses, but only to offenses committed ofter’ capture.
Such srovisions' are’ therefore not applicable here. However - the Suprerne COurt in
note 10° on pﬂge 352, sald N AR S )

- "One of the 1tems of the Bill of Partlculars,' in support
7.~ of. the charge against petitionér,:specifies that he per-.
© 'mitted members of thé armed.forces under his: commend to

try and execute three named end other prisoners of war,

- tsubjecting to trial without prior notice to a represent-
*ative of the protecting power, without opportunity to de-,
‘fend, ‘and without. counsel; denying opportunity to, appeal-

- -from the sentence rendered failing to notify t.he pro- !

s tectmg power of the sentence pronoucned; and executing ;
 a'dezth sentence without' communicating to the’ «'epreSentatlve
""of the: protecting. power the nature and circumstances of the
offense chorged'. It might be suggested that if Article 60,
- is: inapplicable to, pet1t.1oner it is inapplicable in tr ‘the cases
5 ' dpecified,. cnd £hat héfice he could not be la’wfully 7 held or
2 X W
convicted -on a ¢harge of failirg to require the notice,
provided for in-irticle 60, b6 be given. . .But apart from
~“thig consideration; 1ndependently of: the notice requlrernents
of the Geridve Convention; it s o violation of the law of
“wer, on which there dould ‘be a corviction if. supported by
evidence, to inflict capital-punishment on prisoners of war
“without affording to them opportum.ty to meke a defense."
- (EmpHasis suppiiedye - e .

. It should be noted that the Suprefne Court stotes that as /rticle 60

‘s not" '\pnllcable to- Yemashita, it would not be, applicable to the Americans
“who: were . tried before Japanese Militery Tribunals. It follows.therefore that

as ‘the accused were not charged with a violation of Apticle 60 that. thé’ ‘nerican
flyers hersinwere tried s suspected wer erimincls and not es prisoners of “war,
Klthough Yemashita wes not found guilty of .the Speclficatlon set ouf ‘above,
nevertheless the fmericen flyers, herein, whether suspected war criminals or
PO, were ‘entitled to an opportum.ty to make a defense or.otherwise the hearings
j uou_.d be uni‘eu.r. e, : i ;

e

Unfcir, standing alone in a- speclflcetlon would be- used 1n 1ts broedest
- sense, It h 'S, been deflned in 65 CJ, p 1229 to mea.n- g ol
ey , N
"‘)ishonest, exacting, hard, 1lliberel, part,irl, pregudlced
Or ungenerous; dlsingenuous, fraudulent ,-illegal, or un-

just; unressonnble; using or. ipwolving trick or ertifice,"
(p 29, Uchiyem? et 7, Case #123)
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‘ In its broadest sense this word would imply the necessary incriminating.-
language t6 hold that the proceeding 2s well as the sentente was illegal and
freudulent. Thus: thé acts of the acon used would: constitute, if the words "will~- -
fully" ‘and *unfair" ‘were used alome in the- specification as originally submitted,
a erime under- 1n 'national law-in that he~ "willfully" or intentionally approved
an "unfair® or 111egal" end “fraudulent" proceedlng and sentence of death and
il 1fully" or/intentionally. order:mg executed an "unfalr" or "1llegal" and
nfreudulent” sentence of death, » , ,

In the instant case the words "Willfully" end “uni‘alr“ ‘were. not used
2lone in-the* speelflcatlon tut uaed together with other. tiescrlptlve words and
terms, ‘Thus the specifications uséd the ‘words ‘willfully and unlawfully together.
in describing the verbs-mdidn, "approve" and "order executed" and the adjectives
"illegal®, tunfairm, "false- end null® in describing the: "proceeding! and "sentence",
The neaning of “one deecrlptlve word: in.a- statute; or in a speciflcetlon, must be
construed in connection with the: descrlptlve words with which-it is associated,
This is based upon ‘the ‘cbvious réason that if the leglslature, or the ones who
drefted the Specn.flcatlon, hed inténded thé word. to. be used in its unrestricted -
sense, they would have ~irde no’ mntion of “the. other. words.;, In the case.of St,
Louis SFR Co. i U.S., 169°F. 69,:7L,7and cited with the approval by the Supreme’
Court in U.S. v, Cent. Ry., 303:U.S.° ?39, 243, it was held that "willfully means
something not ‘expressed by knowirigly, élse; both would not be used conjunctively,":
The words "unlawfully", "illegal® ahd #false and null" therefore camnot be re- -
garded eas surplusage as each would: have its' ‘w’“counotetlon. A legislature is
presumed to use no superfluous WOrds in a statute, and: the: courts will not inter- °
pret e statute in such a manner as to regard’ necessary parts theréof as surplusage,
Platt v, Union.Pacific Ry., 99 U.S, 48; Howell v. Port-of N.Y., 34 F. Supp. 797,
800, By analogy the same statenent c¢an be made herein, substituting the word
prosecutor for legislature, snd reviewing authority for court.  Under this rule
of .construction the word "willfully" clearly would not include within its meaning
the word "unlewfully" and the word "unfair" would not include within its meaning
"illegal®, "false" and "null%, Certainly this would be true when the Commission
excepted and found the accused not guilty of the words "unlawfully", "illegal",
"false and null" in its flndlngs.

- This construction clearly eliminates the word "unlewfully" as -heretofore
defined, from the dei‘lnltlon of "mllfully" and leaves it meaning only intentional,

_The term"'illegal" in 1tsv common acceptance signifies that which is
contrary to law as distinguished from rules of procedure, 42 CJS 382, and '"null®
means "invelid; nugatory; of no efficacy, force or effect; of no legal or binding
force of valldlty, useless, void! (46 CJ 832), "False" has been defined to mean
fraudulentsand to characterize a wrongful or criminal act, -such as involves-an
error or untruth, intentionally or knowingly put forwsrd, or as a mere pretense
set up’' in bad. falth and without color of fact (35 CJds, p 495). The ad,)ectlve,
munfairh, would therefore have eliminated from its deflnltlon the meanings of
the words 1illegal®, "false" or "null" 28 defined herein.

: The legal effect or intent of the Commission in finding the accused not
guilty of the excépted-words is best expressed in the case of Private M111ard T, -
Johns, 12 ®R, 133, 134, wherein the Board of Review said:

"Under the long recognlzed doctrine that an accused 1s
'=cqu1tted, of 211 meterial alleged above which are excepted
by & court martial in its findings (par. 2, Sec. 1560,

Dig. Ops, JAG, 1912-30) the accused herein was acqultted

by the court of all the material allegations which are .
excepted by its findings, nemely assault with intent to .

do bodily harm with a dangerous weapon, in violation of
the.93rd Article of War, By excepting in its firdings 4
the words assault and any other word or words stating or
implying that the action was wrongful, unlawful or
felonious, the legal presumption asrises that the -act
was lawful and innocent (par. L, Sec. 1471, end pare 4,
5, Secs 1559, -Digs. Ops. J.G, 1912-30,"

v
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“« Under the doctrihe as expressed in the- above case, the findings of the
Commission in Specification 2, of Gen. Uchiyama, would be that the accused
"willfully" (or intentiodally) andilawfully did approve a legal,” (in accordance
with law as distinguished from the fules of pocedure), "unfair®, true (based
upon truthful evidence nét fraudulently obtained), valid (having legal or binding -
force of validity and. af:fgspt)‘ proceeding and sentence of death imposed upon -
Lieutenant .Nelson and Sergeant’ ‘Augunas, by a Japanese Military Tribunal and’that
he did thereby contributé to the unlawful killing of Iieutenant Nelson and Augunas. -

.. Taking in effect the Commission's’ finding, it cen be readily seen that
an absurd conclusioh would be reached if it was determined that the word willfully
includes within it definition the meaning of the word unlawfully and the adjective

unfair would include within its meaning the words illegel, false and null,

.. The Commiésion did find the-gccused guilty of the phrase "and that he
did thereby contiibute to the unlawful killing of said American PW!s." = An unlawful
killing mus§ be such as would naturally, logically, proximately result from some
unlawful act'ér be an act which is not -justifigble or excusable by law {State v,
Menko (Ohio), 46 N.E. (2d) 469, 470; State v, Wetter (Idaho), 83 P 341; and Black

‘v, State (Ohio); 133 N.E, 795). - The use of the word "thereby" in the quoted phrase-

makes it a ¢onclision which must be supported naturally, logically and proximately.
by the facts set out in the preceding part-of the’specification describing the’
alleged horic¢idal aets. “In a complaint-for libel,-in the case of Schoepflin ve- -
Coffey, 56 N.Ei 502, 503, 162 N;Y, 12, it was alleged-that the defendant made the
slanderous 8tatement in the presence of -two reporters, and thereby defendant
caused .such statement to be published; and the appellate court held that "thereby"
will be construed’in the sense of "by that means" or in consequence of the pre-
ceding allegation, and hence the averment was.a conclusion as to the effect or
résult of the facts previously alleged, Another case on the same point, Daniels
v. State (F14), 41 So. 609, 611, the facts and opinion of the court, . as set out
in 41 Words and Phrases, p 533, are as follows: ° - '
e ihere an indictment charges that D. 'did unlawfully and -
fram a premeditated design to effect the death of one Gs,.
take an esseult on the said G., and a certain pistol, :
_which then and there was loaded with % % ¥ leaden bullets
ehd by him the. said D. had and held in his hand, he, the
said D., did then and there unlawfully and from'a premedi~
teted design to effect the death of the said G., shoot off
and discharge at and upon the said G., thereby and by thus
striking the said G. -with the said leaden Bullets, inflict—
ing on and in the body of the said Gi one mortal wound?¥,
. otc., the homicidal act or efficient cause of death is
5 charged to haverbeen perpetrated from a premeditated design
to effect death, although the words 'from a premeditated
design to effect death! are not repested when the infliction
of the mortal wound is charged, since these words, previous-
1y alleged, are connected with the mortal stroke by the
words fthereby and by thus'., The word 'thereby' in the
indictment signifies 'by that means!, or in consequence of
the preceding allegations, end refers to 211 that precedes
it, both as to the act of firing the pistol and to the pre-
 meditated design with which the pistol was discharged."
(Bnphasis supplied). ' 2 =
. R A :
Thé court in the 2bove case defined "thereby" in the same manner as Schoepflin v,
Coffey, supra, and although it does not state in so many words ‘that the phrase
beginning with "thereby" is a conclusién, the implication is clear from the state-
ments made by the court.in its opinion. :

* ' The homicidal-acts of Gen. Uchiyama in Specifications 2 ‘and 3 as submitted
and slleged are that the sccused "did willfully and unlawfully approve illegel,
unfair, false and hull proceedings and sentence of déasth’ against Lt. Robert "atson
end Sgte. Algy Stanhley Augunas,  American P's, by a Japenese- Militery Tribunel"®,
and "did. willfully end unlawfully order executed an illegal, unfair, false and -
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. null sentence of death imposed-upon Second Lt. Robert Wetson Nelson and Sgt._Algy
Stanley Augunas, American PW's, by a Jepanese Military Tribunal®,. The phrzse be-
ginning with "did thereby" following these allegations is a conclusion, and not
pert of the .description of the #lleéged Homicidal ‘acts, under the authority sub-
mitted herein, for the reason that "thereby' is used in the sense of "by that -
means' or "in consequence of the préceding allegations" and is'therefore a con- ;
clusion as.to the effect or result of all of the Homicidal acts previously slleged. :
. Compare these specifications with Specification 4, Ogiya and Specification 1,
Nakemichi where the "illegal killing" 4s alleged as part of the homicidal ect, -
As submitted to the Commission the. Munlawful" killing is amply supported by the’
-acts previously.setusut in-the specification and under the opinion of -Daniels v,
State, supra, the word."unlawful" would not have had 'to be pleaded because the -
word "killing" would refer to all the acts that precedes it, ‘The -specification,
28 finally affected by the Commission's findings, no longer contains ‘in the
ellegations of the homicidal acts the words Munlawfully", "illegal", "false and
mll" end as the remaining descriptive words, "willfully" and "unfair", "as used
in the specification do not include in their meaning the words with whiich they - -
were associated, there is nothing Teft in the allegations to support the conclusion

that the killing wes unlawful. The Commission therefore erred in finding that

the accused wes guilty of the word: "unliwful® préceding the word Mkilling". This
conclusion is further strengthened when the implication of the Commission's act ]
in finding the accused not guilty of ‘the e')':cepted"m»rds is teken into consideration,

, A trial may be Munfair" in two ways. One in which the ‘acts of those who :
perticipate in it are.such that this trial itself would be considered "illegal",
"unlawfult, or "false and null".. Thus in.this sens¢ a fair trial would be a
‘legal trial if-conducted in gll materiel things in substantial ¢onformance to
law or oné wherein the legal rights of the acciused are safeguarded and ‘respected
(People v, Ephraim (Cal:); 245 P 769,.774} Peoplé v. "olf (N,Y.),.76 N.E:, 592,
595; Flynn v, State (Okla.); 133 P 1133; Johnson City v. "ildwood (N.J.), 184
A 616), All of the accused hersin were found not guilty of an Murfair® trial in
this sense in view of the findings of the Commission as to the excepted words
and their legal intent as hefetofore set out. 1In the other. sensé the unfairness
would be a defeqt in. the procedure’ or a priactice complaired of ‘which might lead
to 2 denial of Justice (Vajtauer v. Conn., 273 US 103,"47 S, Ct 302), ' Such a
“defect or practice, not perisé Millegal® or Murlawful', could only be corrected
-if properly raised on appeal and result in the case having to be retried. Thus
&n accused waived his right:to object to the alleged prejudicial conduct of the,
judge when he failed to object to it in the trial below and raised it for the
first time on sppeal (U:S. v Domres, 142 F. 2d 477)., Further irregularities in
the appointment counsel, matters connected with the jury, conduct ond remarks of
.the court or counsel, all of which may show partiality ér prejudice, cannot be
raised for the first time on eppeal (24 €JS pp 268, 269, 291, 295, 299),

H

The* accused herein were therefore found guilty of the type of unfairness
which resulted in a harsh or severe sentence of death resulting from a defect in
_the Japanese légal procedure not deemed by the Commission as "illegal", "unlawful®
or "felse” or "mull" under the laws and custams of wer or for partial or prejudi- -
:cial actsy, mot of the tharacter, =s determined by the Commission, to be "unlawful',
"illegal™ Mfalse" or 'null",’ The unfairness, of which the act of accused herein
were found guilty would be:of the type which an American court would, if properly
reised in the court below, order a new trisl, In the United States, or in any
' _jurisdict'i_on’fpr, that matter, the partiality or prejudice:of those who participate
in the trial, if not unlawful or illegal, would not constitute a crime, It §hould
be noted at.this point-that Kunitake, who actually made the review, was acquitted

of -Specifications 1, ‘2, _aﬁd‘:h and although found guilty '_of— ordering execute;d an
~ unfair sentence it was judicinlly determined by the Commission that his review was
adequate, 'The denial of a fair hearing 'is not established by proving merely that
the décision was wrong, Chen Yow v. United States, 208 US 8, 28 St. Ct. 201, 52
L. Ed. 369, or "if military tribuneals have lawful authority to hear, decide and
condemn, their action is .not subject to judicial review because they medé a wrong
decision on disputed facts (Yamashita v. Styer, 66 S. Ct, 340, 3kk; 345).

... The acts of the accused are not per se a criminal offense ernd the speci-
fication as finally affected by the findings of Commission allege no.facts or
‘words’ such -as "wrongfully",. "unlawfully", "without authority", "illegal", "fr.‘aw..ldu-
lent®, "false and null" which are necessary end required to constitute a criminal
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offense in. violation of the laws and customs of war, Such alle tions omittecl
or excepted may not be supplied by the proof (6 Bull JAG 1'?7 § 70 BR 1 573 Yo

Such'acts of unfairness that do not constitute 1 crlme ‘under American
juriSprudence, and in the.instant case a5 a lesser included of fense, -can’be held
to be "illegal! and- munlawful" under the laws’ ‘and customs .of wary, especa:a.lly vhen
such unfairness resulted in the death of - captured Mmerican flyers, The reviewing
authorlty, however, is without power to add -words- of crirninality, and ‘particularly
in this casé whenthe Commission found the accused not guilty of the words "unlaw-
fully", "illegal®, "false and null" under internat;.onal 1aw, The defect here is.
fatal and noét one the- reviewing authority can with sound legal discretion disregard
by determining that thé:facts alleged in the specifications, as affected by the
Commission's fa.ndings, constituté.a criminal offense. An. act o conduct, however
reprehensible is not & crime unless it. is defined ‘end made a crime clearly and
unmistakably (State v, Sanford (La,) 14 So (2d) 778,-781). The Reviewing Authority
is therefore constrained to.hold that the acts upon which. the ‘accused were found :
guilty are not offenses in nolation of t.he laws and customs of war. :

. The above analysis of legal intent oi' ‘the Commission in its flndlngs of
not guilty of- the ‘excepted words in the specifications of General Uchiyems are .
applicable. to the other accused except- as herein noted, Even assuming that Spec~
ifications 2 and 3 of General Uchiyama, as affected by the findings of the Com~ -
mission, are sufficient in themselves to constitute an.of fense in violation of
the laws and customs of war, it further does not appear that Gereral Uchiyama was
found by the Commission guilty of any crime when the findihgs of the Commission of
ot guilty of Specif:.catlon 2 of Khnitake and Specif:.catlons 1 ond 4 of Uchlyama
are cons:n.deredc ) -

In Speclfic 'vtion 2 P Uch iyama was chareed under his comnmand responsib:illty

for acts done by Kunitake as alleged in his Specificat:.on 2, FKunitake was acquitted
of doing. these acts alleged but nevertheless Uchiyama was found: guiltys Obviously
if Kunitake was not guilty of the facts alleged, then Uchiyama could not be gullty
under command responsibility. The situation. herem is different from US v.
Matsumuro, Case No.. lhh, ‘wherein it was held that a finding of not guilty of a2
subordinate in a previous trial is not conclusive in favor of the’ superior in =
his trial,. The rule and authority cited in the Matsumuro case, supra, enunciates
- the law where there are two criminal proceedings and the legal principles announced
are not applicable in the instant' case where both the subordinate and the superipr
are tried together in a common trial, In the same proceedin,,s vhere the' same
evidence is presented and the credibility of the witnesses is the same in respect
to both the subordinate .and superior, & Commission cannot logically acquit the
subordinate and find the superior guilty of the subordlnete's acts through his
command ;re;ponsibility. The princ:Lple ‘announced herein is- an. exception to and
does not overrule the rule as set out'in the Matsumuro: case, supra, It is there-
fore re¢ommended that the CommisBion erred in finding Uchlyama. guilty, of Specific-
ation 2, This recommendation is further strengthened when it is considered thet
Uchiyama was acquitted, in Specification 4, of willfully and’unlawfully failing
and neglecting to take resscnable measures to afford a legal; fair-and impartial
trial: and willfully failing and neglecting to" afford a legal fair, impertial end
adequate review of the proceedings and sentence of death, The approval of the -
proceedings and sentence of death is part of the review and the acquittal 'of
Uchiyama of Specification 4 is also a.n acquittal of that pc.rt of the review as
“2lleged in Spécification 2. :

+In Specification 3, Uchiyama was found guilty of willfully ordering execu-
ted am unfa::.r sentence of death: This administrative act-to be unfair depends
-upon’a finding that the proceeding, the sentence of death, and the review were un-
fair,., Taking into- consideration the Commission's findings of not guilty of Spec-
ifications 1 and 4, and the.recommendations made herein for the acquittal of Speg--
-ifjcetion 2, no finding remains upon which the order can be determined to be unfair,
It is therefore recommended that Uchiyema.be acquitted of ~Spec1fication 3.

’Wnen t‘he legal impliceticn of finding the eccused not guilty of Speciflc- ]

atlons 1l and 4 ‘is.considered, an additionel resson czn be given why the accused
should be Aacquxtted of. Specifications 2 and 3. By its acquittal of Uchiysma of
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Specifications 1 and 4 the’ Commlssion Judicially determlned that the initiation ofi-
the proceedings was lawful, legal and fair;: thet he took reasonable measures_to
afford a legel; feir-end: 1mpartia1 trial; and that he ‘took reasonsble measures to
afford ‘a: Iegal, fair, impartial: angd adequate review of the proceedings ‘and’ sentence
-of - death, If the accused?s ﬁcts ‘are not unfalr, ‘but in fagt fair;, -in’ Specifioations
1 and 4, it is difficult to see how his: -eets Wwere unfair in- Speclfications 2 &d-3 -
when the proceedlngs, sentence ‘of death and deaths are: the same in’all .four: spec~
iflcatiens. “The danger of pleading_(,  dame homlclde in four closely related
speclflcations is aptly: 111ustrat by.ﬁhe specifications herein;Tz' *

; For the redgdns given in this oplnion'relatlng to seven of the accused
and the further” reasons ‘applying to’ Uchlyama specifically, it-is recommended that
he be acqultted and be ‘found’ not gullty of,épeclflcetlons 2aand 3 and the' charge.

Kunitake
P —

) Lt. Gen. Khnitake was Chlef of Staff of the Flfteenth “rea Army
Gen.‘Uchlyeme was-not in Osaks at the’ ‘time of ‘thé -trial or execution, Knnltake ;

- acted for him in ‘approving the ‘trial ‘and the death sentence,. Kunitake placed
his sedl on the Quplicate copy of “the! execution ‘order and had- Uchiyama's adJutant
put. Uchlyamals Seel on the orlganal.-

Kunltake was found ‘not’ gudlty of Speclficutlons 1, 2 and- h.» In Spec1flc-'
etlon 3 it was charged that he did (willfully and unlawfully) ‘order -executed an
(1lle5al ), unfair; %false and 'null) ‘sentence of death imposed on Lt. Nelson and
Sgt. Augunas, The Commlssion found him not guilty of the words parenthesized
and’ underllned

The oplnion under the case of Uchiyama as to the effect of the Commission
flndlng him hot guilty of the excepted words -is adopted as part of . this opinion,
It is further noted that. the Commission excepted the word: "Wlllfully" -Thé danger
of- Splitting the homicidal act into several related specifications is; egaln illus~
trated in the case of Kunitake, In such type of pleading it is necessary in many
instances’ that:a 'finding of guilty be made in- the related. SpelelC"tlonS in order
to base o conclusion that the actused: was guilty of 2 criminel act in the others.
Thus, vherg the Commission judicially detérmined by acquitting the @ccused (Spec~
ification 2) of willfully and unlawfully approving an illegal, unfair amd false
and ‘mull proceeding, and (Sp 4) of failing #nd neglecting to take ke reasonahle
measures to afford a legal, fair,: __Egrtlal and sdequate review agclnst said
American fliers, and the findings and Sentences against them, it does not follow
that the order of execution was unfair., The execution order is the final act
aftér the review and the approval of the proceedings and sentence of death, and
if it is unfafr, the review and approval of the death sentence likewise- WOuld be
unfair. The fact that the Commission found that the approvel of the trial and .
death sentence to be legal and fair and the review adequate, legal, fair and

- impartial cancelled any determinetion that the order. to execute the fliers was
unfair: It is therefore considered that for the reasons heretofore and herein
stated, that the Commission erred in finding the accused guilty of a criminal act
under the Laws and Customs of War in the. Spec1ficat10n. It is recommended th
the flndlngs in reSpect to'this specification be disapproved.

Otzhara

3 " The -accused; Maj. Gen. Otahara, as the. Chief of the Judic1al Department
of the Japanese Flfteenth Area Army, was. charged in substance with: ‘Specifica-
tion 1, by his official acts,between 15 May 1945 ard. 19 July l9h5, he did will-
fully (and unlewfully) incite, inspire, recommend, approve and cause to be init-
jated- and’commenced before a Japanese militery trlbunal (illegel), unfair (false
and null), proceedings against Lt, Nelson and Sgt. fugunas}. Specification 3,
during J uiy 1945,  he did willfully (1nd.unlamfulxx) incite, inspire, cause !
(direct and command) members of a Jepanese military tribunal- to sentence to death X
Lt, Nelson and Sgt. Augunes; at the time knowing (that the evidence and charges
“against them were false and fraudulent) and that a fair (and la lawful) trial would
not be afforded them; Specification L, that having responsibility ty for the super-
v131on, dlrection and control of. sald Judiclal Department, and the 1nvest1gation

-
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and determination of charges agairst captured enemy airmen, between 15 May 1945«
and 19 July 1945, he did willfully (and: unlawfully) fail and neglect. to take
reasonable measures to afford (g legal), fair end impertial trial of Lt. Nelson .
end 8gt. Augunas; applying to: .akl. speeific ations, that he did thereby: contribute
to the unlawfub killing of the’ said American prisoners of war., Otshara was. also
charged with the same identical acts -in Specification 2 as in Specification 1,
and ‘during the. same period of time, while acting as Chief' of the Judicial Depart-
ment of the: -Second General Army with headquarters at or near Hirashma. ‘Otahara
was. found not guilty of Speclfication 2. and -the words in Specli‘lcatlons 1, 3 and
4 parenthes;zed and underlmed. _ fep

The record of this .cese_shows ‘that Otaharas was transferred oh’ 12 July
191»,5 and, offi'ésxally, after that ‘date he was the Chief of the Judicial Department
of the ‘Second.General Army at-Hiroshima, a . 'superior ‘command of the Fifteenth Area
Army at Oseaka, . Gen. Yamagam::., ahara's successor, wes officizlly. the Chief of
the’ Judlcia.l Depertment of the Fifteenth Area Army.after 12 July 1945, and. Cep’cam
Ono, the next in command, was zcting as Chief of the Judlc::.al Department dnrlng )
the period thet no chief was. present, After 12 Jaly 1945, Kunitake complained |
to Capt. Ono about the delay in the trial (E‘x. 39, PP 2,35 36, pp 5. 15').

, The facts are clear th.nt Otahara pr:.or to 12 July 1945 act.ed in: the e
cepacity as prosecutor as well as Chief of the Judieial Départment of the Fifteen~
th Area Army, and after that date he was officlally the Chief of the Judicial De=
pertment of the’ Second General Army, a superior -commerd.  On 12° July 1945, prior
to ‘the trial, Otahara was officially relisved of ‘his duties as prosetutor and as
Chieéf of the Judicial Department of the Fifteenth frea Army. = The failure of the
prosecution to. plead Oteharals .capacity as-Chief of the Legal . nepartment’of the
Second: General ‘Army and .as. prosecutor in” Spec:.ficatlons 1, 3, ard 4 might have

caused the Commission dlfficulty in preparing its: flndlngs. It might be well
ergued thaff the prosecut:.on in. pleading ‘Otehera's capacity. as only:the Chief of
the -Judicial Depertment of the Fifteenth Area Army limited the specification to
acts committed by the accused prior to 12 July 1945, --This factual situwation of
Otahara's status and c'\pacity noy be the reason why- the Commission found him not
Agullty of, the’ excepted words in Spec:.fications 1, 3, =nd 4 and not guilty of -
Specificatlon 2. The same acts are pleaded in Specifications 1 amd 2 and they, !
other than the trial, occurred prior to 12 July 1945. . Thus the Commission in °

B Spec1fication 2 apparently determined that as the acts occurred prior to his

appointment 8s Chief of the Judica.al Department of the Second General \rrrw, on .
12 July 1945, Otahara was not guilty of this specificetion.. These statements.
will be further a.mpllfled in the discussion of each of the partlcular Specuf'ica-
tlons. 3

S_pedifit:ation 1: '/ctlng as a prosecutor Otzhara made en investigation
and recomrended the Eriesl‘ and death: sentence., As Chief of the Judicial Depart-
ment, Fifteenth Area frmy; he approved these recommendations and obtained further
approval from his commanding general, the Second General Army, and the War Ministry

‘These acts, which are the criteria necessa.ry before the trial can be commenced,

all occurred prior to 12 July 191.;5. In this Speclficatlon, Otahara was found
guilty of other descriptive words end phrases in the findings of the Commission
not ‘included in the sPecificatlons end findings of which Uchiyama was found guilty.
These sre "incite, “inspire; recommend, approve, and ceuse to be initieted and
commenced!, - None of these, includlng "incite", which is defined in Webster!s

- New International Dictionery, "to move to action, to spur or urge on", imply thet
“the act itself is criminal, The proof-is clear that Otshara did approve and
.I‘ecommend that Nelson and- \ugunas be tried before a Japanese military tribunal

and be sentenced to deeth but he was acquit ted of any crime in connection with™ "
Such approval and reconmendat:.on by the Commission finding him not. gullty of the

_word “unlawfully", The record does not sustain that Otahara was the primary ;or

moving party in urging that ‘Lt. Nelson and Sgt. Augunas be tried before a Japanese-
militery tribunal, The record is tlear that’ Lt Gen. Uchiyama ordered the in-

.vest.iga’clon to-he made by the Kempei-Tai (Ex, -6 5 P 1)3; ordered Otzhers to person-

211y make an investigation (R..199); and ordered the institution of 'the prosecu-
tion of the Americsn fliers after approval had been obteined from CGen. Hata and
the War Ministry (Ex. 27, p 5). Otehara did not, as indicated by the specifica~
tlon, upon-his own responsibility, cause the prosecution to be ‘initiated and .
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commenced, but strictly followed Japahese procedure and obtained - the. approval of-
the recommendation:from his commanding:géneral, the commanding general of the. \
Second Army, General Hata,. and the War Ministry, -Such further-acts as his obtain~
ing-these epprovals, the preparation’of the charges, and the. arraignment forms, =
and Capts Onols,-the. sécond-in~commend to Otshira, sdvice bp the Kempei-Tai in
conngction with their investigation, are:all normal  dities: in connection with the
work ‘of - the:Judicial Department ~to see how Otahara's acts were
_eriminal for the type of proceedi ' and: Augunas by the Commission
finding him not guilty of the words Mille s and null", srd:when the .
~Commission acquitted both Uchiyama and- Kunitake “command responsibility, -

of Otahara's zcts indithis connection. Thus, Uchi; by the Commission finding
him not guilty of ‘Specifications 1 end 4, was acquitted of his own acts”and the
- acts of his subordinates .(including ‘Otaherats) of -unlawfully permitting, authoriz-
ing, directing and constituting an . illegal, unfair, false and null proceeding -
against Nelson: snd Augunas, ‘and of ‘willfull ~&and unlawfully failing amd neglecting
to take reagonable measures to afford a legal, fair and impertial trial of certain -

charges (prepared by Otshara) against them, "

Ek For the reasons given herein and the comments made under the. opinion in
. the case of Uchiyama above, it is gonsidered that:the Commission erred in finding
Otahara' guilty of ‘ary crimiral actiunder the Laws:and Customs of War. in respect

to this specification, It is" recarmended.that.the firdings of the Commission in

respect to this specification be:disapproved..

: Sgecifica_.tion 2: Otahsra, as heretofore stated; was found not guilty of
this specification, IR < R . poa
_ Specification 3: There is no evidence that Oteshera directly ceused the-
three members of the tribunal to sentence Nelson eand Augunas to death, The fect
is-that Otehara was found not -guilty of ‘the words "direct and commend in this
specification. There is evidence that indirectly Otshara may have caused the
membérs of ‘the tribunal to vote for the death sentence,  Part of the evidence
presented at the trial of the “American fliérs was the recommendation and approval
of Otshara recommendifig the death sentence; that this caused the membérs of the
tribunal to vote for the death sentence is not sustained by the. moof,. . Members
. of "a"Japanese military-tribunal exercise an independent Jjudgment in determining
"a verdicf and ‘Sentence, but.they may in- actual ‘practice follow the opinion of the-
central (or higher) authority,  (Ex. 36, pp 24, 29; Ex, 39, p 47; R. 137). Bonno,
a defense witness, testified that based upon his experience members of a tribunal
usually did not follow the recommendations of the Chief of the Legal Section (R.
-193), Apparently, members of .the tribunal follow the recormendations of the Chief
-of the Judicial- Department if it has theapproval of the higher authorities and-
otherwise Af such autHorities do not. concur. In the esbsence of any other proof,
it is determined that Otahara's recommendation and approval, standing alone, would
be too remote to base a conélusion that it caused the members of the Commission to
sentence Lt, Nelson and Sgt, Augunas to death, Otaharat's recommendation, occurring
when he was still Chief of the-Judicial Department of- the Fifteenth Area frmy, of
Capt. Ono, his next in command, 2s Law Member of the tribunal, and his appc_:intmen’c
as Law Member, undoubtedly was & major factor in the military tribunal arriving
at a’'sentence of desth of Lt, Nelson and Sgt, Augunas. The Law Member at a con-
ference after the trisl-is the one who explains first ‘whether the verdict sl_mould
be guilty or not guilty, and if he determines that :thé verdict should be guilty
-he " gives his reasons as to what the penalty should be, The fect that Otahara on
15 July ordered Shimamuna, the clérk, to obtain detailed instructions. fram Captain
Ono, his former second-in~command, to fird a secret spot at the-Yokoyama firing .
range, and Ono's selection of this place of execution imdicates s in absence of
any .explanation of these acts by either of the accused, that Ono was at least in-
- fluenced by Otahara to vote for the death penalty prior to the trial and, as law
member, to persuade the other members of the tribunal to do likewise. Such acts
on Otaharatls part were unlawful to such s degree that the trial was clearly
illegal and null,. However, os these acts of Otahara occubred after 12 July 1945
and when he was no longer the Chief of the Judicial Department of the Fifteenth
Areg Army, it appears. that the Commission determined that these acts after 12 July
1945.were not covered by the specification by its finding him not guilty of the
excepted words., It is therefore considered for the reasons heretofore and herelp
given that the Commission failed to find that Otchara cammitted a crime under this

" -
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specifications ' It is recommended that the findings in respect to this specifica-
tioh be disapproved, ; R : _

, i_Sgecificati,gp_é:‘ “The failure and neglect of Otehara to teke reasonable
measures, “in the supervision, direction and-control-of the Judicial Department,
end’ the investigation and the determination thereof, is zlleged in this. specifica-
tion, as the basis why Otahara did not: afford the fmerican flyers a legel, fair
and lawful trial, This same investigation was the basis’ for Otahezrals récommend-
ation of the death sentehce as.prosecutor and approvel thereof as Chief of the
Judicial Department, These acts together with .the preparation of the charges are
a part of the criterion in the initiation and commencement of the progeeding.in
Speciffcetion 1y /8 the Homicidel acts alleged: in this specification are a part
and included: within the homicidal acts slleged in Specification 1; it is recommiend-
ed that this specification be stricken-as duplicitous and the findings of the
Commission ‘thereunder be ‘disapproved, o ; '

' Acts Not Chargédt In the opinion of Gen. Uchiyema it was determined that
the Commission erred in finding the accused guilty.of the word "unlawful" preceding
the-word "killing". The Seme conclusion,: based upon the reesons previously set. -

out, can be made’ herein, These specifications -of Otshara could have been drafted
' to include ‘the "unlawful killing".as part-of the Romicidal act rather than as part
of the conclusion, If this had been done, Otshara's acts in ordering the imerican
fliers to be becheaded, and their partial beheading‘at the execution, would have
been part of the homicidal =ct, Otaliara's. éacts were illegal and unlawful in that
as a-staff officer He had no authority to order the manner in which the American
fliers would be executed, and the beheading itself is-illegal under Japanese regul-
ations., A trial, the senténce of death, its approval, and the order of execution
might be legal and lawful, but the execution itself; in the way it is carried out
be illegal and unlawful, " T N Bl ) ¥ ia )

The acts set out herein occurred. after 12 July 1945 and at the time
Otshara was officially Chief of the Judicizl Department ofthe Second General Army,
a superior command,” and had been’ relieved of his duties as Chief of the Judicial
Department of the Fifteenth Area Army,- The Cormission undoubtedly considered -
thege actg part of the homicidal act in sentencing Otehara to death. The Com-
- mission erred in considering this evidence for the obvious reason  that the accused
was not charged with thiis offense and it is not included in any of the specifica-
“tions with which he was charged, : “ o gl g L

. Opiyals Stetement: - i statement of the accused Ogiya was admitted in
evidence 4S Exhibit 38, This exhibit was not admitted as a confession but as an
affidavit, by the Commission (R, 127),' The SCAP and FEighth Army rules in respect
to confessions, Gen. Shaw's opinion that admissions in confessions against.co- -
accused sre admissible in eviderice, znd the decisions in the defense brief in
conflict with Gen, Shaw!s.opinion sare therefore not applicsble to the question
presented. The defense at the time.of the trial objected vigorously to the
introduction of this exhibit and in its Motion for Dismissal of the Findings .and
Sentence again stated the same grounds in asserting that the Commission erred in
admitting this. exhibit, Thé assertion by the defense that the exhibit was not
signed by Ogiya and is therefore insdmissible is rot in accordance with the
evidence, Part“Two of the exhibit is in the nature of an acknowledgment and
wes signed by Ogiya. In this part of the exhibit appears the statement, "The -
investigator just read my:lh-page statement and I acknowledge that it is true
to the extent of rmy memofy", and Ogiya's signature to the part of the exhibit
tontaining this quoted statement clearly cures eny,defect that-the statement,
Part Onhe of the exhibit, was. not signed, g 3k -

: Thet the statement was teken without permission of defense counsel and
therefore in violation of the ethics of the, Americen Bar ‘Associztion wes asserted

by the defense as afiother ground with respect to the admissibility of the exhibit.
The Low Member ruled -that although not in accordance with the custons in the
United States there was nothing in SC.P or Eighth ‘irmy rules to px.*ohlb:.t. it, Al-
though such' practice on the, pert' of the prosecution would be cgrA:s;.der.ed: unfair
and iaproper in the United States, it hes. been considered by SCAP as necessary

in arder to jsee that justice is meted ‘out’ in #ecordance with bhef__Po'_tsdam De\CIam-

tion, and it 18 therefore considered proper.
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The - defense statement that Oglya could not testlfy in a common trial __

.and that he would be.further prevented fromn dolng so under the Exclusion rule’
1is 'sn érror,: Ogiya could take the stand as .a prosecutlon or a defense witness
and there is: nothing in SCAP or Eighth Army rules to prevent it. Im the Manual
of . Courts—Martial, US Army, 1928, Sectlon 120-d P 125, the rule under Amerlcan
Military Practice is as £ollows~ FE ol PRSI R SR 4 \

"One : of two or more persons concerned in an offense is

ualways competent to testi whether he be. charged Jointly

-Or separately‘and whether;he;be tried JOlntly or” separately,
i qhgther he be called for the. _prosecution or for the *
,defense, except that heican not, if on trial himself, be

z called except upon::his own’ request "and if not on. tr1a1
. _h1m$elf ‘he: may. assert hlS prlvilege not to 1ncr1m1nate
h:.mself LU ;

The same rule can be adopted 1n the trial of suspected wer crimlnels., The fact
that Ogiya gave this ‘statement to help.out. hig own position, Page l of:Part One
of Exhibit 38, together with his: statement in- t Two. of the exhlblt that he
would testify unconditionally . and’ ‘clearly that his’ statements were. true if he .
_testified in court and that he would be able to tesyify to the truth of hi§
statement to thg. prosecutor at a tlme,clearly imply that he desired and was
willing to be a prosecutlon witness, -Under suth facts’ Ogiya could’ properly
testify for the: prosecutlon under - the rules cited herein. 1ncluding the exception,

As stated by the prosecutlon, in objecting to the 1ntroduction of affi-
davits of defense.witnesses without their right of cross-exsmination, a procedure
was adopted by ‘the Comm1351on, based on considerations of fairness; that an affi-
davit could be introduced in evidence, but if the individual meking the affidavit
was in Japan and available hé would be put on the stand for cross-oxamination,
Upon the ruling of the President of the Commission, the defense stated that it
would produce any of the affiants that the prosecution desired to cross~examine
(R: 161). The Commission erred in not following its procedure and allowing the
defense the right to cross-examine ‘Ogiya, It also.erred under the rule stated
in peragraph 3, Section l, ‘of the Rule of Procedure of the Eighth Army, to wit:

"The accused may take the stand as a witness or he may.
remain silent, If he takes the stand he may make a sworn ;
or unsworn statement but in either case he will be subject
_.to ‘cross~examination on ‘statement” made, cross-examination
.is nowise to be limited to matters: broughtaeﬂt on dlrect
xemination," ,

‘The Tule ad set out above is applicable in case either the prosecution or the
defense would ¢all one of the co-accused as a witness for or against one of the
other co-sccused in a common trlal. X statement. or affidavit hes the same purport
as if the individual had taken the stand. Thus, to permit the prosecution to put
a co-accused!s.statement in evideénce as part of their cese without cross-examina-
tion would.result in permitting the defense to offer a statement or affidavit of

one co-accused limited solely to the defense of another accused and not be subject
to the cross-examination by the prosecution. ~Application .of a rule of procedure,
to be fair, must be applied equally for or against both partles and not for the
benefit of one ﬂlone.

It .was unfair not to permit Otahara to cross-exemine "Ogiya when it is.
considered that he was the most hostile witness appeering against him. This is
illustrated by the follow1ng stotement in his affidavit: (Ex, /38, Part 1, p 1)

"I may be forced in the prosecytion to put most of the
,responsibility on you, - If you have any complalnt to
make -about Genersl Otaharals- ects, it would be be
for yéu to tell me now so that I may heve the whole -
story."
Ogiya, es superv1sor of the execution, hed a good resson to believe thzt he might
be held prlmerily responsible for the atrocity committed in the pertial beheeding

(p 38, Uchiyama et 7", Case #123)
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of ‘Nelson and Augunas, Other evidence pointing to Otahara as the ope who gave the
order to behead were hearssy statements,’ and Ogiya's testimony directly made
Otahera the one principally responsible for this cruel and inhumen atrocity.”

Such evidence undoubtedly caused the Commission to sentence Otehara to death,

where they might hove given him a life sentence based upon hearsay statements

of other hostile witnesses, Any militery commission trying war criminal suspects
should look with. suspicion on accusations made by one individual against others
involved in the seme act and determine carefully whether such dccusation is actually
trué or is.given for the sole purpose of falseély relieving himself of responsibil-
ity. : . ~ Ak s .

It is‘récdmmgnded on this point athe that the findings be disapproved,
YamaqgQE:‘. EERe :

‘Mej. Yamanaka was a staff officer and head of the Inteldigénce Section
of the Fifteenth Area Army with heedquarters in Osakas. “He was the presiding - .
member of the Japanese militsry tribunal which tried.Lt. Nelson and Sgt. Augunas
on 18 July 1945, "It was charged that he did, as presiding member of & Japanese
military tribunal, Specificetion 1, during the course of an (illegal), unfair, -
(f2lse and null) proceeding before said tribunal willfully (and unlawfully)
adjudge and determine certain (false and fraudulent) charges and evidence against
Lt, Nelson and Sgt. Augunas, American prisoners of war, without affording them
a feir-(and lawful) trial; Specification 2; diring the course of an (illegal),
unfair, (false and null) proceeding did willfully (and unlawfully) sentence to
death Lt, Nelson and Sgt. Augunas; Specificrtion 3, that he did willfully
(and unlawfully) fail to perform his duty as a tribunal member and -did neglect °
to provide a (legal), fair and-proper trial of Lt. Nelson and Sgt. Augunas; and,
applying to all specifications, did thereby contribute to the unlawful killing -
of said PW. (Parenthesized and underlined words indicate not guilty findings of
the Commission)., - - - ;

- . ”

. The opinion, under the case of Uchiysme, as to the effect of the
Commission!s findings of not guilty of the excepted words is appliceble to
the specifications of this accused. - e T

~ . .Teking into consideration that a Commission may find the accused not
guilty of certain words and phrases, the danger of splitting the homicidal acts
over -several relsted-specifications is illustrated by the specifications of this
accused, It might have been easier for the Commission to have adjudged this

case and much simpler to review if the prosecution had alleged the homicidal act
in one specification. ' ’ o '

B PONE R
. Speecification 1: The heart of Specification 1 was elimineted by the

findings of the Commission in excepting and findirg the accused not guilty of
‘the words "unlawfully" end "false .and fraudulent" which deseribe the cdjudging

of the cherges and evidence, The Commission,:by its findings of. not guilty of
‘these words, in effect found that’ the accused-lawfully determined certain charges
end evidence against Nelson:' and Augunas. Such was his duty end it is-obvious
that this act was intentional end not criminal in character.  Further, the Com- °
mission by its finding of not guilty of &1l of the excepted words, determined that
Nelson snd Auguhas were lawfully ond legelly tried under the Laws ehd ‘Customs of
War, By determining thet the accused lawfully adjudged certain charges anq
sentence against the captured Americen fliers, this part of the specification
.cen be eliminated, and all that is left is that during an unfeir trial the accused
did not afford the Americen fliers a fair trial. It is the same act as the accuse
“was charged with under Specification 3, as both specifications are affegted by
the findings of the Commission, and Specification 1 is therefore duplicitous,

It is recommended thst the findings in respect to-this specificetion be disapprove

Specification 2: Accused was found guilty of willfully or intentionally
(but lawfully) sentencing the captured American fliers to death wi thout affordlﬁg'
them o fair trial. It is noted that the word "unfair" was not used as-an adjectiv
.to:-déscribe the sentence of death, but was used only to modify the noun "PrOCGﬁdf
Arigh, The.Commission by its findings of not guilty of "illegel" and "unlowful',

v .
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determined thet the trial was legel and the sentence lawful under Internatlonﬁf
Law for acts committed in violation of ‘the Enemy Airmen's Act (&Ex, 16)

L0 the question “of the power of mllitary tribunals to hear, decide - and
condemn, the Supreme Court, of the Unlted States in the case of Yamashlta vs, Styer,
66 S, Cts, 340, 34k, 345, said: s
~MIf. the militery tribunals have lawful authority to hear,
~decide and- condemn, jhelr action is not ‘subject: to JudlClal
- review merely because. they have made. a wrong decision on:
) " disputed fects, Correctlon of -their errors of decision is
I < not for the courts but for the military authoritics which
' _ere alone- authorlzed to review their decisions; ‘See’ Dynes:
- v. Hoover, 20 How, 65, 81; 15 L. Ed, 838; Runkle v. United
,jutates, 122 UQSO 511'3; 555, 556 7 Sa Cto lll-lvl lll#5, 11[-!-6
- 30 L, Ed, 11673 Certer v, McClaughry, 183 Us s. 365, 22 S.
Ct..181, 46 L, Ed, 236; Collins v, McDonald, 258 U.S, 416,
42 Se ct. 326,66 L, Bd. 692 Cf, Mattér of Moran, 203 U.s.
96, 105, 27 8. Ct 25, 26, 51 L, Ed, 105.%

In the 1nstant case, Kuniteke, who «ctuglly rev1ewed ‘the proceedlngs ard’ sentence
of death, was acquitted- (Sp hs of; w1llfully and. unlawfully failing and neglecting
to ﬂfford a legal, fair, 1mpart1al and adequate review of the proceedings- and
sentence of death, The fact that the Commission found<the trial legal, the
sentence lawful and the review adequate cancels any determination that the accused
committed 2 criminel offense under this specification, - It is recommended that the
findings of this specification be disapprcved o
Specifdcation 3: ‘The'basis- of this Sp601flc tion is the lawful duty of
the accused to’provide 2 legal, fair, and proper trial to the American fliers,
The Commission, as affected by its findings, in effect found that he lawfully
pgrformed his duty and provided a legal trial, but failed to provide a fair.and
proper trizl: The failure to provide a foir and proper trdial, vhen the trial is
itself legal, is an act on the part of the members of the military tribunal not
sufficient in itself to make'the trial -2 nullity, but sufficient on review to
send it back for a new trial; thet the Commission Jud1c1ally determined that the
unfeirness in the trial was not criminal in character is shown by their flndlngs
of not guilty of Specifications 2 and 4 of Kuniteke, who actually made the reviéw
and Speclflc tion h, Uchiyama. Thus a judicial determinstion that the review was
sdequate in approving the proceedings and sentente of death indicates clearly that
the acts of the'members of the tribunel, who werée required to afford a fair end
impartiel trial, are not criminal. It is therefore considered that this specific-
ation, as gffected by the Comm1531on's findings, does not state acts which are
criminal end upon which 2 sentence can be imposed. It is recommended that the
findings in respeet to this specification-be disapproved. -

0no

Capt. Ono was senior judlclal offlcer under Otahara of the Judicial
Sectidn of the Fifteenth Area Army. He wes the legal member of the Japanese
military tribunal which-tried Lt. Nelson end Sgt. Augunas and was:charged with
the same specifications, except as legal member, as Yemanake. The Commission
found him not guilty of the same excepted words.

The opinion under the case of Uchiyema and Yemanaka above as to the |
effect of the Commission's finding of not guilty of~the except.ed -words and remarks
mede in re§pgct ‘to pretrial activities under Otshare'!s opinion is adopted as
part of this opinion. For the reasons heretofore expressed it is recormerded
that the findings of guilty be dlsapproved

Vﬂtsumorl

It Matsumori was a member of the Flfteenth Area Army acting as liajson
officer between the centrel army end the government offices, He was the asgociate
and’ Junlor member of the:Jepanese military tribunel which tried Lt. Nelson and
Sgt. Augunes, and wes charged with the same specifications except as a55001ate
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member as YEmanaka and Ono, The Commlsalon found him not guilty of the samedex-

cepted -words in Speciflcatlons l and 2 as Yamanaka and Ono, but not guilty of
Snec;fication 35

The oplnlon under the“case of Uchiyama and Yamanaka, as to the effect
of the Commissionts flnding of not’ guilty of the, exnepted words is adopted as
part of the oplnlon of thls accused,

§peclfication 1: In addltiOn t0 the opinion glven in respect to the

companion specifications of Yamanaka, attention is directed to the fact-that the
Comm1351on judicially. determlned by finding this accus not, guilty of: Specifica~-

on 3 that he was under’ no duty to provide e, legal, fair and proper. trial to
'L " Nelson and-Szt. Augunas. The Commission, therefore, erred in fihding the
accused guilty of-the phrase: without affording them 2 fair and lawful trial"
in this speclflcatlon. ALl the accused was found uilty 6f' in this specification
is that in an unfair trial under which he had no duty to, provids, he willfully
or intentionally (but lawfullz) adjudged. and determlned charges and evidence
ageinst Lt, Nelson and: Sgt. Augunas. AdJudglng and- determining charges- end
evidence against.an accused, stending alone, does not. constitute a criminal ect,
and it is therefore: con51dered that the Commission erred in finding the accused
"“guilty of this specification. It is recommended that the findlngs in respect
to this spe01flcet10n be dlsanproved . , -

wgec1f1catlon 2: For the reasons set forth under Specification 1, the
Commission erred. in Gthis specification in finding the-accused guilty of the phrase
rwithont affordlng them a fair trialh, ‘As eliminated, a2ll the accused was found
guilty-of Was willfully (Dut_;jwfullx) sentencing to. death Lt. Nelson and. Sgt.
Augunas+in an.unfair trial which the accused wes. under no duty to provide, Im-:
the elemency petition of the accused!s wife it is ‘stated that he:first firmly . -
opposed -the deeth. penalny, but other. members of the tribunal were opposed to-
this opinion and in the end decided to give a death sentence. Further the zccused's
wife steted that after the execution this accused made & tablet of the American
fliers and placed it in the femily shrine, where it wes worshlpped together with
the sp1r1ts of the famlly deceased.-

St.nd¢nc alone, votlng for a death penalty, when it is not_allcged that —
the sentehce itself is unfalr, is.not a criminal =act, end therefore it is con-
sideréd: that the Commission erred in. finding the ﬁccused guilty of this specifica-
tion. Tt-ig: recommended thﬁt the Tindings in respect to -this specification be

disapproved.; £

Speclflc tion 3: Not Guilty.

’Ogixq

I F 5 Cglye wes member of - the Judicial Depertment of the Fifteenth Area
-{rmy end-was appointed on the 14th of July 1945 as. prosecutor in place of Otahara,
Otehara was unable to continue as prosecutor in view of the fact that he wes re-
lieved-of his duties on 12 July 1945 by his transfer to the Secord General Army,
Ogiya made no 1nvast1get10n of the matter personally. The opinion under Uchiyema
as to the effesct. of the Commission's. finding the accused not gullty is appliceble
r,as to Spec1ficat10ns 1 and 2 and not Specification 4,

: Spec1f1catlon 1: Ogiya was .charged in this Speciflcetlon as prosecutor
of a Jepsnese militaryetribunel during the .course-of (illegal), unfair, (false

- and fraudulent) proceeding before said tribunal sgainst t Nelson ond Sgt. Au Augunas,

“American: PW, that he did willfully (and unlawfully) present (false and fraudulent)

* charges and evidence against them ‘ond "did ‘thereby contribute to the unlawful
killing of said prisoners of wer,  The Ccmmlssion found the accused not guilty

of words pe renthe%Ized and -underlired. . oy

11 the Commission found the accused guilty. of in this Speclflcatlon is
w1llfu11y or. 1ntent10nally préesenting charges .and. evidence against the American
.fliers. He was under no duty to afford-them.a:feir trial other then fcirly
"presentlng the ev1dence to ﬂ1e tribunal, and as ffected by the f1ndings of ‘the

(p l.;l, Uchiyema et 7, Case #123)
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Commission it is clear thet. all he was found guilty of in this spec:.ficatlon wes —
- performing his duty.in presenting the charges and evidence, end if this is 2
~—crime all prosecutors-in any criminal.-case would be equally guilty of a crime.

The Commission after: finding ‘that-he: 'was: not. guilty of the. excepted vords erred
“in finding him guilty ofithe. epeclficetion' It is. recommended that the findings

in respect to this specification ‘be disapproved. . '

Specification 2: - This specificatlon is the same as Speeification 1
except thet after "Americen P -the homicidal act is alleged to be "did willfully
(and- unlawfull ) request and jobtain this: sentence of death” in plece of “the phrase
re erring to the nresentment of the chafges and evidence, .

- In the parts thet 'sre “the same ‘the €ommissz.on excepﬁ‘é‘d"ﬁre “Stme words -
as in Specific tion 1 and’in the guoted. phrase found the ‘accused not - guilty of

the word "and’ unlc.w:t‘ully" One of the duties of a prosecutdr in an important
capital case is to ‘ask:for: the death sentence and the: jury, judge, or military
commission are the ones to.-determine and ‘are respon51ble for the wverdict and the
sentence of death, Under: the findingd, as affected by the: Comm1351on, no affirm<-
~ative act of :Ogiya . remains- indicating that the request for the death sentence i
was ‘unlawful or ‘unfair or that his request, standing e.lone, caused the military ~*
tribunal ‘to ‘vote.for the death sentence. . The Commiss:Lon, after determining that-
‘'he was not guilty of the .excepted words erred in.finding him gullty of a-eriminal’
act in this specific¢ation., It is recommended that findinus in respect to this-
specification‘be disapproved,

Specification 3: Not Guilty. -

*. Specification 4: Ogiya was charged under this specﬁication .as prosecutor
of a, Japanese military tribunal that he did (willfully and unlawfully) supervise
(2rd. direct) the illegal killing of .Nelson and Sgt. Augunes. He was found
not ‘guilty of the words 1n pere esis ‘and underlined. '

This spelelcetion is different from the spec:.fications heretofore set .
out in.that the. "ilYegal killing" is made part of the homicidal act. Further,
-the Commission excépted the word "mllfully" as well os "unlawfully" in its.
flndlngs. '

© .. It appears’ that the Commission found the accused guilty of involuntary
manslanghter. ‘Thus, as said in 6 Bull, JAG 240-and 241, "a specification alleg-
ing an-funlawful killing' and fa:.lmg to allege words of willfulness or intention
to: kill, as in ‘the instant case, constitutes a specification alleglng involuntary
manslaughter only # % 3 for which.the. maximum eonf 1nement given by -the Teble of
Maximum Confinement is three yeers," :

Involuntary menslaughter has been defined in 40 C.J.S., PP 918-919, ‘to
mean 1

"As deScribed at common law and ‘under statutes substantially
declaratory thereof, 1nvoluntary manslaughter consists in-
the killing of another without malice and unintentionally, '
“in doing some unlawful act not amounting to a felony or
‘naturally tending to cause death or great bodily" harm, or.
in doing some act lawful in itself in an unlawful ménner -
or negligently, or by the negligent omission to perform a

" legal duty. .The unlawi‘ulness of the act in connection with

' . * which the killing occurs is the el ement which distinguishes
involuntary manslaughter from 2 killing excusable as by
~accident or misfortune, It 1éf- difficult to separate sharply
“an unlawful act from a lawful act done in an unlawful manner
or mthout due caution or clrcumspection." ' g

In. the case: of Stete vs, Anderson, ll6 Pacific, 398, 401, 100 Utah h68 the court
held that an act which is not itself illegal » but which in 2 given case ‘becomes
illegal because of the menner in which it is performed, is a lawful act done in
an unlawful manner.

(p 42, Uchiyama et 7, Case $123)
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Qgiya was required as prosécutor to supervlse t’he ‘execution under
ggpmqse regulations and the fact that he did supervigse the execution was not ™
‘in i4self unlawful, As the supervisor he had the daty to order Nekamichi to
exaeoute the flyers and see that it was carried out in a legal manrer, ~This’
order, standing alone, was deemed lawful by the findings of-the Commission as
it was based upon‘a legal trial, & lawful- sentence ‘of death, an adequate review,

- and & proper execution order,’ The execution of a person to be: Just:.fiable, ‘howe
ever, must be in pursuance of the senténce of a competent court and in strict
conformity therewith (41 CJS, p 967)% Ono at the tr ia]l stated that the American
flyers would be executed in accordance with regulations and under these regulas-
tions, Bx, 16, and the evidence;. the légal method ecution would be by
"shooting", The execution was not ‘ecarried:out in st t conformity with the
orders of the -gourt in that the order was first given to behead and as a- result -
thereof the American flyers: were part.lally ‘beheaded., Thus the executionm, al-=
though based. upon a legal execution. order,-becaine: unlawful by the manner in mhlch
it was performed., ~Although the proof does:not sust;a.in the fact thet ‘the part:al
beheading caused the death: of the American flyers , it was part of the execution -~
that resulted in their death by: shootlng. “If not a cont.ributory factor to their -
death, this cruel "and inhuman atrocity is at least a lesser. ineluded offénse.

It is therefore considered thst the findings of the Commiss:.on are legelly suffi-

“cient to Sustain a finding that the accused was guilty of the. atrocity ‘of partial

beheading, a lesser included offense of the alleged kllllng of the American flyers.

Nakemichi i L =z j

Captain Nakemichi was. the head of the Os'\ke mllitery prison and he, at
the time of the execution, under' the supervision of Ogiya, gave the orders for
the guards-to decapitate Lt, Nelson-and Sgt. Augunas, -and immediztely order the
guerds to shoot:the American flyeérs when they failed to ‘gever their heads, . -
Nekamichi was- charged with (willfully and unlawfull 11y) ordering subordinates to~
kill, and through their acts, did unlawfully kill Lt. Nelson and Sgt, Augunas,
He wes found not guilt v of the words parenthe51zed and underl:.ned. '

The wordsy in this . specification, "the unlawful killing", are made part
of the homicidal act;fand it 8iffers from the other speclflcatlons heretofore.
set out, other than’ Speeification 4, Ogiya. In these other specifications j the
words- "unlawful killing" are a part of the conclusion. As in Specification 4,
Ogiya, the Comnu.ss:.on alsa excepted and: found the accused not guilt.y of the word
"vullfully" o} T ;

As stated in the opmion of Oglya, it appears "that the accused was found,
as. affected by the findings of the Commission, guilty of involuntary menslaughter,
Upon the facts, which arec the same as under Specification 4, Ogiya,. ard for the
reasons that are set out therein, it is considered that the findings of the
Commission areslegelly sufficient to sustain the finding that the accused was
gnilty of the atrocity of partial beheading; a lesser 1nc1uded offense of the
unlawful kllling of the Amerlcan flyers. '

Summa‘rx:’ Ty e e AR

; The record is not legally sufficient to support the findings of the’
Commission except as .to Specification 4,”Ogiya, and Nakamichi: Each allegation
of thé charge snd Specification 4, Ogiya, ‘and Specification 1, Nakamichi, as

" affected by the  Commission's findings was substantially sustalned by ample and-
eompetent cvidence, ‘The Commissioh was constituted by ‘proper authority and had -
Jurisdiction of the accused and of .the offénses alleged., All the accused were
very ably represented by competent counsel,

The accused Uchlyama was the only accused who took the stand and t.’/ stified
in hlS own behalf, - Under SCAP and Eighth Army rules of procedure, the ot,he.r
accused elected not to best:.fy.

Other than Obahera, a. careful scrutiny of the entire record fails to
reveal any error which injuriously ‘affected the substantial’ rights of the accused
or any fallure to” atcord them a fair triel in every respecti It is deemed that
the introduction of the affidavit of Ogiya without cross-examination is the only
error in wh:.ch Otahera was not accorded 2 fair trial,

(p h3, Uchiyama et 7, Case #123)
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‘There is no evidence that any of the accused were insane at the time of™
the commisalon of the alleged acts and et the time of the trial. -

'5}- Recommendatlons.

-

There wsre no. requests for clemency from any menber of the Comm1331on,
and the letters of clemency flled for ;nch of the = Lccused’from friends- and relatives
have been duly con31dered. s

: The Japanese and assoclate counsel for the defense have each submltbed
briefs, - The*prosecutlon filed an answer brief md the assoclate ceunsel for the
defense replled. &ll brlefs have been read and considered :

“The Comm1331on sentenced the accused Otahara to be hanged by the neck
until dead -and flve of the other accused to be confined at hard labor as follows:

Uchlyama, thirty (30) ysars 4
Kunitake; three (3) years ~..7
Yamanaka, twenty-five (25) years
Oho, thirty (30) years. -

 Matsumori; ten (lO) vears IR

On the bas1s of the speclflcatlons, as affected by the flndlngs of the Comru:.ss:.on,
it is deemed that the acts of ol1l: of the above aceused of “which they were . found
gullty do riot cohstltute a wer crime under: ‘the Laws and Customs of War, and the
sentence g;ven to each of the nemed accused is therefore not legal. ; :

Ogiye: The Commission sentenced the accused to conflnement gt herd labor
for o period of three years, The sentence is legal, Taking into consideration
the recommierdation ‘that this accused be found not guilty of Speciflcﬁtlons 1 eand 2
and the further fact ‘that he .cooperated with' the prosecution, it is deemed that a
grester sentence could be given for the cruel and inhuman’ 1troc1ty of pertially
beheading theiAmerlcan flyers., Ogiya, - under the evidence, knew that the beheodlng .
! “%as”unlawful, However, in order that the accused might -receive
some'p,7ishment for the crimes of which he has been found guilty, it is recammend—
ed that clemency be denied and.the sentence be approved, Accused was confined’

29 March 1946, went to trial 18 July 1947, and was sentenced on 28 August 1947,
Under estebllshed pollcy, ow1ng to the lerigth of time accused has been in confine~
ment; mrior to- ‘senténce, it is fur ther recommended- that fourteen (14) months of the
sentence thus imposed be remitted,. - Sugamo Prison, Tokyo,_Honshu, Japan, is the
anproprlate plece of conflnenent. 4

pis

3 Nak chl - The fact that thls accused knew that the beheadlng was unlawful
end that he se%ected the guerds that partially beheaded the American flyers, a
more sePious atrocity than if they had .been heheaded cleanly, indicates that a
mich ‘greater sentence could have been given this accused, However, in order that

; the ‘accused may receive some punishment for the crimes of which he has been found
guilty, 1t is recommended that clemency be denled and- the sentence be approved

hccused was conflned 29 March l9h6 went to trial 18 July 1947, end was
sentenced 28 lugust 1947, Under “established policy, owing to the length of time
the accused has been in confinément prior to sentence, it is further recommended
‘that ‘fourteen’ (14) months of the sentence thus imposed be remitted, Sugamo Prlson,
Tokyo, _Honshu, Japan, 1s the aoproprlate place of conflnement.

6. 'ctlon-

nttached hereto are forms of actlon de81gned to carry into effect the .
above recommendations,

MAHLON Z. ZUBANK

Reviewer 7 X
» Judge Advocate Section
ufly - (P hh, UChlyama et 7, Case #123)
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1,  The conclusions in the foregoing review are not concurred in, in general,

2. The following points are especially noted: el
&, A judge in the "Military Discipline Conference or "specialt tribunal,

as these sq-called courts were designated, had the duty to determine guilt by

independent judgment. (Ex, 43 Ex. 7; Ex. 16, p. 19; and Ex. 39, pe 27)s

b, The president of the court which tried Nelson and . Aug: s the
Chief of ‘Intelligence of the 15th Army Group Headquarters and:had-interrogated
Nélsbn a8 &n investigator before he sat as judge (Ex.’6, p. 23 Ex. 36, p., 1)
and he Was activé in the investigation (Ex. 36, pp.'2, k). The law member
of the three-man court, Ono, Wwent with his superior,~the Chief of the Legal -
Section of the 15th-Ares Army, accused Otshara, to the Second General Army -
Headquarters (a ‘,S-!'ipefior,;iﬁhits" ‘b0 submit ‘4 letter of inquiry concerning the
death sentence (Ex;i 27, pe 5). Ono arranged the execution place beforehand
(Ex, 27, p. 6) on the ordér of Otshara, who had diretted that the prisoners
be decapitated (Ex. 31, p..2; Ex, 38, p. 5; Ex, 39, p. 10) and he notified

a that he’would have little to do at-thé trial (Bx. 38, p.5). The

Ogly : - hay ;
graves were dug before the tiial (Ex. 27, p. 6)e

d s ; ATy SRS . :

¢, “The third-judge, acciséd Matsumori, had no choice in voting the death
penalty, He said, "I voted the death penalty for the two flyers * 3 ¥ be-
cause it couldn't be helped: The decision cannot be helped.": {Ex. 11).
According to -the rules féllowed by the court, the accused were not permitted .
to defend themselves (Ex. 6, -p+3). Otahara éxplained to the Chief of Staff -

that the sentence "is going to be a death gentence" and the latter and thé

Commander relied on the former wnd considered only the death sentence (Ex. 36,
pRe 9, 11), The Commander appointed the court from a recommendation by the
Légel Chief for thé law member (Ono) and from that of the Chief of Steff as
to the president” and third member (Ex. 36, 'ps 1k). The Chief .of Staff picked
the president because he wes the Intelligence Officer &nd knew about air
reids, It was known that the president’had arranged to execute other flyers

_without trial (mx. 36, p. 165 Ex. 37, p, 2).

d, It'is _'c,ont[rar/yrt.o or;iinéi‘y proceduré that those who have investigated
a case should sit as'judges- (Ex, 39, pi-2), L

. e. After the trial on the mornﬂré'of 18 July, the Chief of Staff approved
the sentence during the noon hour for the Commander. , The presiding officer
of the Gourt reported that the flyers accepted the prosecutor's charges, al-
though He khew that Nelsot hsd Blbbterly: photested.the senténce as unjustified

3

(Exs 27, pp, 8 and 93 Ex.~28tParta§,p§5§Ex; 36, p. 18), The execution

was held’the same .afternoofi’ (EXa 36;.ps 24) and the prisoners buried in the
pré-dug ‘graves. Secrecy as to*the attempted decapitations and as’to. the
execution was enjoihed (Ex. '27;°p3 113 Ex. 36; p. 27), the decision coming
from the Chief of Staff (Ex: 36, p.» 27). Ono, the law member, wes to claim
that the prisoners had been killed in a bombing raid (Ex. 27, p. 12), Captain
Ofio remsined in the Legal Section after his Chief, Otzhara, left (Ex. 36,
pe 27).° It wos usual for subordinntes to know what-was going on in an office
(Ex. 36’\}). 26). : B | 23S ! " i , o 1
' £ Otahara attended, the trial, saw the execution party off with encour-
aging words and wes still considered head of the Legzl Séction. at the time
of . trial (®x, 28, Part L, p. 93 Ex, 27, p, 133 Ex. 38, pe L). He stated
afterwards that sincé the truth Had leaked out, he would be punished (Bx. 39,
pe 12)4 it s . s ' A=y ~
" g. The Legal Chief, who succeeded Otshara, stated that the time from the
end’of the trial to the execution wes too ‘short (R. 138) &nd a member of the
Judicial Séetion of the Japanese Army stated that he had never heard of a'
case where-the grave was dug before the trisl and the execution within six
Yours of the time the sentence wes adjudged (R, 192), , After the Occupation
had commenced »nd the matter wes being investigsted both by the Japanese
Government and the Occupation Forces, Genersl Uchiyema came to the conclusion

F
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-that further insistence on.the false story. that bomblng killed the flyers
was futile "since concealment was 1mpossible" and sent word 40 the others
to tell.the truth (Ex. 39, p. 13)

h. On the stend Uohly . desc"'ed himself as‘a descendant of Samural,
whose father was. a General fore- hlm,'aide to- the Emperor. and married to
the daughter of en Admirad* (R, 196), He recited his victorious’ command
experlences agalnst the Ru351ans and the Chlnese (R. 196, 197).

3. Commsnb e
SN g 2 e

o The court deletedrt e words: legal" "unlamfully" &nd simllar type
words with reference to the trial and found gullt as to.the "unfeir" pro- .
ceedings involved . therein, The findings of the court in thls regard wers
clear and logital ‘under the evidence.. The trial wes on its face Mlegal! in
‘the sense that it-followed -the . formal rules as' set out by the Japanese auth-
arities., However, in. actusllty 1t was’. ’ovtrial at all, It was, ‘whet is
known in the vulgate, as a Mfixed": brlal. “The evidence is compelling that
each cog in the machlne wa's ready in QGVﬂnce to perform its reSpectlve
. function, - “Each. person knewrWhat he -wes' éxpected to! do beforehand and he

performed, .- A more efficient dea chine ‘48 difficult to imagine, No
mejor hitch occurred until afterwa *’vTrue, when Lt. Nelson ledrned as the
sentence wWas ‘pronounced what he was being tried for, he. almost” upset the-

" equanimity of this preplanned justlce by protesting bitterly the unfairness

of it all, But this was merely a momentary ruffling of the serenity of & .
mock trial and the full dress party in‘which the chief handyman, Otahara,
for the architect Uchly.ma was honored, proceeded w1thout “interruption
following the trial,

+b, . The trial was as formally correct as was Otahara in his ribbons and
white gloves as. he wished the executioners well, But he knew, 2s it appears
from the ev1dence, that all the participants knew that the whole proceeding
lacked the one prime prerequisite'of a real trial, fairness, It was "Legal
in form, but unfair in substence," "A goodly apple rotten at the core," like
o "smlling v1llain" or "A-house built on shlfting sand

c. Yamanaka, .and. Ono hnd 1nvest1gated the case beforehand and were thor-
“oughly acquainted with the fact that the death sentence was agreed upon *in
advance and expected by their superiors. The third member of the court well
expressed the situation when he said in effect that he voted for death because
“He hed no choice end could not help it. Therefore, there is no escape from
the con#lusion that the trial was .a mere rationalization and an attempt to
-cover-up with an-apperent legal exterior a predetermlned declsion. The .
trial wes unfair, prejudged -and in bad faith,

: d, .In whﬂt strong contrast do the trials afforded by the Occupation
Forces to. those accused of war crimes stand out? Interpreters, investigators,

“clerical help, .Japanese counsel and Arerican advisory counsel of a hlgh order
ar'e . supplied to the accused without charge. Free communication service.

- throughout the world for' the purpose of securing evidence is provided, Yit-

- nesses are procured when available and requested by the accused. An open
hearing is provided before unbiased- judges who are subject to challenge for

. ceuse, If the accused is convicted, an automatic appeal follows in which the

. vérbatim record is studied in detell by highly competent legally-treined re--
viewers who scrutinizé the record and allied papers for any evidence of' un-
.fairness or injustice. The record is once more completely read and studied
by the Judge Advocate and the final results and recommendations submitted to
the Commanding General.. He, in turn, carefully considers the matter anew
(de novo), even cons1der1ng ecvidence outside of (dehors) the record if it -~

' favors the accused, In his decision hé may and does where it is justified,
require e new trial or disapprove the actions of the court. He cannot teke’
sction to increase the severity of the cowrt's verdict, In death cases
another. automatic review follows, in which a’Board of HReview in the office of
the Judge Advocate for the Supreme Commander, agein studies the record, Ths
Judge Advocate there also thoroughly goes into the me tter and finally the
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sqprgmg Commander himself‘carefully Gonsiders the dase’ before an execution
15 ordered.  Thus the>difference. between a-falr trial and an unfair one is
“highlighted, The Japanese-lawyers in this case Join 'in the feeling that. |
trials of the. type just mentioned are. fair.\ (See their brlef)‘

* e.’ A test for proper trlals 1s glven in: "The Law of Martlal Rule"
(1943), pps. 26h, 265; Fairman°', '
"Mbmbers of such a trlbunal should “of course, act in -
accordance‘wmth the prlnC1p1es of JustiCe, honor, humanity,
\ "',They sHould give the
prlsoner every reasonable facllltyzfor maklng his defense
“arid should avoid unnecessary severity, ¥ % # What the c1v1l
Yaw does require _e-who admhnlster punishment under -
martlal rule has t : een stated. # % %:  That in all
cases there should be a grave . and serious examlnatlon into
‘the conduct of the accused' every act should evince an
, attempt to dlscover guilt or 1nnocence, 1ot “to 1nf11ct
torture." 5 .

) Hackworth, "Digest of Internatlonal Law", Vol. V, Sec; 522, p. 528,
sayst. St :
-"* . The treatment of an allen 1n order to constltute an’
L ‘international dellnquency should amount to an’ ‘outrage, to
- _bad faith, to willful neglect 'of duty,.or to. an insufficiency
- of governmental action so far short of internatiohal-standards
. -that. every reasonable and 1mpartlel man would readily recog- -
" nize its insufficiency, Whether the 1nsufflciency proceeds”
,frpm deficienit execution of an intelligent law or from the
- fact that the laws of the country do not empower - the authori~
tleS to measure up to 1nternatlonal staniards 1s 1mmater1al n

'35 CJS, p. h83, deflnes a falr hearlng ast

"One in. whlch authorlty is: falﬁly exerclsed that is; con-
_sistently with the fundamental. principles of justice, em-
‘bracded within the concepilon of due process of law,. The P
_term. impliesa tribunal free from bias and prejudice ¥ * 3 ,
Gt Speclﬂlcally, the term ;mplles ‘that ‘a party concerned shall -
-~ not 'only have an’ opportunity Lo presgent evidence in his favor,
3 _bub-also. that he shdll be spprised of the evidence against '
. .“him,. g0 that at the gonelusion of the hearing he may be in
. a position to’ know all ‘the, evidence on which the matter is
" to be:decided, ¥ % #i "Alsg that he shall be advised of the
~ charges and: ithe assistancd of counsel, has been held a
~fundamentallrequisite of !'fair hearing!, % # * In the case
~of one placed under arrest on charges,<the term implies: the’
'rlght to be apprised .of the nature of the charge agalnst
him, and ‘the. opportunity to meet 1t u e '

o Defense urges that one accused of war crimes (as distinguished from

a prlsoner of war nof so'accused) need: not be tried at all, but mey be punish-
ed by executive: flat _Yet defense inconsistently (but correctly) urges that
the. persons ‘here accused as ver criminols must have a2 fair trial, The latter
reesoning is the sounder and more acceptable to. civilized peoples. The form
of ‘a hearing’is not important, the substance is vital.. The accused must have
a fair.chance to ‘defend himself, which means that he must have a fair hearing
which is not, prejudged.. Japan. chose in the NelsonrAugunasacese to follow the
form of 2 tr;al in its determination of guilt, It was required to have a
hearing in which the accused have an opportunlty fo defend themselves. They .
must be proved and fairly. determined to be- guilty.:

—
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Oppenheim Internationgl Law, Lauterpecht's Sixth Edition, Vol. 11,
p. 458, states that -appropriate safeguards’ under the law of war should be
accorded an accused war criminal, ‘Thesé include a fair and public trial and
the.. ellmin:tlon of any purely’ summary punishment procedure, . The Yamashita
cesé, 665, Ct.. 340 l.c., 352, holds, that: - ‘"Independent of notice require-
nepts of tﬁe Geneva convention, it is a violation of?a law of war, on which
there could be & cohviétion if supported:by- evidence, to: inflict capltal
punishment.on: prlsoners of‘war withoub affordlng to them: opportunlty to! make
a defense.“ - . ;
, These requlrements of 1nternatlonal good consclence, unlversally
recoghized by .civilized netions, wers not met. 1n a proceeding such as that
promulgﬂted under the aegis of General UchlyEma :

PE: h. In view of the foregolng reesonlng, the questlon as tofwhether the
prevalence of family wer-aiding factories throughout the urban Kobe-Osaka.

area, justified ‘bombing of that trban ‘area become meot, The claim thet such
bombing was indiscriminete and: -4 war crime ‘cannot be goncurred in, but since
_that point is not neceesery to a det rminetlon of" this case it w1ll ‘not.be .
. further discussed’ herey " i) (S OO B >

i, Deteils offthe proof as applled to speciflcatlons ere con31dered
hereafter: g , P Rt T

" (1) Uchiyama. Speclflcatlon l, not guilty findifg, Overlaps other

Speciflcatlons and doubtleqs consldered as a dupllcatlon. 43 ?‘, ‘

Speclficatlon 2, approval of. the findlng of gullty of thls
speclflcetlon is recommended. “Although Kunitake actually approved the
sentence, he was acting in 2 ministerial capacity. It was Uchiyama's act.
Hence, a flndlng of not guilty as to Kunitake .is not inconsistent with the
guilty finding here, The speclflcatlon alleges: "By his cwn act ¥ % .1

A Sp901flcatlon 3, the finding of gullty should be apprOVed. A
flndlng of not' guilty of Speclflcatlons 1 2and 4 is not inconsistent since
these overlap and duplicate in part, "hen Uchiyama approved -the unfair
proceedings, he therefore was a party to the order of execution, which he

actually cccomplished in ﬂdvance.

] As t6 'his sentence, it seems epperent that the court was very
lenient with’ him. He boastfully spread on the record his end his family's
"chlévements, 2s persons among the elite of the Japanese militaristic clique.
He is in the category of persons condemned in countless petitions received
in these war crimes cases from the Japanese "common men!, who asks forgive-
ness of the "small fry" war criminal on the ground that he was misled by
‘the militarists. Uchiyema places himself in that class by his testimony
-and actions. The fact that he was instrumentel in finally persuading several
of . the accused to abandon their false stories should be considered; but is
of little oid in eveluating his case because the impelling motive was his
knowledge that he would be found out in any event, Two active investigatlons
were in progress, one by the Jepanese government under the Occupation eye, -~
and the other by the Occupation forces., Higher authority than Uchiyama hed
.decreed that the truth would come out, It was natural and "smart" to send
word to his underlings to "come.clean"., Then Uchiyama could assert that he
was ‘a men of honest .purpose and cntitled. to- clemency for his goodwill. No
reduction in Sentence is recomménded.

(2)-Kun;take.
' ... Specification 3, Not guilty flndlngs of Speciflcations 1, 2
end L merely absolve thls accused from responsibility. for the acts alleged
in those Specifications, but do not deny their occurrence, . In view of the
evidence ‘and reasoning set out above, it is: believed that the finding of
guilty in this specificatlon should be approved.

.-1: .
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: The sentence of only” three years is not understandable, Kunitake
wzg, the willing right hand of the designer of this tragedy, Uchiyama, He
personally participated in the acts which effectuated it, - His sentence should
be approved y

(3) Otahara.‘i -3

: This accused was the Chief of the Legal Section, made. arrangements
prior to trlal for the beheadlng of the flyers, selected his assistant and a
former investigator in the case as the law member, urged secrecy, participated
in the' arrangements even.ﬁfter his’ paper transfer to ‘a higher echelon, attend-
ed ‘the trial and encouraged the executioners to thelr work., . He received a
senténde of death, ' '

Speeification 1, The flnding of guilty of this speclflcatlon
should be approved, Notw1thstand1ng that the accused was transferred on *
paper from the 15th Area Army on’l2 July, six days before the purported trial,
he continued - ectually through the completlon of ‘the trial directing and super-
vising the furtherance of the plot for a fictitious hearing and’ illegal exeeu-
tion,, Furthermore, the trlal was a logical culmination of acts ‘performed by -
this accused. prior to trial on 18 July, such as nomination 6f a law- member
whose ‘vota was committed in advance, Whether UChlyama ‘and’ Kuniitake ‘were con-
‘victed.of command responsibility for the actions charged would: be: 1mmaterial
since Otahara weuld nonetheless be resp0n51ble for his- de actlons.

) Speciflcatlon 3. The reasonlng as to thls Speclficatlon may be
found under Spec1flcetlon 1 above. ‘ » . r_v

, Specificatlon L, L1kew1se, the loglc of Spec1f1catlon 1 may be
applled here, Some duplicitous festures appear in these spe01flcatlons, but
the sentence adjudged is legal for conviction of any one of the specifications,

The issue is raised that a statement of Ogiya wes offered in
evidence, and that it added to the proof c~ga:mst ‘Otahara to the extent that
he was prejudiced thereby, that Ogiya was not. available for.cross examination,
It is true that hé could not be forced to take the stand, However, it is not
observed that defense did not have the same opportunity to question him out
of court that the prosecution utilized, ‘Statements by oné accused incrimina-
ting another aré ‘admissible against’ the latter. The protection extends only
to the person making the statements, It should be remarked, nevertheless,
that a statement by one accused incriminating another and exculpating him-
self is alwe to be scrutinized with greet severity before it is considered
against a person not- a party. to the statement., If it has probative value to

& reasonable persan, it is admissible, but it should be weighed carefully
w1th the thought in mind’that it is natural for & person to blame others in
order to protect himself,

£ Either side may attempt to secure facts from a witness out of
court, but consideration for proper ethics suggests ‘thot prosecution should
not 1nterrogate an accused unless his assigned counsel is present or consents,

o In the instant cese, the evidence of guilt of Otshara is com-
pelllng even if the statenent by’ Oglya is dlsregerded so in any event no
prejudice resulted to' the accused.

9 . As to the sentence of depth it is believed that the sentence is
legal, “but that clemency should be’ exerclsed to the extent of commutation
to life 1mprisonment at hard lsbor, Uchiyama was a person of strong will
and. there is no question from the evidence that he was the "head man" in
this affair. Recommendations were made by this.accused, it-is true; and.
details were -accomplished likewise.. The person with- the power of "yes" or
no! was.no.ohe else of the accused but- Uchlyema. It is not considered.that
under these facts, as shown in evidence, the principal should escape with:.a
sentence less than death and his helper .(no matter how W1lling) be hanged;

A sentence of 1ife imprisonment is believed to be appropriate,

-
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(4). Ysmanaka: mw

- This was the presiding oi'a‘,‘icer’ of the coutrt, He was the chief
investigator and functioned as such in ‘this case: before mounting the bench,

He violated the most fundamental rulee of fair ple:,r in ot announ¢ing his
disqualifications, He acted-under the compulsion admitted by the third -

member of the court who said, in effect, that: they wereé allowed no dlscretion
in adjudging the death sentence, . _The chargee under Specificatioris 1, 2 and.

3 overlap in places, but a finding of guilty of any one justifies the sentence,-
He participated in the futile effort to 'conceal the crime by falsity and,
artifice, playing a leading role, Hé knew beforehand that his superiors’ex-
pected the flyers to be:executed (Ex. 1, p. 1, Ex. 5, Pe 5; Ex. 6, po 2),

The f:l,ndings and sentence s‘nould be approved.
(5) 01'100

: The dlscussion concerning Yamanaka eppl:Les likewise: to Ono. In
addition it should be remarked that he was ‘assistant to the Chief of the Legal
Sectlon, knew the desires of his superiors ‘beforehand, -acquiesced and parti— s
* cipated in thelr accomplishment even to a greater degree than Yamanaka and -
.Was & key man. in.the accompl:.shment of the crim:.nel purpose ‘involved, - His
sentence should be . approved. :

(6) Matsumorle y L i - : 1
' ThlS accused is'in a dlfferent category from that of those

d:.scu,esed. hereto,  He particlpated in the fatal achievemént: of “the unfair -
trial, it.1is true, Nevertheless ‘he. did not take as active A part as did
Ono and Yamaneka. o , & Ty

. By acquittlng him of Speclfication 3, the commise:.cn did not" .
find that he had no duty to. furnish a fair ’ etc., trial ut merely deleted
that Specification as & duplication.’ _

, Specifications l and 2 overlap 1n places y ut conv1ction of
either just.lfles the sentence adjudged. :

: , With reference to clemency, however, it is observed that this
accused was only a participant in a minor way. Two-thirds of the court
were men of 'whose prearranged decision their superiors had no doubt. Their
actions, could . accomplish the design even had Matsumori voted not guilty. He
lacked the ,courage to stand up against this. false trial and voted with the -
majority. Yet_ his heart was not in the "bloody ‘business", &s evinced by
‘the fact that he erected a small tablet to the souls of the flyers, placed
4t in his household shrine by those dedicated to-his family and prayed daily
for the soule of the flyers whose deat.hs ‘he assisted in accomplishing.  Such
feelings, of hwnemty and repentance should be recognized, It is believed
that the unexecuted portion of his sentence should be susperided.

(7).0glya.
Th:ls was the prosecutor.

- , It is recommended that the finding of guilty of Specification 1
be dlsepproved because the evidence which convicts this accused of wrongful
actions does not- depend upon presentation of ‘false evidence and charges in
the flyers! case, but is hinged on an unfair, packed, "closed" court which
prejudged the case-. and allowed no defense.

. Speclficat.ion 2, howsver, should ‘be epproved. The accused was
established a8 a participetmg gecessory .in the whole of the unfair. proceed-
ings. .He was advised by Qtehara, in’ substance, that .the skids were greased

_-and_that his performance was ‘merely to ‘be perfunctory, He knew that-the
death sentence wes a foregone conclusio_n and made his preparat.ions for
exécution and burial a,ccord:mgly.
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Specificat,ion L should be approved. The actions of which Oglya
#ed properly convicted, under Specification 2, resulted in the illegal killing -
of the flyers: The offénse under this specification, taken by itself, amounts
to an equivalent of involunt.ary manslaughter, inasmuch as the commission de~
leted the word "willfully", ' Since the trial -was unfair, the killing was il-
legal, Guilty knowledge by Ogiys is “evident alsé from his participation in
the false story and concealment of the crime (Ex. L;) The sentence should be
approved. ; \

(8) Nakam.ch:..
'I(b" r /

The discussion undef Specification L;, egiya, is. applicable here,
The sentence should be approved.

Lo It is reassuring in the review of such sordid st.ories as the rec%;g re=-
veals in this case to find incidents of humah virtue, of repentance re-
gret, such as that diSplayed by Matsumori. Thus it becomes apparent that -
such feel:.ngs are not found. alone in the hearts of any certain nationality,
but. oceur ‘in”accordance with the indlvidual's personality.

5. Proposed actions to implement.. these recommendatlons ere attached.

£

ALLAN R, EROWNE =
Lt Colonel JAGD .
Army Judge Advocate

-
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